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Net Sales $ 117141 $ 10495 $ 957.46
Gross Margin 24.2% 23.7% 23.4%

Operating Income $ 1149 $ 1034 $ 843
Net Income from continuing operations $ 63.3 $ 64.9 $ 131.2%
Diluted Net Income from continuing operations per share $ 0.66 $ 0.68 $ 1.40%>
Non-GAAP Measures fer year-over-year comparisons [see page 15 for definition]: 2007 2004 2005
Adjusted Qperating Income $ 134.8 $ 1145 $ 101.8

As a % of sales 11.5% 10.9% 10.6%
Adjusted Net Income $ 69.5 $ 48.5 % 45.8
Adjusted Diluted Net Income from continuing operations per share $ 0.72 $ 0.51 $  0.49

*All financial data presented has been reclassified to report our U.S, EBGI business and Architectural business in France as discontinued operations.

*“Includes a benefit of $119.2 millien or $1,27 per share related to the reversal of valuation allowance previously recorded against our U.S. deferred tax assets,

Sales Adjusted Operating Income Debt, Net of Cash
% mullions $ millions $ millions
1200 137 AVERAGE ANNUAL _yr 140 31% AVERAGE ANNUAL o L1=1 1
GROWTHRATE .- GROWTH RATE "
1.000 120 500 <X e e e e
Rt 100 \
800 .7 T3] O SO SO
80 ) \ 5
500 400 o DAY
60 N \
400 350 ... ! "
40 ‘
200 20 300 B
=
a 0 250
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2004 2005 2006 2007

HEXCEL BEGINS...
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2008 marks the 60th anniversary of the incorporation of the Company that was to
become Hexcel. Two young engineers in California, Roger Steele and Bud Hughes,
had a vision of using lightweight honeycomb core in the production of aircraft struc-
tures. As with most such stories, their first workshop was in the founders’ basements.
in Europe, similar developments were being explored by like-minded inventors,

Dr. Norman Bruyne in England, as well as Jean Brochier and Pierre Genin in France.
Epoxy-impregnated glass fabrics [what we now call “prepreg”] bonded on layers of
honeycomb core allowed designers to make stiff, lightweight panels that also had
great impact characteristics. Twenty years later, “lightweight” was redefined with the
invention of intermediate modulus carbon fiber, which replaced glass in the fabric.
The same prepreg concept, applied to carbon set the standard for high-perfermance
materials now used in such diverse applications as golf shafts and bicycles to fighter
jets and satellites. Over the years, the businesses forged by these and other visionar-
ies combined, grew, and became the world’s leader in advanced composite materials
that is Hexcel today.

Looking back, we love to talk of our contributions to historic events, We like to say
Hexcel was first to the moon, as our honeycomb core gave strength and impact resis-
tance to the pads of the Lunar Lander. Our materials alse protected John Glenn on

his return from orbit in Freedom VII. In Europe, core-based panels from our Duxford,
England plant allowed Don Campbell's “Bluebird” to break the 400 mile per hour

land speed record. Over 80% of the structural volume of the Voyager was made up of
Hexcel materials when Dick Rutan and Jeana Yeager made the first non-stop flight
around the world without refueling. And, of course, there were the famous Hexcel skis
introduced in 1971 that quickly became a status symbol for skiers worldwide.

But in looking back, there are lessons to be learned to help us better look forward.
What lessons have we learned from 60 years of history?

1950

The Company begins pilot production of aluminum
honeycomb for aerospace applications. Generations
later, the product is still in commercial use.

1952

Roger Steele is invited to speak at an important
Air Force Conference on Adhesives and Sandwich
Construction. "l took some really deep breaths
and told those government, Air Force and industry
people that they could look forward to a whole new
era in aviation if they only would open their minds

1949

California Reinforced Plastics takes a big
gamble and submits an aggressive bid

te furnish fuel cell support panels for the
wings of the B-36 bomber. The gamble pays
off and they win the contract.

to the usefulness of this honeycomb work,” Steele
later recalls.

1954

Califarnia Reinforced Plastics changes its name
to Hexcel Products, Inc.




Market Leaders Must
Continually invent

>> Looking back
Early attempts at making
honeycomb used a corrugation
pracess which was slow, inefficient
and had size constraints. Roger
Steele patented a novel method to
apply lines of adhesive to aramid
paper and expand honeycomb that
is still the standard today. When
Douglas Aircraft said they needed
a fiberglass core, he developed
woven glass prepreg to replace his
original paper design. Year after
year, Hexcel has advanced the state
-of-the-art, accumulating over 400
patents along the way.
Lesson? Pioneers can't
look for trails, they need
to forge them. ;f’

1958

Atlas Missile & U.S, Airforce moon probe used Hexcel Honeycomb. Qur materials
were also used in the U.S. Mercury space program.

1959

Hexcel goes public - |.P.0. of 50,000 shares for over-the-counter trading.

> Looking forward:

In 2007, Hexcel won the prestigious
JEC innovation award for applying
its patented HexWeb® Acousti-
Cap™to a jet engine nacelle. This
unigue honeycomb core with cell
inserts has, after years of study by
NASA, been deemed a significant
improvement over the current state-
of-the-art methods of dampening
jet engine inlet noise. It is now being
incorporated in a number of new and
existing aircraft, such as the Boeing
777,787 and 747-8.

Traditional carbon composite
parts, such as the intake fan blade
on the new GE turbofan, require
precisely placed sheets of prepreg to
be stacked on a mold and cured in a
high pressure/temperature autoclave
for hours. High speed tape-laying

machines are employed in

making large structures such

as atrcraft wings and fuselages.
However, neither method is gener-
ally applicable to making smaller,
odd-shaped parts like window
frames and internal brackets. In
2007, FAA approval was received for
the first aircraft part made with our
patented HexMC® system. HexMC®
is carban fiber prepreg, cut into
flakes and layered in a blanket-like
form. Loaded into a molding press,
it allows for high-volume shaping
and curing of lightweight structural
parts that would otherwise need to
be made from more expensive and
heavier titanium for similar perfor-
mance. Using the HexMC® process,
Hexcel now offers turnkey finished
composite parts that meet FAA
certification requirements starting
with only the customer’s desired
load, envelope and mounting profite.
Hundreds of parts made this way
have been incorporated into the
Boeing 787, and thousands of addi-
tional parts are likely on future
aircraft designs.

Also in 2007, HexTool® was
introduced to the tooling market.
Most large compaosite aircraft struc-
tures have traditionally required
tools made of a very expensive
and extremely heavy Invar® alloy
because its low coefficient of thermal
expansion is close to that of carbon

1969

Even before Neil Armstrong, Hexcel materials
make first feotprints on moon. The footpads

on the Apollo 11 Lunar Landing Modute are made

of crushable honeycomb foil by Hexcel.

1970

When Concorde, the world's first commercial
supersenic aircraft, enters service it contains
materials from a variety of Hexcel locations.
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Hexcel begins manutacturing skis,
bringing together a number of the
company’s materials and technelogies
into a single finished product.

1974
Hexcel convinces design engineers at Cincinnati

Milacron to build the five-axis, numerically-controlled
["NC”) haneycomb carving machine, which atlows Hexcel
to begin supplying complex, contoured parts such as the
speed brakes on the F-15 fighter.
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prepregs - an important consider-
ation for dimensional accuracy of
the resulting composite part. By
replacing Invar® with a high-temper-
ature version of our HexMC®, the tool
can be 80% lighter and match the
thermal characteristics of the com-
posite parts being made. HexTool®
has already garnered the interest of
many tool manufacturers worldwide.

These developments did not hap-
pen by luck orin a flash of brilliance
- they were direct results of our
expanded investment in R&T. We
have nearly doubled our R&T spend-
ing in the past five years and believe
we will benefit from this investment
in the years to come. In addition to

4 Hexcel Carporation

1993-1995

Hexcel, battered by significant down-turns in both its civilian and military aerospace markets,

voluntarily files for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. The company dramaticaily restructures

and emerges lighter, stronger and ready to consalidate the composites industry.

facilitating the broader use of
composites, we expect HexMC®
and HexTool® to provide significant
incremental sales over our base
portfolic in the near term.

The emergence of composites
as an adaptable, high performing,
and practical material useful across
many applications and markets,
provides enormous opportunities for
Hexcel. As the leader in the field, and
to maximize the pace of growth for
the industry, we must continuously
invent and invest - in good times and
bad. At Hexcel, we are committed to
being bifocal - delivering near term
performance with an equal focus on
the long term.

Events Will Force Changes

»> Looking back:

Over sixty years, numerous down
cycles or other external events
required Hexce! to reinvent the
company. A history of acquisitions
and an ever-widening range of
composite applications have called
for refocusing or restructuring on
occasion. The recession of 1980
forced us to exit from making medi-
cal devices and skis. In 1993, we
weren't so responsive. A high-
debt load and slow management
response to the simultaneous
decline of military and commercial
aerospace markets resulted in




a bankruptcy that could have been »» Looking forward: etectronics and architectural
avoided. After September 11, 2001, The unexpected two-year delay weaving businesses, because their
we did not wait. We reduced our of the compasite-intensive super long-term prospects were less
workforce by over 30%, raised new jumbo Airbus A380 aircraft combined  compelling than those of composite
capital and refinanced our entire with a 35% drop in our ballistic materials for aerospace and wind
debt structure. sales created the equivalent of energy. We closed two plants and

Lesson? Great winds don't a recession in two of our key took out significant overhead costs
guarantee smooth sailing; the markets. To maintain our track to offset the income lost from these
best strategies must alse include record of margin and earnings businesses. And we restructured
execution, agility, adaptation and expansion, we chose to respond our arganization from three global
a willingness to rethink/reinvent. aggressively rather than wait for business units to one to become a

a rebound. We sold our ballistics, purely focused composites company.

~F O T

The combination of Hexcel, Ciba Composites, Hercules Composites, along with select Fiberite
praduct lines gives Hexcel the most comprehensive array of technologies, qualifications,
geographic mix and vertically integrated capabilities in the industry. This leaves the company
well pesitioned for growth and diversification.

2007 Annual Report 5




Despite the market pressures, we
continued to invest in new product
development and capacity expan-
sion programs to support the rapid
growth in wind energy and aero-
space to come. We added major new
carbon fiber capacity in the U.S.
and Europe, and qualified a state-of-
the-art high volume resin filming
operation in England. In addition, we
launched satellite prepreg facilities
in France, Germany and China to be
close to our customers.

Amidst all of this transition, we
delivered a record $135 million of
adjusted operating income in 2007;
more than 2006 despite giving up
14% of our sales through divesti-
tures. Our adjusted operating margin
expanded for the fourth yearin a
row to 11.5%, right on target. And
at long last, we reached our goal of
less than two times net debt/EBITDA
leverage. Bifocal ~ we did what we
needed to do for the short term while
investing in the long term.

Market Focus is more than
a Customer Focus

» Looking back:

In the 1980's the B-2 bomber was
the first major aircraft to incorporate
compaosites for all major structures.
The Air Faorce was going to blacken the
sky with B-2's. The Navy had their own
“black” flying wing plane, the A-12. A
huge, special purpose plant was built
to support the "Reagan buildup.” We
were in Hexcel heaven. Meanwhile,

HexMC® intreduced into industrial markets for use in bicycles
and other sporting goods applications. By 2007, HexMC® has
found its way into commercial aerospace applications on the

Boeing 787

& Hexcel Corporation




Airbus and Boeing commercial
aircraft were moving gradually to
carbon fiber prepreg materials and
we weren't there. Then the Berlin
wall went down, and so did we in
the early 1990's. Post bankruptcy,

a series of acquisitions put us in the
leadership position in Europe and
gave us the critical intermediate
carben fiber leadership position

in the U.5. But the defense focus
distracted us from qualifying a
primary structure carbon prepreg
on the Boeing 777, which ultimately
resulted in a lost opportunity on
the all-important Boeing 787. New
products have allowed us to place
$1.0 - 1.3 million on each new Boeing
787, better than any previous Boeing

airplane, but it could have been more.

Lesson? One home run does not
win a season; we need to develop
solutions that can win across an
entire target market, not just one
custamer or program.

>> Looking forward:
Hexcel's broad range of composite
products and demonstrated abil-
ity to innovate make us a vital team
member on any advanced structural
materials project. We have narrowed
our focus to providing materials

2004-2005

Boeing introduces plans for the 787 Oream-
tiner, the first commercial plane that will
have more than 50% composites by weight.
Hexcel announces plans to increase carbon
fiber capacity 50% by 2008, to meet growing
demand in Aerospace markets,

2007 Aerospace Sales
by Market

Space &
Defense
22%
Commercial -
Aerospace
53%

*l['n:dustr.l at
5%

for aerospace, wind energy and
selected industrial markets, But we
target a wide range of customers
and programs within those focus
areas. We provide composite mate-
rials to every commercial atrcraft,
engine, and nacelle maker, as

well as most of their suppliers.

Our materials are used in over

80 military programs around the
world. Our customers, plants, and
management are geographically

2006-2007

2007 Commercial Aerospace
Sales by Customer

. Other

Cammercial
A‘erospaqe
26% |

well balanced-we maintain regional
relationships with global reach.

We are fully engaged on new com-
mercial programs such as Boeing's
787 and 747-8; the Airbus A350 XWB,
Bombardier's C-Series, Embraer’s
new Phenom, and many other new
military, business jet, turboprop and
microjet projects. We are also in the
early stages of participation with
emerging aircraft makers in Russia,
India and China.

Hexcel introduces AcoustiCap™ noise dampening system for jet engine nacelles.
Hexcel also announces plans to increase carbon fiber capacity 70% by 2010 to meet

growing demand in aerospace and new industrial markets. The Company opens

a new prepreg facility in Stade, Germany and announces plans for a new Chinese

facilty, te serve the wind energy market.

2007 Annual Report 7



In industrial markets, we're put-
ting capacity in the U.5, and China
to support wind turbine blade
customers as their manufacturing
operations go global. We continue
to develop unique products for
premium recreation, autemotive
and marine projects. And we won
a significant contract to provide
our carbon fiber to make uranium
enrichment tubes for USEC's
American Centrifuge Program.

Where is Hexcel today?

After a successful year of transi-
tion, over 80% of our sales are to
markets or submarkets with the
potential for long-term double digit
growth. Renewable energy initia-
tives have made wind a sustainable
global growth story, rather than a
specialty niche market in Europe.
Record large aircraft orders over
three years have resulted in a seven
year backlog for Boeing and Airbus,
with little of it tied to the U.S. airlines
that drove cycles in the past. The
secular penetration of composites
has allowed us to grow our commer-
cial aerospace sales over the last five
years at a 16% per year rate vs, the
11% growth in aircraft build rates.
The projected mix of larger, more
composite intensive twin aisles going
forward lead us to believe our sales
should eventually outgrow build rate
increases by 10% vs. the 5% differ-
ential of the past. Composite sales to
space and defense markets could be
even stronger than the 8-10% growth
rate of the past, due to the increased
demands for new helicopters and
replacement blades. In other indus-
trial markets, new applications for
our premium carbon fibers, like the
USEC centrifuge project, may yet
develop in areas such as hydrogen
tanks, automotive, high speed
flywheels, and oil risers.

Hexcel Historical Market Capitalization
[US% in millions]

1974

Hexcel's Board of Directors [Left to Right standing: Front Row - D. Hurley, J. Graves, J. Campbell,
S. Derickson, J. Beckman, L. Brubaker; Back row - A. Bellows, D. Berges, K. Foster, D. Pugh

Sixty years ago, Roger Steele
saw a future with a rapid move to
composites as the standard for air-
craft structural designs - similar to
the dramatic shift to aluminum from
wood and canvas twenty years before,
His dream of all-composite planes
was visionary, but we now know, it was
as if he were looking at a mountain
from afar. We have made a long, slow
uphill hike over and through difficult
terrain to get to where the mountain
top is in reach - not unlike the Hexcel
market capitalization chart at the
bottom of this page.

Hexcel has had to invent (and rein-
vent] and focus (and refocus) to get
here. In 2007, we had to do all four.
Thanks to the visionaries who pre-
ceded us, the thousands of employees
who served us so well, and the
support of our investors, customers
and suppliers, all of whom are part
of our first sixty years, we stand
in a very good place today.

We ook forward to the climb.

Vi

David E. Berges,
Chairman and CEQ

1987

$2.326

2007
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Selected Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected financial data as of and for the five years ended December 31:

[In mitlions, except per share datal 2007 2005 2005 2004 2003
Results of Operations (a):
Net sales $1,171.1 $1,049.5 $957.6 $ 837.0 $ 7300
Cost of sales 888.1 801.0 733.4 847.9 577.4
Gross margin 283.0 2485 224.2 189.1 152.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses 114.0 105.5 97.1 98.3 847
Research and technology expenses 34.2 29.7 24.8 23.0 19.4
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 7.3 9.9 2.9 2.7 3.9
Other expense [incomel, net 12.6 — 15.1 3.0 {2.2]
Operating income 114.9 103.4 84.3 62.1 46.8
Interest expense 21.4 23.6 29.6 43.4 49.3
Non-operating expense, net 1.1 0.1 40.9 2.2 2.6
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income 92.4 79.7 13.8 16.5 (5.1
taxes, equity in earnings and discontinued operations
Provision [benefit] for income taxes 334 34,7 (113.8) 2.6 10.1
Income [loss) from continuing operations before equity 59.0 45.0 127.6 13.9 [15.2)
in earnings and discontinued operations
Equity in earnings from and gain on sale of investments
in affiliated companies 4.3 19.9 3.6 1.1 [1.4]
Net income [loss] from continuing operations 63.3 649 131.2 15.0 (156.4]
Income [loss] from discontinued operations, net of tax (2.0 1.0 10.1 13.8 5.5
Net income [loss] 61.3 65.9 141.3 28.8 {11.1]
Deemed preferred dividends and accretion — — 130.8) [25.4] (9.6)
Net income [loss) available to common shareholders $ 613 $ 459 $110.5 $ 34 % (20.7)
Basic net income [loss| per common share:
Continuing operations $ 047 $ 070 $ 1.67 $ 027 $ (068
Discontinued operations {0.02) 0.01 0.17 0.35 0.14
Net income (loss] per common share $ 0.65 $ 0N $ 1.84 $ 009 $ (054
Diluted net incame [loss| per common share:
Continuing operations $ 0.6 $ 048 $ 1.40 $ 00251 % (048]
Discontinued operations {0.02) 0.01 0.11 0.33 0.14
Net income [loss) per common share $ 0.64 $  0.49 $ 1.51 $ 0.08 $ (0.54)
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 94.7 93.4 60.0 39.3 38.%
Diluted 96.5 95.5 93.7 421 38.5
Financial Position (al:
Total assets $1,060.5 $1.0145 $880.6 $7768 % 7227
Warking capital $ 1717 $ 2065 $174.5 $157.3 § 1407
Long-term notes payable and capital lease obligations $ N55 $ 409.8 $4168 $ 4304 $ 4813
Stockholders” equity [deficit] [b] $ 427.6 $ 3016 $210.7 $ (244 % [93.4)
Other Data (a):
Depreciation and amertization $ 398 $ 374 $ 388 $ 415 % 4
Capital expenditures and deposits for capital purchases $ 120.6 $ 1179 $ 64.3 $ 35.0 $ 19.4
Shares outstanding at year-end, less treasury stock 95.8 93.8 92.6 53.6 38.7

(a} Ali financial data presented has been restated to report our U.S. EBGI business and our Architectural business in France as discontinued operations.

Ib) No cash dividends were declared per share of common stock during any of the five years ended December 31, 2007.

10 Hexcel Corporation




General Development of Business

Hexcel Corporation, founded in 1944, was incorporated in
California in 1948, and reincorporated in Delaware in 1983,
Hexcel Corporation and its subsidiaries [herein referred to as
“Hexcel”, "we", "us”, or "our”l, is a leading advanced composites
company. We develop, manufacture, and market lightweight,
high-performance  composites, including carbon fibers,
reinforcements, prepregs, honeycomb, matrix systems, adhesives
and composite structures, for use in the commercial aerospace,
space and defense and industrial applications. Our products are
used in a wide variety of end applications, such as commercial
and military aircraft, space launch vehicles and satellites, wind
turbine blades, autormotive, bikes, skis and a wide variety of other
recreational equipment.

We serve international markets through manufacturing
facilities and sales offices located in the United States and Europe,
and through sales representation offices located in Asia, Australia
and South America. We are also an investor in two joint ventures,
one located in China and one in Malaysia, which manufacture
composite structures for commercial aerospace.

Narrative Description of Business and Segments

We are a manufacturer of products within a single industry:
Advanced Composites. tn 2007, Hexcel successfully cancluded
the sale of a significant portion of our previously reported
Reinforcements segment. In order to take full advantage of the
many growing applications for advanced composite materials, we
decided to narrow our focus and consolidate our activities around
our carbon fiber, reinforcements for composites, honeycomb,
matrix and engineered products product lines. In 2007, we
completed the combination of our Reinforcements’ activities
related to advanced composites with our previously reported
Composites and Structures segments as a singte organization.

.

We successfully concluded the reorganization during 2007,
with the divesture of our European Architectural business and
the U.S. electronics, ballistics and general industrial ["EBGI"]
product lines. These businesses are therefore being reported
as discontinued operations within this annual report. Unless
otherwise indicated, all information within this annual report
reflects the continuing operations of Hexcel.

Hexcel now reports two segments, Composite Materials and
Engineered Products, from the three segments reported in 2006,
Composites, Structures and Reinforcements. The Composite
Materials segment is now comprised of the same product lines
as previously included under prior Composites segment, with
the exception of specially machined honeycomb, which are
now included under the Engineered Products segment, and
the addition of the product lines previously reported under the
Reinforcements segment that were not included in the sale of
EBGIL. The Engineered Products segment is comprised of the
product lines previously included under the prior Structures
segment, with the addition of the specially machined heneycomb
product tine. All prior financial staterment periods have been
revised to reflect the new segment structure.

The following summaries describe the angoing activities
related to the Composite Materials and Engineered Products
segments as of December 31, 2007.

Composite Materials

The Composite Materials segment manufactures and markets
carbon fibers, fabrics and specialty reinforcements, prepregs,
structural adhesives, honeycomb, composite panels, molding
compounds, polyurethane systems, gel coats and laminates
that are incorporated into many applications, including military
and commercial aircraft, wind turbine blades and recreational
products.

The following table identifies the principal products and examples of the primary end-uses from the Compaosite Materials segment:

SEGMENT PRODUCTS

PRIMARY END-USES

Composite Materials Carbon Fibers

* Raw materials for fabrics and prepregs
* Filament winding for various space, defense and industrial
applications

Industrial Fabrics and Specialty
Reinforcements

* Raw materials for prepregs and honeycomb

* Composites and components used in aerospace, defense,
wind energy, automotive, marine, recreation and other
industrial applications

» Civil engineering and construction applications

Prepregs and Other
Fiber-Reinforced
Matrix Materials

* Composite structures

» Commercial and military aircraft compenents

+ Satellites and launchers

« Aeroengines

* Wind turbine rotor blades

¢« Yachts, trains and performance cars

+ Skis, snowboards, hockey sticks, tennis rackets and bicycles

Structural Adhesives

+ Bonding of metals, honeycomb and camposite materials
+ Aerospace, ground transportation and industrial applications

Honeycomb

« Composite structures and interiors

2007 Annual Report 11




Carbon Fibers: HexTow™ carbon fibers are manufactured
for sale to third-party customers as well as for our own use
in  manufacturing certain reinforcements and composite
materials. Carban fibers are woven into carbon fabrics, used as
reinforcement in conjunction with a resin matrix to produce pre-
impregnated composite materials (referred to as “prepregs”] and
used in filament winding and advanced fiber placement to produce
finished composite components. Key product applications include
structural components for commercial and military aircraft,
space launch vehicles, wind blade camponents, and certain other
applications such as recreational and industrial equipment.

Industrial Fabrics and Specialty Reinforcements: Industrial
fabrics and specialty reinforcements are made from a variety
of fibers, including carbon, aramid and other high strength
polymers, several types of fiberglass, quartz, ceramic and other
specialty fibers. These reinforcements are used in the production
of prepregs and other matrix materials used in primary and
secondary structural aerospace applications such as wing
components, horizontal and vertical stabilizer components,
fairings, radomes and engine nacelles as well as overhead storage
bins and other interior components. Qur reinforcements are also
used in the manufacture of a variety of industrial and recreational
products such as wind energy blades, automotive components,
boats, surfboards, skis and other sporting goods equipment and
certain civil engineering and construction applications.

Prepregs: HexPly® prepregs are manufactured for sale to third-
party customers and for internal use by our Engineered Products
segment in manufacturing compoesite laminates and monolithic
structures, including finished components for aircraft structures
and interiors. Prepregs are manufactured by combining high-
performance reinforcement fabrics or unidirectional fibers with
a resin matrix to form a composite material with exceptional
structural properties not present in either of the constituent
materials. Reinforcement fabrics used in the manufacture of
prepregsinclude glass, carbon, aramid, quartz, ceramic and other
specialty reinforcements. Resin matrices include bismaleimide,
cyanate ester, epoxy, phenolic, polyester, polyimide and other
specialty resins,

Other Fiber-Reinforced Matrix Materials: New fiber reinforced
matrix developments include HexMC®, a new form of quasi-
isotropic carbon fiber prepreg that enables small to medium
sized composite components to be mass produced. HexTOOL
is a specialized form of HexMC for use in the cost-effective
construction of high temperature composite tooling. HexFIT®
film infusion material is a product that combines resin films
and dry fiber reinforcements to save lay-up time in production
and enables the manufacture of large contoured composite
structures, such as wind turbine blades.

Resins: Polymer matrix materials are sold in bulk and film
form for use in direct process manufacturing of composite

parts. Resins can be combined with fiber reinforcements in
manufacturing processes such regin transfer molding {RTM],
resin film infusion (RFI} or vacuum assisted resin transfer molding
(VARTM] to produce high quality compaosite components for both
aerospace and industrial applications.

Structural Adhesives:  We manufacture and market a
comprehensive range of Redux® film and paste adhesives. These
structural adhesives, which bond metal to metal and composites
and honeycomb structures, are used in the aerospace industry
and for many industrial applications.

Honeycomb: HexWeb® honeycomb is a lightweight, cellular
structure generally composed of nested hexagonal cells. The
product is similar in appearance to a cross-sectional slice of
a beehive. It can also be manufactured in asymmetric cell
configurations for more specialized applications. Honeycomb is
primarily used as a lightweight core material and acts as a highly
efficient energy absorber. When sandwiched between composite
or metallic facing skins, honeycomb significantly increases the
stiffness of the structure, while adding very little weight.

We produce honeycomb from a number of metallic and non-
metallic materials. Most metallic honeycomb is made from
aluminum and is available in a selection of alloys, cell sizes and
dimensions. Non-metallic materials used in the manufacture
of honeycomb include fiberglass, carbon fiber, thermoplastics,
non-flammable aramid papers, aramid fiber and other specialty
materials.

We sell honeycomb as standard blocks and in slices cut from a
block. Honeycomb is also supplied as sandwich panels, with facing
skins bonded to either side of the core material. Aergspace is the
largest market for honeycomb products. We also sell heneycamb
for non-aerospace applications including automotive parts,
high-speed trains and mass transit vehicles, energy absorption
products, marine vessel compartments, portable shelters, and
otherindustriat uses. In addition, we produce honeycomb for our
Engineered Products segment for use in manufacturing finished
parts for airframe Original Equipment Manufacturers ["OEMs7),

Engineered Products

The Engineered Products segment manufactures and markets
composite structures and precision machined honeycomb
parts for use in the aerospace industry. Composite structures
are manufactured from a variety of compeosite and other
materials, including prepregs, honeycemb, structural adhesives
and advanced molding materials, using such manufacturing
processes as autoclave processing, multi-axis numerically
controlled machining, heat forming, compression molding and
other composite manufacturing techniques. Composite structures
and machined honeycomb include such items as aerodynamic
fairings, wing panels, rotor blades, and other specific aircraft
components.

The following table identifies the principal products and examples of the primary end-uses from the Engineered Products segment:

SEGMENT PRODUCTS

PRIMARY END-USES

Engineered Products Compasite Structures

» Aircraft structures and finished aircraft components, including wing to body

fairings, wing panels, flight deck panels, door liners, helicopter blades, spars

and tip caps

Machined Honeycomb

» Aircraft structural sub-components and semi-finished components used

in helicopter blades, engine nacelles, and aircraft surfaces {flaps, wings,
elevators and fairings)
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The Engineered Products business unit has equity
investments in two Asian joint ventures. They consist of BHA Aero
Composite Parts Co., Ltd. ["BHA Aero”) and Asian Composites
Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. {"ACM~). Under the terms of the joint
venture agreements, Hexcel and Boeing have transferred the
manufacture of certain semi-finished composite components
to these joint ventures. Hexcel purchases the semi-finished
composite components from the joint ventures, inspects and
performs additional skilled assembly work before delivering
them to Boeing. The joint ventures also manufacture composite
compoenents for other tier 1 aircraft component manufacturers,
These Asian joint ventures had combined revenues of $63.0
million and $53.0 million in 2007 and 20064, respectively. For
additional information on the Joint Yenture investment see Note
&, Investments in Affiliated Companies.

Significant Customers

Approximately 25%, 24%, and 23% of our 2007, 2004, and 2005
net sales, respectively, were to The Boeing Company ("Boging”]
and related subcontractors. Of the 25% of sales to Boeing and its
subcontractors in 2007, 20.7% related to commercial aerospace
market applications and 4.5% related to space and defense market
applications. Approximately 22%, 26%, and 27% of our 2007, 2006,
and 2005 net sales, respectively, were to European Aeronautic
Defence and Space Company ["EADS”], including its business
division Airbus Industrie ["Airbus”], and its subcontractors. Of
the 22% of sales to EADS and its subcontractors in 2007, 18.8%
related to commercial aerospace market applications 3.3%
related to space and defense market applications.

{in millions] 2007 20046 2005
Commercial Aerospace:
Boeing and
subcontractors $242.6 $189.5 $ 154.5
EADS and subcontractors 219.9 232.3 215.9
Total $ 4625 $ 4218 $ 370.4
Space and Defense:
Boeing and
subcontractors $ 528 % 4607 % 633
EADS and subcontractors 38.9 38.2 40.6
Total $ 91.7 $ 989 $ 103.9
Markets

Our products are sold for a broad range of end-uses. The
following tables summarize our net sales to third-party customers
by market and by geography for each of the three years ended
December 31:

Net Sales by Market 2007 2006 2005
Commercial aerospace 53% 52% 49%
Industrial 25 27 28
Space and defense 22 21 23
Total 100% 100% 100%
Net Sales by Geography [a)
United States 9% 36% 6%
U.S. exports 8 9 9
Europe 53 55 35
Total 100% 100% 100%

(al Net sales by geography based on the location in which the sale was
manufactured.

Net Sales to External

Customers [b) 2007 2006 2005
United States 40% 36% 37%
Europe 48 81 50
All Others 12 13 13
Total 100% 100% 100%

|b) Net sales to external customers based on the location to which the sale was
delivered.

Commercial Aerospace

The commercial aerospace industry is our largest user of
advanced composites. The econornic benefits airlines can
obtain from weight savings in both fuel economy and aircraft
range, combined with the design enhancement that comes
from the advantages of advanced composites over traditional
materials, have caused the industry to be the leader in the use
of these materials. While military aircraft and space craft have
championed the development of these materials, commercial
aerospace has had the greater consumption requirements and
has commercialized the use of these products. Accordingly, the
demand for advanced structural material products is closely
correlated to the demand for commercial aircraft.

The use of advanced composites in commercial aerospace is
primarily in the manufacture of new commercial aircraft. The
aftermarket for these products is very small as many of these
materials are designed to last for the life of the aircraft. The
demand for new commercial aircraft is driven by two principal
factors, the first of which is airline passenger traffic (the number
of revenue passenger miles flown by the airtines] which affects
the required size of airline fleets. According to the International
Civil Aviation Organization, passenger traffic has grown at an
annual compound rate of 5.5% from 1985 to 2006 and has seen
year on year growth of 5.5% [estimatel, 5.9% and 8.0% during
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Growth in passenger traffic
requires growth in the size of the fleet of commercial aircraft
operated by airlines worldwide.

The second factor, which is less sensitive to the general
economy, is the replacement rates for existing aircraft. The rates
of retirement of passenger and freight aircraft, resutting mainly
from obsolescence, are determined in part by the regulatory
requirements established by various civil aviation authorities
worldwide as well as public concern regarding aircraft age, safety
and noise. These rates may also be affected by the desire of the
various airlines to improve operating costs with higher payloads
and more fuel-efficient aircraft [which in turn is influenced by the
price of fuel] and by reducing maintenance expense. In addition,
there is expected to be increasing pressure on airlines to replace
their aging fleet with more fuel efficient and quieter aircraft to
be more environmentally responsible. When aircraft are retired
from commercial airline fleets, they may be converted to cargo
freight aircraft or scrapped.

Each mew generation of commercial aircraft has used
increasing quantities of advanced composites, replacing metals.
This follows the trend previously seen in military fighter aircraft
where advanced composites may now exceed 50% of the weight
of the airframe. Early versions of commercial jet aircraft, such
as the Boeing 707, which was developed in the early 1930's,
contained almost no composite materials. One of the first
aircraft to use a meaningful amount of composite materials,
the Boeing 767 entered into service in 1983, and was built with
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an airframe containing approximately 6% composite materials.
The airframe of Boeing's 777 aircraft, which entered service in
1995, is approximately 11% composite. By comparisan, the next
generation of aircraft in development will contain significantly
higher composite content by weight. The Airbus A380 which
was certified in December 2006, is being built with an airframe
containing approximately 23% composite by weight. The first
aircraft was delivered in 2007. Boeing is starting to assemble
the first 787 aircraft with a content of 50% or more compasite
materials by weight. lts maiden flight is expected in mid-2008
and the aircraft is projected to enter into service early in 2009.
In December 2006, Airbus fermally launched the A350 XWB also
projected to have a composite cantent of 50% or more by weight.
The A350 XWB is forecast to enter into service in 2013.

The impact of Boeing and Airbus’ production rate changes
on us is typically influenced by two factors: the mix of aircraft
produced and the inventory supply chain effects of increases or
reductions in aircraft production. We have products on all Boeing
and Airbus planes. The dallar value of our materials varies by
aircraft type - twin aisle aircraft use more of our materials than
narrow body aircraft and newer designed aircraft use more our
materials than older generations. On average, for established
programs we deliver products inta the supply chain about six
months prior to aircraft delivery. Depending on the product,
orders ptaced with us are received anywhere between one and
eighteen months prior to delivery of the aircraft to the customer.
For aircraft that are in the ramp-up stage, such as the A380 and
the B787, we will have sales as much as a few years in advance
of the delivery. Increased aircraft deliveries combined with
the secular penetration resulted in our commerciat aerospace
revenues increasing by approximately 14% and 16% in 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Set forth below are historical aircraft deliveries as announced
by Boeing and Airbus:

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

cpportunities where advanced composites technology offer
significant benefits to the end user, often applications that demand
highengineering performance. Withinthis segment, the majorend
market sub-segments include, in order of size based on our 2007
sales, wind energy, general industrial applications, recreational
equipment le.g., bicyctes, snowboards, tennis rackets and hockey
sticks], and transportation le.g., automabiles, mass transit and
high-speed rail, and marine applications]. Our participation in
these market applications complements our commercial and
military aerospace businesses, and we are committed to pursuing
the utilization of advanced structural material technology where
industrial customers can generate significant value.

Space & Defense

The space & defense market has historically been an innovator
in the use of, and source of significant demand for, advanced
composites. The aggregate demand by space and defense
customers is primarily a function of procurement of military
aircraft that utilize advanced composites by the United States
and certain European governments. We are currently qualified to
supply materials to a broad range of over 80 military aircraft and
helicopter programs. The top ten programs by revenues represent
less than 50% of our Space & Defense revenues. These programs
include the F/A-1BE/F Hornet, the F-22 Raptor, and the Eurcfighter
[Typhoon), as wetl as the C-17, the V-22 Osprey tiltrotor aircraft,
and the Blackhawk, Tiger and NH?0 helicopters. In addition,
there are new programs in development such as the F-35 [Joint
Strike Fighter or "JSF"], CH53K heawy lift helicopter and the EADS
A400M military transport planned to enter production later in the
decade. The benefits that we obtain from these programs will
depend upon which are funded and the extent of such funding.
Space applications for advanced composites inctude solid rocket
booster cases, fairings and payload doors for launch vehicles, and

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

294 311 325 303 305

620 491 527 381 281 285 290 398 441

320 378 434 453

Boeing {including 312 2% 271 375 543
McDonnell Douglas)

Airbus 123 124 126 182 229
Total 435 380 397 557 792

914 802 B52 684 586 4605 668  B3Z 8%

Commercial aerospace represented 53% of our 2007 net sales.
Approximately 74% of these revenues can be identified as sales
to Boeing, Airbus and their subcontractors for the production of
cormmercial aircraft. The balance of our commercial aerospace
sales are related to regional and business aircraft manufacture,
and other commercial aircraft applications. Regional aircraft
production has also increased aver time, but does not directly
follow the cycle of large commercial aircraft deliveries. These
applications also exhibit increasing utilization of compaosite
materials with each new generation of aircraft.

Industrial Markets

We group under this market segment revenue from applications
for our products outside the aerospace and electronics markets.
A number of these applications represent emerging opportunities
for our products. In developing new applications, we seek those
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buss and solar arrays for military and commercial satellites.

Contracts for military and some commercial programs
may contain provisions applicable to both U.S. Government
contracts and subcontracts. For example, under a termination
for convenience clause, the prime contractors may flow down
this clause to materials suppliers such as Hexcel. According to
the terms of a contract, we may be subject to U.S. government
Federal Acquisition Regulations, Department of Defense Federal
Acquisition Regulations Supplement, Cost Accounting Standards,
and associated procurement taws.

Further discussion of our markets, including certain risks,
uncertainties and other factors with respect to “forward-looking
statements” about those markets, is contained under the caption
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Business Overview

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Net sales $1,171.1 $1,049.5 $ 957.6
Gross margin % 24.2% 23.7% 23.4%
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses $ 173 $ 99 $ 29
Dther expense, net $ 126 $ - $ 159
Operating income $ 1149 $ 103.4 $ 843
Operating income % ?.8% 9.9% 8.8%
Non-operating expense, net L 1.1 $ 0.1 $ 409
Provision [benefit] for income taxes [al $ 334 $ 347 $(113.8]
Equity in earnings from and gain on sale of investments in affiliated

companies % 4.3 $ 199 $ 34
Income from continuing operations $ 633 $ 649 $ 131.2
Income [loss} from discontinued operations, net of tax $ (20 $ 10 $ 101
Net income $ 6.3 $ 659 $ 1413
Deemed preferred dividends and accretion $ —_— % — $ (30.8)
Net income available to common sharehclders $ 4613 $ 459 $ 1105
Diluted net income per common share $ 0.64 $ 0.9 $ 1.51

(al The provision [benefit] for incame taxes includes non-cash benefits of $119.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 arising from the reversal of the
previously recorded valuatien allowance against our U.S, deferred tax assets. See Note 10 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further detail.

The Company's performance measures include operating income adjusted for non-recurring operating expenses and business censolidation
and restructuring expenses, and net income adjusted for non-recurring expenses, both of which are non-GAAP measures. The following is a

reconciliation of the GAAP to non-GAAP amounts.

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006 2005
GAAP operating income $114.9 $103.4 $ 84.3
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 7.3 9.9 2.9
Secondary offering transaction costs — 1.2 1.0
FAS 123(R] expense (1] —_ — (3.4
Legal fees and expenses related to litigation settlements - — 19
QOther expense, net 12.6 — 15.1
Adjusted operating income $134.8 $1145 $101.8
GAAP net income from continuing operations $ 63.3 $ 449 $131.2
FAS 123(R] expense adjustment, net of tax (1) — — (2.1)
Other expense, net of tax 8.1 — 1.4
Gain on sale of investments in affiliated companies, net of tax - (9.8] (0.9]
Loss on early retirement of debt, net of tax — - 25.4
Tax adjustment (2] (1.9 (6.7} (119.2]
Adjusted net income $ §9.5 $ 485 $ 45.8

1) The Company adopted FAS 123(R] as of January 1, 2006. The year ended December 31, 2005 has been adjusted to reflect stock compensation expense as if it

was adopted on tanuvary 1, 2005.

[2] The 2007 tax adjustment includes a $1.9 million benefit from a change in estimate of state net deferred tax assels, The 2006 and 2005 amounts represent the

reversal of valuation allowances.,

Business Trends
The primary markets we serve continued to growin 2007, as our

custermers continue to expand their use of advanced composites.

2007 was our fourth consecutive year of sales growth, as our

average annual sales growth rate from 2003 to 2007 was 13%.

* The commercial aerospace market continued to grow in 2007,
The International Civil Aviation Organization estimates that global
passenger traffic measured as revenue passenger kilometers
increased by 5.5% in 2007. Boeing and Airbus have reported

commercial aircraft net orders of 2,754, easily surpassing the
figure of 1,834 in 2006. They made 894 new commercial aircraft
deliveries, 7.5% higher that the 832 delivered in 2004 and 53%
higher than the 2003 deliveries of 586. Both Boeing and Airbus
expect to further increase deliveries in 2008.

Reflecting the strength of our customers’ demand, our
commercial aerospace sales increased by 14% in 2007
compared to 2006 [11% in coenstant currency). Boeing and its
subcontractors, manufacturers of engines and nacelles, and

2007 Annual Report 15




regional aircraft producers as a group increased over 25% ag
compared te 2004. Airbus and its subcontractor sales ended
down about 5% from the prior year, as the comparisons for the
first half of 2007 were significantly impacted by the June 2004
announcement of the A3B0 delay. Our sales to the regional
and business aircraft markets were also strong in 2007 with
increases over 25% for the year.

2007 provided further confirmation of the longstanding trend
of the commercial aerospace industry utilizing a greater
proportion of advanced composite materials with each new
generation of aircraft. Among the new aircraft orders received
by Boeing and Airbus were orders for their new composite-rich
aircraft, currently in development. Boeing has now recorded
857 orders and commitments for its 787 Dreamliner aircraft.
Boeing has indicated that this aircraft will have at least 50%
composite content by weight, including composite wings and
fuselage, compared to the 11% composite content used in the
construction of its 777 aircraft and 6% for the 747 the aircraft
it is primarily replacing. The 787 is expected to enter into
service early in 2009. Hexcel estimates that it has $1.0 million
to $1.3 millien of content per plane. In December 2006, Airbus
announced the launch of the A350 XWB which they indicated
will also have at least 50% cemposite content by weight. Airbus
has received 320 orders to date for the A350, which is expected
to enter into service by 2013. Meanwhile, the Airbus A380
has 23% composite content by weight and has more Hexcel
material used in its production than any aircraft previously
manufactured, approximately $3 million per plane. The first
A380 was delivered to a customer in October 2007.

With continued increases in aircraft production and the
contribution of the A380 and B787 ramp-up, total 2008
commercial aerospace revenues are projected to grow in the
12% - 15% range as compared to 2007. The ramp-up of these
new programs accelerate the secular penetration story for
compaosites in commercial aerospace.

Our Space and Defense sales of $255.7 million were 15.2%
higher as compared to 2006 [12.5% in constant currencyl.
Our sales in 2006 were essentially flat compared to 2005 as
inventory adjustments at certain rotorcraft customers slowed
revenue growth in 20046, Over the two year period our sales
average annual growth was 8% per year, which is in line with
historical levels and our expectations. We continue to benefit
frorm our extensive qualifications to supply composite materials
and, in some cases, composite structures to a broad range of
military aircraft and helicopter programs around the world.
Our Industrial sales of $293.6 million were 4.8% higher as
compared to 2006 {1.7% lower in constant currencyl. Industrial
sales include wind energy, general industrial applications,
recreation and transportation. Wind energy growth was in
the mid-teens for the year as compared to 2006 in constant
currency, while capacity constraints, a weak winter sports
market and selective portfolio pruning resulted in the other
submarkets to decrease from the prior year.

Led by the expected strong growth in wind energy revenues,
Industrial sales growth should return to the mid-teens in 2008.
After a weak year for recreational and “other industrial” sales,
we expect modest growth for non-wind related sales.

In total we anticipate 2008 consolidated revenues to grow in
a range of 10% - 15% year on year, assuming the Euro and
British Pound currency exchange rates for the year of 2008 are
comparable to 2007,
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Further information regarding our outlock for 2008 is contained
inour Form 8-K dated December 6, 2007. This 8-K should be readin
conjunction with the risk factor section included in our Form 10-K.
Portfolio Review

In July of 2006, we announced our intention to explore
strategic alternatives for portions of our previously reported
Reinforcements segment. In order to take full advantage of the
many growing applications for advanced composite materials, we
decided to narrow our focus and consolidate our activities around
our carbon fiber, reinforcements for composites, honeycomb,
matrix and engineered products product lines. In doing so, we
decided to combine our Reinforcements activities related to
advanced composites with our previously reported Composites
and Structures segments into a single organization, and explore
the sale of our European Architectural business, our EBGI preduct
lines and our interest in the TechFab joint venture, previously
reported within the Reinforcements segment.

In December of 2006, we completed the sale of our interest in
TechFab LLC ["TechFab") to our joint venture partner for $22.0
miltion in cash. TechFab is headquartered in Anderson, SC and
manufactures non-woven reinforcement materials used in the
manufacture of construction and roofing materials, sail cloth and
other specialty applications. As a result of the sale, we recognized
an after-tax gain of $9.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2006.

In February of 2007, we completed the sale of our European
Architectural business. Cash proceeds from the sale were $25.0
million. As a result of the sale, we recognized an after-tax gain
of $6.5 million.

On August &, 2007, we completed the sale of the EBGI partion
of our reinforcements business. Cash proceeds from the sale,
net of transaction costs, were $58.5 million, resulting in a net
after-tax loss of $3.4 million. The sale includes up to $12.5
million of additional earnout payments contingent upon annual
sales for three years of the Ballistics product line. Any additional
payments will be recorded as income when earned.

With the completion of the EBGI sale, our previously announced
portfolio review has reached a successful conclusion, resulting
in total cash proceeds, befere any earnout payments, of $105.5
million and a net after-tax gain of $12.7 million.

Results of Operations

We have two reportable segments: Composite Materials
and Engineered Products. Although these segments provide
customers with different products and services, they often
overlap within three end business markets: Commerciat
Aerospace, Industrial and Space & Defense. Therefore, we also
find it meaningful to evaluate the performance of our segments
through the three end business markets. Further discussion and
additional financial information about our segments may be found
in Note 19 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of this Annual Report.

2007 Compared to 2006

Net Sales: Consolidated net sales of $1,171.1 million for 2007
were $121.6 millien, or 11.6% higher than the $1,049.5 million
of net sales for 2006. The increase was primarily attributable to
sales growth within Commercial Aerospace. Had the same U.S.
dollar, British Pound Sterling and Euro exchange rates applied in
2006 as in 2007 ["in constant currency”], consolidated net sales
for 2007 would have been $87.0 million, or 8.0% higher than 2006
net sales of $1,084.1 million [restated “in constant currency”
using 2007 ratesl.




The following tabte summarizes net sales to third-party custemers by segment and end market segment in 2007 and 2006:

Commerciat Space &
[In millions) Aerospace Industrial Defense Total
2007 Net Sales
Composite Materials $ 455.2 $292.4 $194.3 $ 9419
Engineered Products 166.6 1.2 61.4 229.2
Total $621.8 $293.6 $ 255.7 $1.171.1
53% 25% 22% 100%
2006 Net Sales
Composite Materials $ 409.5 $275.8 $172.9 $ 8582
Engineered Products 137.8 4.4 49.1 191.3
Total $ 8473 $280.2 $ 2220 $1,049.5
52% 27% 21% 100%

Commercial Aerospace: Net sales to the commercial
aerospace market segment increased by $74.5 million or
13.6% to $621.8 million for 2007 as compared to net sales
of $547.3 million for 2006. Net sales of the Composite
Materials segment were $45.7 mitlion higher, up 11.2%
from 2006. Net sales of the Engineered Products segment
increased by $28.8 million or 20.9% to $166.6 million in 2007.
In canstant currency, net sales to the commercial aerospace
market segment increased $43.8 million, or 11.4%.

Our overall year-over-year improvement was driven by
increases in aircraft production in 2007 by Boeing, Airbus,
their subcontractors and other aircraft manufacturers, as
well as the resultant growth in demand by aircraft engine
and nacelle manufacturers. For the year, Boeing and its
subcontractors, manufacturers of engines and nacelles, and
regional aircraft producers as a group were up over 25% as
compared to 2006. Airbus and its subcontractor sales ended
down about 5% from the prior year, as the comparisons for
the first half of 2007 were significantly impacted by the June
2006 announcement of the A3B0 delay.

We continue to pursue the increased use of advanced
composite materials in each new generation of aircraft.
Boeing and Airbus are currently developing the 787 and
A350XWB aircraft, respectively, each of which employ higher
percentage of advanced composite materials than any
previous large commercial aircraft.

Industrial: Net sales of $293.6 million for 2007 increased
by $13.4 million, or 4.8%, compared to net sales of $280.2
million in 2004. In constant currency, net sales to the
industrial market segment decreased $5.2 million or 1.7%.
This decrease was primarily due to lower revenues from
recreation and automotive applications offset in part by
strong growth in sales of composite materials used in wind
energy applications.

Sales of composite materials used to manufacture wind
turbine blades produced mid-teens percentage growth
compared to 2006, and represents the largest contributor
within our Industrial market segment. Sales to recreation
and other industrial markets for the year were down 9.2%
due to capacity constraints, selective portfolio pruning and a
weak winter sports market.

Space & Defense: Net sales of $255.7 million increased $33.7
million, or 15.2%, for 2007 as compared to net sales of $222.0
million for 2004. In constant currency, net sales increased $28.4
million, or 12.5%. Rotocraft sales across all geographic areas
was the primary contributor to the sales growth and included 3

benefit from a change in recognition of 2007 tooling revenue in
the amount of approximately $5 million. The revenues that we
derive from military and space programs tend to vary pericd to
period based on custemer ordering patterns and manufacturing
campaigns. We continue to benefit from our ability to supply
composite materials and, in some cases, composite structures
to a broad range of military aircraft and helicopter programs,
including the F/A-18E/F [Hornet), the F-22 [Raptor], the European
Fighter Aircraft (Typhoon), the C-17, the ¥-22 [Osprey] tilt rotor
aircraft, and the Blackhawk, the Tiger and the NH?0 helicopters.
In addition, the EADS A400M military transport aircraft and the
F-35 [joint strike fighter or JSF) are currently under development
and should enter low rate initial production later in the decade.

Gross Margin: Gross margin for 2007 was $283.0 million, or
24.2% of net sales, compared to gross margin of $248.5 million,
or 23.7% of net sales, in 2006. The improvement reflects primarily
the contribution of higher net sales from Commercial Aerospace,
Space & Defense and Wind Energy end markets, the product mix
of those markets and improved operating effeciencies somewhat
offset by higher maintenance, labor, freight and depreciation
expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative {"SGRA"} Expenses: SG&A
expenses were $114.0 million, or 9.7% of net sales, for 2007
compared with $105.5 million, or 10.1% of net sales, for 2006.
The $8.5 million increase in SG&A expenses reflects, among
other facters, $3.9 miltlion attributed to changes in foreign
exchange rates, an increase of $2.1 million for share-based
compensation primarily from grants issued at the beginning of
the year. The remaining is primarily due to general increases in
incentive campensation, salaries and benefits and costs related
to personnel changes.

Research and Technology Expenses: R&T expenses for 2007
were $34.2 million, or 2.9% of net sales, compared with $29.7
million, or 2.8% of net sales, for 2006. The $4.5 million increase
was due to qualification costs [i.e. costs associated with certifying
our products and processes to customer specifications] associated
with the acceleration of opportunities for composites on new
commercial aircraft programs including the Boeing 787 and
investment in the development of new products and applications.

Business Consolidation and Restructuring Expenses: Business
consolidation and restructuring expenses for 2007 were $7.3
million, compared with $9.9 million for 2006. The decrease is
primarily attributable to the establishment of a $7.4 million
accrual in the fourth quarter of 2006 related to our organizational
realignment. The 2007 expense related to this program was $2.8
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million. This decrease was offset by an increase of $2.% million
during 2007, related to our Livermore program.

Other Expense, Net: Other operating expense of $12.6 million
during 2007 consists of a $9.4 million pension settlement charge
related to previously disclosed termination of our U.S. defined
benefit plan, and a $3.2 million impairment charge related to
certain purchased technology and fixed assets related to our
portfolio realignment. We did not incur any costs classified as
other operating expense in 2006.

Operating Income: Operating income for 2007 was $114.9
million compared with operating income of $103.4 mitlion for
2004, Operating income as a percent of sales was 9.8% and
2.9% for 2007 and 2006 respectively. The $11.5 million increase
in operating income is due in part to greater sales for 2007 and
product mix of those sales resulting in anincrease in gross margin,
partially offset by other expense of $12.6 million in 2007 where
there was no such expense in 2006, and increased SG&A and
R&T expenses. One of the Company’s performance measures is
operating income adjusted for non-recurring operating expenses
and business consolidation and restructuring expenses, which is
a non-GAAP measure. Adjusted operating income for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $134.8 million and
$114.5 million or 11.5% and 10.9% as a percentage of net sales,
respectively. A reconciliation to adjusted operating income is
provided on page 15.

Operating income for the Composite Materials segment
increased $23.7 million or 19.9% to $142.8 million, as compared
to $119.1 million for 2006. The increase in operating income
is the result of an additional $83.7 million of segment revenue,
slightly offset by 8 $3.2 million impairment charge from the write-
off of previously acquired technology and certain related fixed
assets. Operating income for the Engineered Products segment
decreased by $0.5 million compared with 2006 to $21.3 million.

We did not allocate corporate operating expenses of $49.2
million and $35.8 million to segments in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The year-on-year increase in corporate operating
expenses of $13.4 million is primarily attributable to the pension
settlement expense of $9.4 million and inceased SG&A of $4.0
million from the higher stock and incentive compensation costs
and the costs related to personnel changes.

Interest Expense: Interest expense for 2007 was $21.4 million
compared to $23.6 million for 2006. The $2.2 million decrease
primarily due to lower average outstanding debt under our senior
secured credit facility resulting in a $2.8 million decrease in
expense and lower bank fees of $0.7 million. This decrease was
partially offset by a $0.5 million increase in expense related to
uncertain tax positions and a $0.7 millien decrease in capitalized
interest,

Non-Operating Expense, Net: Non-operating expense for 2007
was $1.1 million and in 2006 it was $0.1 million. Amounts reflect
the accelerated amortization of deferred financing costs as a
result of prepayments of the Company’s bank term loan with the
net proceeds from asset sales.

Provision {Benefit] for Inceme Taxes: During 2007, we recorded
a tax provision $33.4 million or 36.1% of pre-tax income. During
the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a $1.9 million benefit,
which includes an adjustment of $2.3 million to certain prior
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period balances to primarily record additional deferred tax assets
arising from state net operating loss carryforwards, offset by
other discrete items of $0.4 miltion. Excluding this benefit the
effective tax rate for the year was 38.2%. The 2006 provision
included a $4.5 million benefit for the reversal of a valuation
allowance against our U.S. deferred tax assets related to capital
losses.

As of December 31, 2007, there is a $7.7 million valuation
allowance related to current and prior year net cperating losses
generated by our Belgian and certain UK subsidiaries. Consistent
with prior years, we continue to adjust our tax provision rate
through the establishment, or release, of a non-cash valuation
allowance attributable to current Belgian and certain UK net
operating income [{osses]. This practice will continue until such
time as the Belgian and UK operations have evidenced the ability
to consistently generate sufficient taxable income such that in
future years management can reasonably expect that the deferred
tax assets can be utilized.

Equity in Earnings from and Gain on Sale of Investments in
Affiliated Companies: Equity in earnings from and gain on sale
of investments in affiliated companies during 2007 of $4.3 miltion
decreased by $15.6 million from 2006 due to the inclusion of a pre-
tax gain of $15.7 million from the sale of our interest in TechFab
LLC during 2006 to our joint venture partner for $22.0 million in
cash. For additional information, see Note 6 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of this Annual Repert.

inceme from Continuing Operations: Netincome fromcontinuing
operations was $63.3 million, or $0.64 per diluted share for the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $64.9 million, or
$0.68 per diluted common share for the year ended December
31, 2006. The decrease reflects the results discussed above.

Income [Loss] from Discontinued Operations, Net: Net loss from
discontinued operations was $2.0 million, or $0.02 per diluted
common share for the year ended December 31, 2007, which
includes a net gain of $3.1 million related to the sales of the U.5.
EBGI product lines and the European Architectural business. For
the year ended December 31, 2006, our discontinued operations
resulted in netincome of $1.0 million, or $0.01 per diluted common
share. The change in results from discontinued operations,
excluding the 2007 gain on sales, was $6.1 million, primarily
resulting from an after-tax charge of $9.7 million recognized
during 2007 related to a litigation settlement. Our net gain on the
sales of discontinued businesses consists of a $4.5 million gain on
the sale our Architectural business and a $3.4 million loss on the
sale of our U.S. EBGI product lines. For additional information,
see Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of this Annual Report.

2006 Compared to 2005

Net Sales: Consolidated net sales of $1,049.5 million for 2006
were $91.9 million, or 9.6% higher than the $957.6 million of net
sales for 2005. The increase was primarily attributable to sales
growth within Commercial Aerospace. Had the same U.S. dollar,
British Pound Sterling and Euro exchange rates applied in 2006 as
in 2005 ["in constant currency”], consolidated net sales for 2006
would have been $88.8 million higher than the 2005 net sales of
$957.6 million at $1,046.4 million.




The following table surnmarizes net sales to third-party customers by segment and end market segment in 2004 and 2005:

Commercial Space &
[ln millions) Aerospace Industrial Defense Total
2006 Net Sales
Compasite Materials $ 409.5 $275.8 $ 1729 % 858.2
Engineered Products 137.8 44 491 191.3
Total $ 547.3 $ 280.2 $ 2220 $1,049.5
52% 27% 21% 100%
2005 Net Sales
Composite Materials $ 356.7 $261.4 $ 1735 $ 7914
Engineered Products 113.8 5.8 46.4 166.0
Total $ 4705 $ 267.2 $ 219.9 $ 957.6
L9% 28% 23% 100%

Commercial Aerospace: Netsalestothecommercialaerospace
market segment increased by $76.8 million or 16.3% to $547.3
million for 2006 as compared to net sales of $470.5 million for
2005. Net sales of the Composite Materials segment were $52.8
million higher, up 14.8% from 2005. Net sales of the Engineered
Products segment were higher by $24.0 million, up 21.1% from
2002, Inconstant currency, net sales to the commercial aerospace
market segment increased $75.7 million, or 16.1%, to $5446.2
million. Qur overall year-over-year improvement was driven by
increases in aircraft production in 2006 by Boeing, Airbus and
other aircraft manufacturers, as well as the resultant growth in
demand by aircraft engine and nacelle manufacturers.

Industrial: Net sales of $280.2 million for 2006 reflected an
increase of $13.0 million, or 4.9%. compared to net sales of $267.2
million in 2005. In constant currency, net sales to the industrial
market segmentincreased $11.8 million or4.4%, to $279.0 million.
The industrial market consists primarily of wind, recreation, auto
and other industrial sub-markets. Sales of composite materials
used to manufacture wind turbine blades grew 18% compared to
2005, and represents the largest contributor within our Industrial
market segment. These results reflect the underlying growth
in global wind turbine installations. Strong sales performance
in wind and other industrial sub-markets was offset by weaker
sales from recreation due tc common volatility in recreation
equipment markets and automotive markets due to certain
programs ending.

Space & Defense: Net sales of $222.0 million increased $2.1
million, or 1.0%, for 2006 as compared to net sales of $219.9
mitlion for 2005. In constant currency, net sales increased $1.3
million to $221.2 million. Some inventory corrections at certain of
our rotorcraft customers during 2006 censtrained revenue growth
compared to 2005. The revenues that we derive from military and
space programs tend to vary period to period based on customer
ordering patterns and manufacturing campaigns. We continue to
benefit from our ability to supply composite materials and, in some
cases, compoesite structures to a broad range of military aircraft
and helicopter programs, including the F/A-18E/F (Hornet], the
F-22 [Raptor), the European Fighter Aircraft (Typhoon), the C-17,
the ¥-22 [Osprey] tilt rotor aircraft, and the Blackhawk, the Tiger
and the NH90 helicopters.

Gross Margin: Gross margin for 2006 was $248.5 million, or
23.7% of net sales, compared to gross margin of $224.2 million,
or 23.4% of net sales, in 2005. The improvernent reflects primarily
the contribution of higher net sales from Commercial Aerospace
and our continued focus on cost centainment.

Selling, General and Administrative ["SG&A"} Expenses:
SG&A expenses were $105.5 millien, or 10.1% of net sales, for
2006 compared with $97.1 million, or 10.1% of net sales, for
2005. The $8.4 mitlion increase in SG&A expenses reflects,
among other factors, an increase of $6.3 million for share-based
compensation expense following our adoption of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment ["FAS 123(R])"] and $1.1 million of disposition costs
associated with divestures.

Research and Technology Expenses: R&T expenses for 2006
were $29.7 million, or 2.8% of net sales, compared with $24.8
million, or 2.6% of net sales, for 2005, The $4.9 million increase
was due to, among other factors, increased spending in support of
new products and new commercial aircraft qualification activities
li.e. costs associated with certifying our products and processes
to customer specifications).

Other Expense, Net: We did not incur any costs classified as
other operating expense in 2006. Other expense, net for 2005 was
$15.1 million, which included an accrual of $16.5 millien for the
settlement of litigation matters, offset partially by a $1.4 million
gain on the sale of surplus land at one of our manufacturing
facilities.

Operating Income: Operating income for 2006 was $103.4
million compared with operating income of $84.3 million for 2005.
Operating income as a percent of sales was 9.9% for 2006 and
8.8% for 2005. The $19.1 million increase in operating income
is due in pari to greater sales for 2006 resulting in an increase in
gross margin, and the fact that we incurred other expense, net,
of $15.1 million in 2005 and there was no such expense in 2004.
As previously mentioned, during 2006 we incurred increased
SG&A expenses of $6.3 million primarily due to the adoption of
FAS 123[R) and increased R&T expenses of $4.9 million, primarily
attributable to an increase in qualification activities. In addition,
business consolidation and restructuring expenses increased
$7.0 million over the prior year to $9.% million. The increase
in business consolidation and restructuring expenses result
primarily from our organizational realignment and reduction of
stranded costs that will result from divestures associated with
our portfelio review, as well as the continuing costs associated
with the closure of our Livermare, California facility.

Operating income for the Composite Materials segment
increased $0.9 million or 1% to $119.1 million, as compared to
$118.2 million for 2005. Operating income for the Composite
materials segment includes $9.9 million of business consolidation
and restructuring expenses and $2.6 million in share-based
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compensation expense in 2006. Operating income for the
Engineered Products segment increased $8.3 million, resulting
primarily from higher sales volumes.

We did not allocate corporate operating expenses of $35.8
million and $47.7 million to segments in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The year-on-year decrease in corporate operating
expenses of $10.0 million is primarily attributable to expense of
$16.5 million associated with litigation settlements in 2005, offset
by increased share-based compensation expense of $3.9 millien.

Interest Expense: Interest expense for 2006 was $23.6 million
compared to $29.6 million for 2005. The $6.0 million decline
in interest expense primarily reflects a $3.5 million increase in
interest expense capitalized in 2006 as a result of our carbon
fiber capacity expansion. Refer to Note 7 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report for
additional information.

Non-Operating Expense, Net:  Naon-operating expense
for 2006 was $0.1 million compared to $40.9 million in 2005.
During 2005, we recognized $40.9 million in tosses on the
early retirement of debt, $40.3 million resulting from the first
quarter’s debt refinancing. Refer to Note 22 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report for
additional information.

Provision [Benefit) for Income Taxes: During 2006, we recorded
a tax provision $34.7 million or 43.5 % of pre-tax income. The full
year tax provision included a $4.5 million benefit of the reversal
of the valuation allowance against our U.S. deferred tax assets
related to capital losses. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we
recorded a $119.2 million benefit from the reversal of the majority
of the previously recorded valuation allowance established on our
U.S. federal, state and local deferred tax assets except for that
portion where the evidence did not yet support a reversal.

As of December 31, 2006, no evidence exists to support the
reversal of the $6.2 million valuation allowance related to our
Belgian subsidiary. Consistent with prior years, we continue
to adjust our tax provision rate through the establishment,
or release, of a non-cash valuation allowance attributable to
currently generated Belgian net operating income (losses]. This
practice will continue until such time as the Belgian operations
have evidenced the ability to consistently generate sufficient
taxable income such that in future years management can
reasonably expect that the deferred tax assets can be utilized.
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Equity in Earnings from and Gain on Sale of Investments in
Affiliated Companies: Equity in earnings from and gain on sale
of investments in affiliated companies was $19.9 million in 2006
compared to $3.6 million in 2005. During 2006, we completed
the sale of our interest in TechFab to cur joint venture partner
for $22.0 million in cash. As a result of the sale we recognized a
gain of $15.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. We recorded
equity in earnings of affiliated companies of $1.9 million and
$3.0 million during 2004 and 2005, respectively, related to the
joint venture interests sold or dissolved during 2006. Equity in
earnings of affiliated companies does not affect our cash flows.
For additional information, see Note & to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Income from Continuing Operations: Net income from
continuing operations was $64.9 million, or $0.68 per diluted
share for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $131.2
million, or $1.40 per diluted common share for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The decrease reflects the results discussed
above, primarily driven by the $119.2 million tax benefit from
the reversal of the majority of the previously recorded valuation
allowance established on our U.S. federal, state and local deferred
tax assets.

Income from Discontinued Operations, Net: Income from
discontinued operations was $1.0 million, or $0.01 per diluted
common share for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $10.1 mitlion, or $0.11 per diluted common share for the year
ended December3d1,2005. Duringthe fiscalyear ending December
31, 2007 we completed the sale of our European Architectural
business and U.S. electronics, ballistics and general industrial
products lines ["EBGI"]. In accordance with the provisions of
FAS 144 the results of operations for both businesses have been
reported as discontinued operations. For additional infarmation,
see Note 2 to the accompanying consclidated financial statements
of this Annual Report.

Deemed Preferred Dividends and Accretion: We recognized
deemed preferred dividends and accretion of $30.8 million for
2005. Included in deemed preferred dividends and accretion for
2005 are accelerated charges of $23.2 million resulting from the
conversions of mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred
stock into common stock. For additional information, see Note
11 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements of this
Annual Report.




Business Consolidation and Restructuring Programs
The aggregate business consolidation and restructuring activities for the three years ended December 31, 2007, consisted
of the fellowing:

Employee Facility &
[In millions) Severance Equipment Total
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $ 3.3 $ 1.0 $ 4.3
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 11 1.8 2.9
Cash expenditures [0.6] (2.1] 2.7
Currency translation adjustments [0.3] - (0.3)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ 35 $ 07 $ 4.2
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses: 8.0 1.9 2.9
Cash expenditures (1.4) (2.3] 3.7)
Currency translation adjustments and other adjustments 0.6 — 0.6
Balance as of December 31, 2006 $10.7 $03 $11.0
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 2.0 5.3 7.3
Cash expenditures (9.6) (5.3) 14.9)
Currency translation adjustments and other adjustments — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 31 $03 $ 3.4

December 2006 Frogram

In December 2006, we announced that we had begun the process of realigning our arganization into a single business and addressing
stranded costs that will result from divestitures associated with our portfolio realignment. During 2007 and 2006, we recorded business
consolidation and restructuring expenses of $3.0 and $7.4 million in connection with this action. We expect this program will be

substantially completed by March 31, 2008,

Business consotidation and restructuring activities for this program consisted of the following:

Employee Facility &
[In millions) Severance Equipment Total
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ - $ — $ —
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 7.4 0.2 7.6
Cash expenditures (0.4) (0.2) [0.4]
Batance as of December 31, 2004 $7.0 $ — $7.0
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 2.8 0.2 3.0
Cash expenditures (7.8] — (7.8)
Non-cash usage, including asset write-downs — (0.2) (0.2)
Currency translation adjustments 0.3 - 0.3
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $2.3 $ — $2.3

Livermore 2004 Program

In the first quarter of 2004, we anncunced our intent to
consolidate the activities of our Livermore, California facility into
other facilities, principally the Salt Lake City, Utah plant. We
recagnized $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
and $1.8 million of expense for both of the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, associated with the facility closure and
consolidation activities. We made cash payments of $6.4 and $1.4
million during 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to employee
severance and facility closure and consolidation activities. The
plant ceased operations on March 31, 2007. The Livermaore facility
has now been dismantled and the site is being remediated as part
of the preparation for the sale of the property, with the related
costs being expensed as incurred. This program had an accrued
balance of $0.1 million as of December 31, 2007 for severance
obligations and is adequate for the estimated future requirements
related to the program. Clean-up expenses will continue to be
incurred into 2008 until the land sale is completed.

November 2001 Program

In November 2001, we announced a program to restructure
business operations as a result of reductions in commercial
aircraft preduction rates. There was minimal activity in
the program during 2005, 2006 and 2007 as this program is
substantially complete. During 2007 we reduced our accrued
balance related to this pragram by $0.9 million as the statute of
limitations expired related to certain recorded liabilities. As of
December 31, 2007, the accrued balances related to this program
are for future severance obligations of $0.6 million and lease
payments of $0.2 million that will continue into 2009 and are
adequate for the estimated future requirements related to the
program.

Retirement and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

We maintain qualified and nonqualified defined benefit
retirement plans covering certain current and former U.S.
and European employees, as well as retirement savings plans
covering eligible U.S. employees, and participate in a union
sponsored multi-employer pension plan covering certain U.S.
employees with union affiliations. In addition, we provide certain
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postretirement health care and life insurance benefits to eligible
U.S. retirees, Benefits under the defined benefit retirement
plans are generally based on years of service and employee
compensation under either a career average or final pay benefits
methed. Depending on the plan, postretirement health care and
life insurance benefits are available to eligible employees who
retire on or after age 58 or 45 after rendering a minimum of 15
or 25 years of service, respectively. We also make profit sharing
contributions when we meet or exceed certain performance
targets, which are set annually.

Under the retirement savings plans, eligible U.S. employees can
contribute up to 20% of their compensation to an individual 401{k}
retirement savings account. We make matching contributions
equal to 50% of employee contributions, not to exceed 3% of
employee compensation.

Effective December 31, 2000, we made certain changes to
our U.S. retirement benefit plans that were intended to improve
the flexibility and visibility of future retirement benefits for
employees. These changes included an increase in the amount
that we contributed to individual 401(k] retirement savings
accounts and an offsetting curtailment of our U.S. qualified
defined benefit retirement plan ("U.S. Qualified Plan”). Beginning
January 1, 2001, we started to contribute an additional 2% to
3% of each eligible employee's salary to an individual 401(k)
retirement savings account, depending on the employee’s age.
This increases the maximum contribution to individual employee
savings accounts to between 5% and 6% per year, before any profit
sharing contributions. Offsetting the estimated incremental cost
of this additional benefit, participants in our U.S. Qualified Plan
no longer accrued benefits under this plan after December 31,
2000, and no new employees will become participants. However,
employees retained alt benefits earned under this plan as of
that date.

In December 2006, our Board of Directors voted to terminate
the U.S. Qualified Plan. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we
obtained approvalfromthe Pension Benefit Guarentee Corporation
and the Internal Revenue Service to proceed with the termination
of the U.S. Qualified Defined Benefit Plan. In December 2007 we
began the process of distributing lump-sum benefit payments
and purchasing annuity cantracts for all the U.S. gualified plan
participants. During December, we distributed $19.7 million out
of the pension fund in the form of lump-sum payments. Cash
contributions from Hexcel to the pension fund for the lump sum
distributions were $3.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 and
an additional $8 million is anticipated to be made in the first
quarter of 2008 to complete the liguidation.

We continue to maintain our defined benefit retirement plans
in the United Kingdom, Belgium, and Austria covering certain
ermployees of our subsidiaries in those countries. The defined
benefit plan in the United Kingdom [the "U.K. Plan"] is the largest
of the European plans. As of December 31, 2007, 85% of the
total assets in the UK. Plan were invested in equities. Equity
investments are made with the objective of achieving a return on
plan assets consistent with the funding requirements of the plan,
maximizing portfolio return and minimizing the impact of market
fluctuations on the fair value of the plan assets. We use long-
term historical actual return experience to develop the expected
long-term rate of return assumptions used in the net periodic
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cost calculations of our UK. Plan. As aresult of an annual review
of historical returns and market trends, the expected long-term
weighted average rate of return for the U.K. Plan for the 2008 plan
year will be 5.9%.

We account for our defined benefit retirement plans and our
postretirernent benefit plans using actuarial madels required by
Staterment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’
Accounting for Pensions {"FAS 877), No. 88, Employers™ Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and for Termination Benefits ["FAS 88", No. 106, Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions ["FAS
106"} and No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

These actuarial models require the use of certain assumptions,
such as the expected long-term rate of return, discount rate,
rate of compensation increase, healthcare cost trend rates, and
retirement and mortality rates, to determine the net periodic
costs of such ptans. These assumptions are reviewed and set
annually at the beginning of each year. In addition, these models
use an “attribution approach” that generally spreads individual
events, such as plan amendments and changes in actuarial
assumptions, over the service lives of the employees in the plan.
That is, employees render service over their service lives on a
relatively smooth basis and therefore, the income statement
effects of retirement and postretirement benefit plans are earned
in, and should follow, the same pattern.

We use our actual return experience, future expectations of
long-term investment returns, and our actural and targeted asset
allocations to develop our expected rate of return assumption
used in the net periodic cost calculations of our funded U.S. and
European defined benefit retirement plans. Due to the difficulty
involved in predicting the market performance of certain assets,
there will atmost always be a difference in any given year between
our expected return on plan assets and the actual return.
Following the attribution approach, each year’s difference is
amortized over a number of future years. Over time, the expected
long-term returns are designed to approximate the actual long-
term returns and therefore result in a pattern of income and
expense recognition that more closely matches the pattern of the
services provided by the employees.

We annually set our discount rate assumption for retirement-
related benefits accounting to reflect the rates available on
high-quality, fixed-income debt instruments. The discount rate
assumption used to calculate net periodic retirememt related
costs for the U.S. funded plan was 4.75% for each of the last
three years. The rate of compensation increase, which is another
significant assumption used in the actuarial model for pension
accounting, is determined by us based upon our long-term plans
for such increases and assumed inflation. These rates used have
remained relatively constant over the past three years and are
expected to remain constant for 2008. For the postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits plan, we review external
data and its historical trends for health care costs to determine
the health care cost trend rates. Retirement and mortality rates
are based primarily on actual plan experience.

In connection with our decision to terminate the U.5. Qualified
Plan, we made the decision to liquidate all our equity investmenis




in the plan. As such, as of December 31, 2006, our cash balances
in this plan exceed the plan's targeted range. Such cash
balances were invested in high quality government securities
with maturities of one year or less as the termination process
continues. In addition, the U.5. Qualified Plan's managed fixed
income portfolio was liguidated during 2007. The expected return
on plan assets assumption for 2007 reflected this change in
investment allocation.

Actual results that differ from our assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future pericds and, therefore,
generally affect the net periodic costs and recorded obligations
in such future periods. While we believe that the assumptions
used are appropriate, significant changes in economic or other
conditions, employee demographics, retirement and mortality
rates, and investment performance may materially impact such
costs and obligations.

For more information regarding our pension and ather
postretirement benefit plans, see Note 9 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Significant Customers

Approximately 25%, 24%, and 23% of our 2007, 2006, and 2005
net sales, respectively, were to The Boeing Company {"Boeing”|
and related subcontractors. Of the 25% of sales to Boeing and its
subcontractors in 2007, 20.7% related to commercial aerospace
marketapplications and 4.5% related to space and defense market
applications. Approximately 22%, 26%, and 27% of our 2007, 2004,
and 2005 net sales, respectively, were to European Aeronautic
Defence and Space Company ["EADS”), including its business
division Airbus Industrie ("Airbus”], and its subcentractors. Of
the 22% of sales to EADS and its subcontractors in 2007, 18.8%
related to commercial aerospace market applications and 3.3%
related to space and defense market applications.

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Commercial:
Boeing and
subcontractors $242.6 $189.5 $154.5
EADS and
subcontractors 219.9 232.3 215.9
Total $462.5 $421.8 $370.4
Space & Defense:
Boeing and
subcontractors $ 528 $ 60.7 $ 633
EADS and
subcontractors 38.9 38.2 40.6
Total $ 9.7 $ 989 $103.9

Financial Condition

Liguidity: During the first quarter of 2005, we refinanced
substantially all of our long-term debt. In connection with the
refinancing, we entered inte a $350.0 million senior secured
credit facility [the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”], consisting of
a $225.0 million term loan and a $125.0 million revelving loan. In
addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facitity permits us to issue
letters of credit up to an aggregate amount of $40.0 million. Any
outstanding letters of credit reduce the amount available for
borrowing under the revolving loan. As of December 31, 2007, the
term loan had a remaining outstanding balance of $87.5 million,

we had no amounts outstanding on the revolving loan and had
issued letters of credit under the Senior Secured Credit Facility
totaling $10.7 million, Cash and cash equivalents as of December
31, 2007 was $28.1 mitlion. Total undrawn availability under the
Seniar Secured Credit Facility was $114.3 million as of December
31, 2007. Our total debt as of December 31, 2007 was $315.9
million, a decrease of $94.4 million from the December 31, 20046
balance.

Net cash from operating activities is our primary source of
funds to finance working capital and capital expenditures each
year. Over the last three years, net cash from operating activities
has provided a source of funds ranging between $54.4 million
and $106.3 million per year. Shert-term liquidity requirements
consist primarily of normal recurring operating expenses; costs
related to our retirement benefit plans; capital expenditures
and debt service requirements. We expect to meet these short-
term requirements through net cash from operating activities
and our revolving credit facility. Total undrawn availability
under the Senior Secured Credit Facility as of December 31,
2007 was $114.3 million, as we had no amounts outstanding on
the revolving loan. The levels of available borrowing capacity
fluctuate during the course of a year due to factors including,
capital expenditures, interest and incentive plan payments, as
well as timing of receipts and disbursements within the normat
course of business. As of December 31, 2007, our long-term
liguidity requirements consisted primarily of obligations under
our leng-term debt obligations. We expect to meet long-term
liquidity requirements through cash provided from operations,
and if necessary, supplemented with long-term borrowings and
other debt or equity financing. The availability and terms of any
such financing will depend upon market and other conditions at
the time.

Recent events in the credit markets have had an adverse
impact on the financial markets. We have not been and do not
currently expect to be significantly affected by the distress being
experienced in the credit markets.

Credit Facilities: On March 1, 2005, we entered into a $350.0
miltion senior secured credit facility, consisting of a $225.0 miltion
term loan and a $125.0 million revolving loan. The term toan
under the Senior Secured Credit Facility is scheduled to mature
on March 1, 2012 and the revolving loan under the Senior Secured
Credit Facility is scheduled to expire on March 1, 2010. Term
toan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility bear
interest at a floating rate based on the agent's defined “prime
rate” ptus a margin that can vary from 0.50% to 0.75% or LIBOR
plus a margin that can vary from 1.50% to 1.75%, while revolving
loan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility bear
interest at a floating rate based on either the agents defined
“prime rate” plus a margin that can vary from 0.25% to 1.00%,
or LIBOR plus a margin that can vary frem 1.25% to 2.00%. The
rmargin in effect for a borrowing at any given point depends on our
leverage. Effective as of November 1, 2007, the interest rate on
the revolving lean stepped down to LIBOR plus 125 bps from an
interest rate of LIBOR ptus 175 bps, and the interest on the term
loan stepped down to LIBOR plus 150 bps from an interest rate of
175 bps. The Senior Secured Credit Facility is secured by a pledge
of assets that includes, among other things, the receivables,
inventory, property, ptant and equipment and intellectual property
of Hexcel Corporation and our material U.5. subsidiaries and 65%
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of the share capital of our Danish subsidiary and first-tier U.K.
subsidiary. In addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facility permits
us to issue letters of credit up to an aggregate amount of $40.0
million, of which $10.7 million were outstanding as of December
31, 2007. Any outstanding letters of credit reduce the amount
available for borrowing under the revolving loan,

We are required to maintain various financial ratios throughout
the term of the Senier Secured Credit Facility. These financial
covenants set maximum values for our leverage (the ratio of total
debt to EBITDA], interest coverage [the ratio of EBITDA to book
interest), and capital expenditures [not to exceed specified annual
expenditures]. The Senior Secured Credit Facility also contains
limitations on, amang other things, incurring debt, granting liens,
making investments, making restricted payments, including
dividends, entering into transactions with affiliates and prepaying
subordinated debt. In addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facility
contains other customary terms relating to, among other things,
representations and warranties, additional covenants and events
of default. At December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with the
financial covenants under the Senior Secured Credit Facility.

We have available European credit and overdraft facilities,
which can be utilized to meet short-term working capital and
operating cash requirements. These European credit and
overdraft facilities are uncommitted lines and can be terminated
at the option of the lender. We had no outstanding borrowings
under these facilities as of Decernber 31, 2007.

Operating Activities: We generated $106.3 million from
operating activities of continuing operations during 2007, an
increase of $8.0 million from 2006, Net income generated from
continuing operations plus non-cash charges [depreciation and
amortization) contributed $103.1 million of cash flow. The 2007
cash from operating activities did benefit from a $21.0 million
increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as a result
of the timing of expenditures in December 2007, that resulted in
payments in January 2008. Cash used for inventory increased
by $4.7 million during 2007. We made contributions to our post
retirement plans during 2067 of $13.0 million, including $5.9
million specifically related to our U.S. qualified pension plan. The
contributions to post retirement plans during 2006 and 2005 were
$7.7 million and $7.1 million, respectively.

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing
operations was $98.3 million in 2006 as compared to $54.4
million generated in 2005. The year-on-year increase of $43.9
million was primarily attributable the gain on sate of our interest
in the TechFab joint venture in 2006 and litigation settlements
of $23.3 million paid during 2005. Business consolidation and
restructuring payments of $9.% million during 2006 were $7.0
million higher than in 2005. Changes in net working capital
increased in 2006 reflecting the impact of increased accounts
receivable and inventories combined with a decrease in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. Dividends of $1.3 million and $3.1
million were received from an affiliated company during 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Investing Activities: Net cash used for investing activities of
continuing operations was $37.4 million in 2007 compared to
$95.4 million in 2006. We made capital expenditures of $120.6
million and $117.9 million during 2007 and 2006, respectively,
primarily related to our carbon fiber expansien programs,
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discussed in further detail below. During 2007, we received total
proceeds of $84.0 million in connection with the sales of our
EBGI and European Architectural businesses. During 2006, we
received proceeds of $22.0 million in connection with the sale of
our ownership interest in Techfab, an affiliated company.

With increased demand for our products, we made capital
expenditures in 2006 and 2007 to increase our manufacturing
capacity, and will make further expenditures in 2008. Capital
expenditures for 2008 are projected to be approximately $150
million.

Financing Activities: Net cash used for financing activities of
continuing operations was $75.5 million during 2007. This use of
cash was primarily due to repayments of long-term debt totaling
$96.2 million during the year, generated from the asset sales
mentioned above. During 2007, we received $21.3 million from
activity under stock plans.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.5 million
during 2006. During 2006, we received $10.6 million from activity
under stock plans. In addition, we made net payments of $6.4
million on the outstanding balance of our senior secured credit
facility and made capital lease payments and other debt of $1.7
million

Net cash used for financing activities was $40.7 million in
2005. During 2005, we refinanced substantially all of our {ong-
term debt. In connection with the refinancing, we entered into a
$350.0 million senior secured credit facility, consisting of a $225.0
million term loan and a $125.0 million revolving loan. Borrowings
as of December 31, 2005 under the Senior Secured Credit Facility
were $190.0 million, censisting of $185.0 million of term loans
and $5.0 million of revolver loans. In addition, we issued $225.0
million principal amount of 6.75% senior subordinated notes,
due 2015. The Senior Secured Credit Facility replaced our then
existing $115.0 million five-year secured revolving credit facility.
Proceeds from the Senior Secured Credit Facitity and the new
senior subordinated notes were used to redeem $285.3 million
principal amount of the 9.75% senior subordinated notes due
2009, repurchase $125.0 million principal amount of the 9.875%
senior secured notes due 2008, redeem $19.2 million principal
amount of the 7.0% convertible subordinated debentures, due
2011, and pay $42.1 million of cash transaction costs related to
the refinancing.

Financial Obligations and Commitments: As of December
31, 2007, current maturities of notes payable and capital lease
obligations were $0.4 million related entirely to amounts due
under capital lease obligations. The Eurepean credit and overdrait
facilities available to certain of our European subsidiaries by
lenders outside of the Senior Secured Credit Facility are primarily
uncommitted facilities that are terminable at the discretion of the
lenders. We have entered into several capital teases for buildings
and warehouses with expirations through 2012, In addition, certain
sales and administrative offices, data processing equipment and
manufacturing facilities are leased under operating leases.

Total letters of credit issued and outstanding under the Senior
Secured Credit Facility were $10.7 million as of December 31,
2007. We had no letters of credit issued separately from this
credit facility. While the letters of credit issued will expire under
their terms in 2008, we expect $3.3 million will be re-issued.




The following table summarizes the scheduled maturities as of December 31, 2007 of financial obligations and expiration dates of
cormmitments for the years ended 2008 through 2012 and thereafter.

[tn millions} 2008 2009 2010 201 2012 Thereafter Total
Senior secured credit facility - revolver

due 2010 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 - & -
Senior secured credit facility - term B

loan due 2012 — 0.9 0.9 64.3 21.4 - 87.5
European credit and overdraft facilities - - - - - - -
6.75% senior subordinated notes due 2015 — - — - - 2250 225.0
Capital leases 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 2.2 3.4

Subtotal 0.4 1.2 1.2 bbb 21.5 227.2 315.9
Operating leases 5.6 4.2 3.0 2.4 1.4 4.5 21.%
Total financial obligations $ 6.0 $ 5.4 $ 4.2 $ 468 $22.9 $231.7 $337.0
Letters of credit $ 107 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ - $ 107
Interest payments 20.2 20.2 19.4 18.1 15.8 38.0 131.7
Benefit plan contributions 1.2 - - - - - 11.2
Other commitments 6.1 — — — — — 6.1
Total commitments $ 48.2 $20.2 $19.4 %181 %158 $ 38.0 $159.7

For further information regarding our financial obligations and
commitments, see Notes 7, 8, 9, 15 and 14 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared based upon
the selection and application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require us to
make estimates and assumpticns about future events that affect
amounts reported in our financiat statements and accompanying
notes. Future events and their effects cannot be determined with
absolute certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates
requires the exercise of judgment. Actual results could differ from
those estimates, and any such differences may be significant to
the financial statements. The accounting policies below are those
we believe are the most critical to the preparation of our financial
statements and require the most difficult, subjective and complex
judgments. Qur other accounting policies are described in the
accompanying nates to the consolidated financial statements of
this Annual Report.

Accounts Receivable

We ensure that accounts receivable balances are reported at
net realizable value by establishing an appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtfut accounts is based
upon, among other factors, a review of the credit-worthiness of
our customers, our historical loss experience, and the economic
environment within which we operate, and requires a considerable
amount of judgment. We estimate our allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon two sets of criteria: a review of specifically
identified individual customer accounts that are evaluated for
collectibility, and an overall evaluation of the collectibility of aur
total accounts receivable.

Individual specific customer accounts are reviewed for
collectibility when, based upon current information and events,
there exists a potential write-off of all, or a portion, of a
customer’s outstanding receivable balance. Factors considered
in assessing collectibility include a customer’s extended payment

delinquency, an assessment of a customer’s credit-worthiness
and a consideration of a customer’s request for restructuring, or
its filing for protection under the bankruptcy code. An allowance
for doubtful accounts is established based upon our assessment
of the uncollectible portion of the accounts receivable balance.

In addition, an overall evaluation of the collectibility of our total
accounts receivable balance is performed by giving consideration
to such factors as past collection experience, available credit
insurance, customer and industry trends, economic and market
conditions, the financial condition of customers [i.e. bankruptcy,
liens, increases in days sales outstandingl, and current overall
aging trends when compared to the previous years’ aging of
accounts receivable. Based upon this evaluation, an additional
allowance for doubtful accounts may be established.

Our total allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31,
2007 and 2006 was $2.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively,
representing approximately 1.1% of grass accounts receivable
at December 31, 2007 and 0.9% of gross accounts receivable at
December 31, 2006.

Inventories

We ensure that inventories are reported at the lower of cost or
market by establishing appropriate reserves for excess, absolete
and unmarketable inventories and, if appropriate, reducing
inventoriestocurrentestimated marketvalues. Costisdetermined
using the standard cost method for our Composite Materials
segment and by either the weighted average cost method ar the
standard cost method for our Engineered Products segment.
Cost of inventories includes the cost of raw material, purchased
parts, labor and production overhead cost. We regularly review
inventory quantities on hand and record a reserve for excess
and obsolete inventories based primarily on age of inventory,
historical usage and the estimated forecast of product demand
and production requirements. Qur estimates of future product
demand rmay prove to be inaccurate, in which case we may have
understated or overstated the provision required for excess and
obsolete inventories. When we have determined that our current
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inventory tevels exceed future demand, inventories are adjusted
by increasing reserve balances and recording a charge to cost
of goods sold at the time of such determination thus reducing
inventories to estimated net realizable value. In instances where
it is determined that current inventory levels are deemed to be
lower than estimated future demand, no adjustment is required.

Our inventary reserves at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
$19.5 million and $14.9 million, respectively, representing 9.8%
and 9.0% of gross inventories at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Product Warranties

We provide for an estimated amount of potential liability related
to product warranty. The amount of the warranty liability accrued
reflects our estimate of the expected future costs of warranty
claims. The estimate for warranty obligations is applicable te both
of our segments, and is estimated on the basis of two components:
a review of specifically identified potential warranty claims, and
an overall evaluation of potential product warranty liability. The
warranty reserve established is reviewed periodically, and at least
quarterly, for adequacy and appropriateness of amount.

Individual specific warranty claims are reviewed for possible
accrual when, based upon current information and events, a
potential individual warranty matter has been identified. In
those instances when judgment would indicate that an accrual
is appropriate, and when the estimated financial impact is
deemed to be significant, a product warranty claim liability
will be established. Specific accruals are supported by written
docurnentation from cur sales and marketing organization that
would include the nature of the issue, the expected resolution
date and estimated amount or range of liability. We would
accrue for the estimated warranty claim at an amount no less
than the minimum estimated potential liability and no more than
the potential maximum estimated amount. The accrual amount
may change only with documentation of a specific change in the
estimated impact amount ar range of petential liability.

In addition, an overall evaluation of the adequacy of the accrual
for product warranty liability is performed to address warranty
claims that are in process, or expected to be processed. The
adequacy of the accrual is estimated after giving consideration
to the dollar amount of open warranty claims in process, the
expected cost of rework versus replacement, and historical
expense levels for non-significant claims versus sales levels.

While we engage in extensive product quality programs and
processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality
of our component and material suppliers, our product warranty
obligations are affected by product failure rates and material
usage. Should actual product failure rates and material usage
differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated product
warranty costs would be required.

Qur accrual for product warranties at December 31, 2007 and
2006 was $2.9 million and $4.6 million, respectively. Our product
warranty expense was $1.8 and $3.3 million for the years ended
2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Deferred Tax Assels

As of December 31, 2007, we have $105.8 million in net deferred
tax assets consisting of deferred tax assets of $151.2 million
offset by deferred tax liabilities of $16.5 million and a valuation
allowance of $28.9 million. The net deferred tax asset balance of
$122.8 million as of December 31, 2006 consisted of deferred tax
assets of $162.3 million offset by deferred tax liabilities of $13.1
million and a valuation allowance of $26.4 million.

The determination of the required valuation allowance and the
amount, if any, of deferred tax assets to be recognized involves
significant estimates regarding the timing and amount of reversal
of taxable temporary differences, future taxable income and
the implementation of tax planning strategies. In particular,
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes ['FAS 1097}, requires us to weigh both positive
and negative evidence in determining whether a valuation
allowance is required. Positive evidence would include, for
example, a strong earnings history, an event that will reduce our
taxable income through a continuing reduction in expenses, and
tax planning strategies indicating an ability to realize deferred tax
assets. Negative evidence would include, for example, a history
of operating losses and losses expected in future years.

Included in the provision for income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2006, was the reversal of $4.5 million of the
valuation allowance against our U.5. deferred tax assets related
to capital losses. The reversal has been made in connection with
the sale of our investment in TechFab, which resulted in a gain
that is expected to utilize a capital loss.

On December 31, 2005, we recognized through our tax
provision, a $119.2 million reversal representing the majority
of the previously recorded U.S. deferred tax asset valuation
allowance. In assessing the ability to realize our deferred tax
assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized based
on available positive and negative evidence. We considered
historical book income, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, and projected future book and taxable income in making
this assessment. Based upon a detailed analysis of historicat
and expected book and taxable income, we determined that the
realization of certain U.S. deferred tax assets for which a valuation
atlowance had been previously recorded is considered to be more
likely than not for purposes of reversing the vatuation allowance.
In addition, as part of the reversal we increased the additional
paid-in capital by $10.8 millien for the tax benefit related to the
conversion of restricted stock units and the exercise of stock
options embedded in the net operating losses and tax affected
the balances held in "accumulated other comprehensive loss”,

The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
relates to certain net operating loss carryforwards of our
Belgian and certain U.K. subsidiaries, certain state temporary
differences, state net operating loss carryforwards and capital
loss carryforwards for which we have determined, based
upon historical results and projected future book and taxable
income levels, that a valuation ailowance should centinue to be
maintained.




In the fourth quarter of 2004, we identified errors in our
accounting for certain deferred tax assets as of December 31,
2005. These errors have been corrected under the provisions
of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Censidering the Effects
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements ["SAB 108"]. Specifically, the
accounting for the deferred tax asset arising from the minimum
pension obligation reflected in AQCI as of December 31, 2005 was
overstated and resulted in an overstatement of the release of
the valuation allowance against our U.S. net deferred tax assets
as of that date. Additionally, we identified unrecorded deferred
tax assets as of December 31, 2005 primarily related to general
business and foreign tax credits, and capital loss carryforwards,
The impact of these adjustments is a net increase in deferred tax
assets of $10.3 million and an increase in the valuation allowance
of $13.8 million.

Uncertain Tax Positions

On January 1, 2007 we adopted the provisions of FASB
interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
I"FIN 48"). As of December 31, 2007, we had uncertain tax
positions for which it is reasonably possible that amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits could significantly change over the next
year. These uncertain tax positions relate to our tax returns from
2003 onward, some of which are currently under examinaticn by
certain European taxing authorities. We are unable to provide
an estimate of possible change to the unrecognized tax benefits
related to these tax positions. However, we expect that the
amount of unrecognized tax benefits will continue to change in
the next twelve months as a result of ongoing tax deductions, the
resolutions of audits and the passing of the statute of limitations.
During the third quarter of 2007, the Company favorably settled an
income tax audit in one of its internaticnal locations. As a result
of this settlement, the company reversed certain tax reserves
related to the audit, which had been previously established under
FIN 48. The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits as of December
31, 2007 tataled $18.0 million.

Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

We have significant long-lived assets. We review these assets
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The assessment of possible impairment is based
upon our ability to recover the carrying value of the assets from
the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows, before interest
and taxes, of the related operations. If these cash flows are
less than the carrying value of such assets, an impairment loss
is recognized for the difference between estimated fair value
and carrying value. The measurement of impairment requires
estimates of these cash flows and fair value. The calculation
of fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows. In
determining fair value a considerable amount of judgment is
required in determining discount rates, market premiums,
financial forecasts, and asset lives. In 2007, the impairment
review tndicated the fair value of certain purchased intangible
assets and fixed assets were less than the carrying amount of
the assets, we therefore recorded an impairment charge of $3.2
million during the fourth quarter of 2007.

In addition, we review goodwill for impairment at the reporting
unit level at least annually, and whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. A
reporting unit is the lowest level of an entity that is a business
and can be distinguished from other activities, operations, and
assets of the entity. Within the Composite Materials segment,
the reporting units are one level below the operating segment.
We have four reporting units within the Compaosite Materials
segment, each of which are components that constitute a business
for which discrete financial information is available and for which
appropriate management regularly reviews the operating results.
Within the Engineered Products segment, the reporting units is
the segment as it comprises only a single compenent. If, during
the annual impairment review, the book value of the reporting
unit exceeds the fair value, the implied fair value of the reporting
unit's goodwill is compared with the carrying amount of the unit’s
goodwill. If the carrying amount exceeds the implied fair value,
goodwill is written down to its implied value. The implied fair
value of goodwill is determined as the difference between the fair
value of a reporting unit, taken as a whole, and the fair value of
the assets and liabilities of such reporting unit. The calculation
of fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows.
Key assumptions used in the calculation included conservative
revenue growth and increases in costs based upon the projectad
revenue growth but adjusted for anticipated efficiencies from
volume increases. In determining fair value a considerable
amount of judgment is required in determining discount rates,
market premiums, financial forecasts and is based upen the best
information available as of the date of the review. Future cash
flows can be affected by changes in industry or market conditions.
During the fourth quarter of 2007, we updated valuations for all
reporting units with goodwill using discounted cash flow analyses,
based upon estimated forward-looking infermation regarding
market share, revenues and costs for each reporting unit as well
as appropriate discount rates. As a result of these valuations, we
determined that goodwill was not impaired.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted FAS 123[R), using the
modified prospective transition method. FAS 123[R) requires
the measurement and recognition of compensation expense
for all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors based on estimated fair velues on the grant date using
an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award
that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense on
a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods in our
condensed consolidated statement of operations. FAS 123[R}
requires that forfeitures be estimated at the time of grant in order
to estimate the amount of share-hased awards that will ultimately
vest. Furthermore, FAS 123[R] requires the maonitoring of actual
forfeitures and the subsequent adjustment to forfeiture rates to
reflect actual forfeitures. Share-based compensation expense
recognized in the condensed consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes (il compensation
expense for share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet
vested as of December 31, 2005, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, (i) and compensation expense for share-
based awards granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on
the fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS
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123(R). Share-based compensation expense capitalized for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was not material.

Prior to our adoption of FAS 123[R], stock-based compensation
was accounted for under the intrinsic value method in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Cpinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees ["APB 257), as allowed under FAS 123.
Under the intrinsic value method in APB 25, we did not record any
compensation cost related to stock options issued in the majority
of instances since the exercise price of stock options granted to
employees equaled the market price of our stock at the date of
grant. However, for restricted stock awards, the intrinsic value
as of the date of grant was amortized to compensation expense
over the vesting period.

Restricted stock units ["RSUs”] are grants that entitle the
holder to shares of common stock as the award vests (generally
over three years]. Performance accelerated restricted stock units
("PARs"] are a form of RSU which are convertibte to an equal
number of shares of our comman stock and generally vest at
the end of a seven-year period or sooner upen the attainment of
certain financial or stock performance abjectives. Performance
restricted stock units ["PRSUs”] are a form of RSUs in which the
number of shares ultimately received depends on the extent to
which we achieve a specified performance target. The number
of PRSUs is based on a two-year performance period and the
awards will generally vest after a subsequent one-year service
period. At the end of the performance period, the number of
shares of stock to be issued will be determined based on the
extent to which the pre-determined performance criteria is met,
and can range between 0% and 150% of the target amount. The
final performance percentage, on which the payout will be based,
considering performance metrics established for the performance
period, will be certified by our Board of Directors or a Committee
of the Board after the conclusion of the performance period.

We estimated the fair value of stock options at the grant
date using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions as for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 200é:

2007 2006
Risk-free interest rate 4.B4% 4.50%
Expected option life [in years)

Executive 597 5.90
Expected option life lin years]

Non-Executive 5.24 5.43
Dividend yield —% —%
Volatility 40.94% 46.44%
Weighted-average fair value per

option granted $ 8.41 $10.87

We determine the expected option life for each grant based on
ten years of historical option activity for two separate groups of
employees (executive and non-executive]. The weighted-average
expected life ("WAEL'] is derived from the average midpoint
between the vesting and the contractual term and considers
the effect of both the inclusion and exclusion of post-vesting
cancellations during the ten-year period. Expected volatility
is calculated based on a blend of both historic volatility of our
common stock and implied volatility of our traded options. We
weigh both volatility inputs equally and utilize the average as the
volatility input for the Black-Scholes calculation. Consistent with
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2006, the risk-free interest rate for the expected term is based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Mo
dividends were paid in either period; furthermore, we do not plan
to pay any dividends in the future.

Prior to 2006, we determined expected volatility based on
actual historic volatility. With the adoption of FAS 123(R), we
determined expected volatility based on a blend of both historic
volatility of our common stock and implied volatility of our traded
options. We weighed both volatility inputs equally and took an
average of both the historic and implied volatility to arrive at the
volatility input for the Black-Scholes calculation. Cansistent with
2005, the risk-free interest rate for the expected term is based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. No
dividends were paid in either period; furthermore, we do not plan
to pay any dividends in the future.

Our 2006 and 2007 stock option, RSU, and PRSU agreements
contain certain provisions related to the retirement of an employee.
Employees who terminate employment other than for "cause” [as
defined in the relevant employee option or RSU agreement], and
who meet the definition of retirement in the relevant employee
option or RSU agreement (age 65 or age 55 with 5 or more years
of service with the companyl, will continue to have their options
or RSUs vest in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in
the option or RSU agreement. Prior to 2005, our stock incentive
agreements for a small group of senior executives contained
such a retirement provision and, upon the executive’s retirement,
the option or RSU fully vests. RSUs and optiens are deemed to be
vested when an employee meets the definition of retirement. The
treatment of PRSUs upon retirement differs from that of optiens
and RSUs, as anemployeewhois retirementeligible is only entitled
to a pro-rata portion of his shares based on the portion of the
performance period prior to retirement and based on the extent
to which the performance criteria is met; however, if employed
at the end of the performance period he is entitled to the entire
grant (based on the extent to which the performance criteria is
metl. As a result of these provisions, under the terms of FAS
123(R), we have accelerated the recognition of the compensation
expense for any employee who received a grant in either 2006 or
2007 and who met the above definition of retirement eligibility, or
who will meet the definition during the vesting period. Prior to
our adoption of FAS 123(R], we did not recognize any additional
expense in our consolidated results of operations or our pro-
forma disclosures as a result of these retirement provisions until
the date upon which an eligible employee retired.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in litigation, investigations and claims arising
out of the normal conduct of our business, including those relating
to commercial transactions, environmental, health and safety
matters. We estimate and accrue our liabilities resulting from
such matters based upon a variety of factors, including the stage
of the proceeding; potential settlement value; assessments by
internal and external counsel; and assessments by environmental
engineers and consultants of potential environmental liabilities
and remediation costs. We believe we have adequately accrued
for these potential liabilities; however, facts and circumstances
may change, such as new developments, or a change in approach,
including a change in settlement strategy or in an environmental
remediation plan, that could cause the actual liability to exceed
the estimates, or may require adjustments to the recorded liability
balances in the future.




Qur estimate of liability as a PRP and our remaining costs
associated with our responsibility to remediate the Lodi, New
Jersey; Kent, Washington; and other sites are accrued in the
consolidated batance sheets. As of December 31, 2007 and 2004,
our aggregate environmental related accruals were $3.2 million
and $5.3 millien, respectively. As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, $2.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, was included in
current other accrued liabilities, with the remainder included in
other non-current liabilities. As related to certain environmental
matters, the accrual was estimated at the low end of a range of
possible outcomes since no amount within the range is a better
estimate than any other amount. If we had accrued for these
matters at the high end of the range of possible outcomes, our
accrual would have been $4.6 million and $2.7 million higher at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

These accruals can change significantly from period to period
due ta such factors as additional information on the nature or
extent of contamination, the methods of remediation required,
changes in the apportionment of costs among responsible parties
and other actions by governmental agencies or private parties, or
the impact, if any, of being named in a new matter.

Interest Rate Risks

Qur iong-term debt bears interest at both fixed and variable
rates. From time to time we have entered into interest rate swap
agreements to change the underlying mix of variable and fixed
interest rate debt. These interest rate swap agreements have
modified the percentage of total debt that is exposed to changes
in market interest rates. Assuming a 10% favorable and a 10%
unfavorable change in the underlying weighted average interest
rates of our variable rate debt and swap agreements, interest
expense for 2007 of $21.4 million would have decreased to $20.7
million and increased to $22.1 millign, respectively.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In May 2005, we entered into an agreement to swap $50.0
million of a floating rate obligation for a fixed rate obligation at
an average of 3.99% against LIBOR in U.5. dollars. The term of
the swap is 3 years, and is scheduled to mature on July 1, 2008.
The swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge of its floating rate
bank loan. To ensure the swap is highly effective, all the principal
terms of the swap match the terms of the bank lecan. On June
29, 2007 we terminated the swap and received a cash payment

Environmental remediation reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 was as fotlows:

{In millions) 2007 2004 2005
Beginning remediation accrual balance $53 $ 4.2 $ 47
Current period expenses 0.6 3.9 0.8
Cash expenditures 2.7 (2.8 {1.4)
Ending remediation accrual balance $ 3.2 $ 53 $ 42
Capital expenditures for environmental matters $23 %08 $1.1

Market Risks

Asaresult of our global operating and financing activities, we are
exposed to various market risks that may affect our consolidated
results of operations and financial position. These market risks
include, but are not limited to, fluctuations in interest rates,
which impact the amount of interest we must pay on certain debt
instruments, and fluctuations in currency exchange rates, which
impact the U.S. dollar value of transactions, assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Qur primary currency
exposures are in Europe, where we have significant business
activities. To a lesser extent, we are also exposed to fluctuations
in the prices of certain commodities, such as electricity, natural
gas, aluminum and certain chemicals.

We atternpt to net individual exposures, when feasible, taking
advartage of natural offsets. In addition, we employ interest
rate swap agreements and foreign currency forward exchange
contracts for the purpose of hedging certain specifically
identified interest rates and net currency exposures. The use of
these financial instruments is intended to mitigate some of the
risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and currency
exchange rates, but dees not eliminate such risks. We do not use
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

of $0.6 million. The amounts deferred will be released from OCI
according to the original retease schedule concluding in July
2008. The fair value of this swap at December 31, 2007 and 2004
was zero and an asset of $1.0 million, respectively. A net gain of
$0.7 million and $0.6 million were recognized as a component of
“interest expense” for 2007 and 2004, respectively.

Cross-Currency Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In September 2006, we entered into a cross-currency interest
rate swap agreement to hedge a portion of our net Euro investment
in Hexcel France SA. To the extent it is effective, gains and losses
are recorded as an offset in the cumulative translation account,
the same account in which translation gains and losses an the
investment in Hexcel France SA are recarded. All other changes,
including any difference in current interest, are excluded from the
assessment of effectiveness and are therebyincluded in operating
income as a component of interest expense. The agreement
has a notional value of $63.4 million, a term of five years, and
is scheduled to mature on September 20, 2011. We will receive
interest in U.5. dollars quarterly and will pay interest in Euros on
the same day. U.5. interest is based on the three month LIBOR
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rate. Euro interest is based on the three manth EURIBOR. The
fair value of the swap at December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006 was a liability of $10.4 million and $2.7 million, respactively.
A net charge to interest expense of $0.1 million related to the
excluded portion of the derivative was recorded in 2007. A net
credit to interest expense of $0.4 million related to the interest
coupons was recorded during 2007.

In 2003, we entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap
agreement, which effectively exchanges a loan of 12.5 million
Euros at a fixed rate of 7% for a loan with a notional amount of $13.5
million at a fixed rate of 6.02% over the term of the agreement
expiring December 1, 2007. We entered into this agreement to
effectively hedge interest and principal payments relating to an
intercornpany loan deneminated in Euros. On December 31,
2007, the swap agreement expired. The balance at December 31,
2004 of both the loan and the swap agreement, after scheduled
amortization, was 4.5 million Euros against $5.9 million. The fair
value and carrying amount of this swap agreement was a liability
of $1.2 millien at December 31, 2006. During 2007 and 2004,
hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. A net loss of $0.1 million
and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2004,
respectively, was recognized as interest expense.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risks

We operate seven manufacturing facilities in Europe, which
generated approximately 53% of our 2007 consolidated net sales.
Our European business activities primarily involve three major
currencies - the U.S. dollar, the British pound, and the Euro. We
also conduct business or have joint venture investments in Japan,
China, Malaysia, and Australia, and sell products to customers
throughout the world.

In 2007, our European subsidiaries had third-party sales of
$418.9 million of which approximately 34% were denominated
in U.S. dollars, 62% were denominated in Euros and 4% were
denominated in British pounds. While we seek to reduce the
exposure of our European subsidiaries to their sales in non-
functional currencies through the purchase of raw materials in
the same currency as that of the product sale, the net contribution
of these sales to cover the costs of the subsidiary in its functional
currency will vary with changes in foreign exchange rates, and
as a result, so will vary the European subsidiaries’ percentage
margins and profitability. For revenues denominated in the
functional currency of the subsidiary, changes in foreign currency
exchange rates increase or decrease the value of these revenues
in U.5. dollars but do not affect the profitability of the subsidiary
in its functional currency. The value of our investments in these
countries could be impacted by changes in currency exchange
rates over time, and could impact our ability to profitably compete
in international markets.

We attempt to net individual functional currency positions
of our various European subsidiaries, to take advantage of
natural offsets and reduce the need to employ foreign currency
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forward exchange contracts. We attemnpt to hedge some, but not
necessarily all, of the net exposures of our European subsidiaries
resulting from sales they make in non-functional currencies. The
benefit of such hedges varies with time and the foreign exchange
rates at which the hedges are set. For example, when the Euro
strengthened against the U.S. dollar, the benefit of new hedges
placed was much less than the value of hedges they replaced
that were entered into when the U.S. dollar was stronger. We
seek to place additional foreign currency hedges when the dollar
strengthens against the Euro or British pound. We do not seek to
hedge the value of our European subsidiaries’ functional currency
sales and profitability in U.S. dollars. We also enter into short-
term foreign currency forward exchange contracts, usually with
a term of ninety days or less, to hedge net currency exposures
resulting from specifically identified transactions. Consistent
with the nature of the economic hedge provided by such contracts,
any unrealized gain or loss would be offset by corresponding
decreases or increases, respectively, of the underlying transaction
being hedged.

We have performed a sensitivity analysis as of Decemnber 31,
2007 using a modeting technigue that measures the changes in
the fair values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement
in the levels of foreign currency exchange rates relative to the
U.S. dollar with all other variables held constant. The analysis
covers all of our foreign currency hedge contracts. The sensitivity
analysis indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in
foreign currency exchange rates would have an immaterial impact
on our results. However, it should be noted that over time as the
adverse movement (in our case a weaker dollar as compared to
the Euro or the GBP} continues and new hedges are layered in
at the adverse rate, the impact would be moere significant. For
example, had we not had any hedges in place for 2007, a 10%
adverse movement would have reduced our operating income by
approximately $6 million.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts

A number of our European subsidiaries are exposed to the
impact of exchange rate volatility between the U.S. dollar and the
subsidiaries’ functional currencies, being either the Euro or the
British Pound Sterling. We entered into contracts to exchange
U.S. dollars for Euros and British Pound Sterling through June
2010. The aggregate notional amount of these centracts was
$124.0 miltion and $72.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2004,
respectively. The purpose ofthese contractsis to hedge a portion of
the forecasted transactions of European subsidiaries under long-
term sales contracts with certain customers. These contracts are
expected to provide us with a more balanced matching of future
cash receipts and expenditures by currency, thereby reducing
our exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. For the
three years ended December 31, 2007, hedge ineffectiveness was
immaterial.




The activity in “accumulated other comprehensive income [loss]”
related to foreign currency forward exchange contracts for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2004 and 2005 was as follows:

[In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Unrealized

gains [losses) at

beginning of

period $ 39 $ (2.3] $ 1.3

(Gains] losses

reclassified to

net sales (3.1 0.1 0.6
Increase {decrease)

in fair value, net

of tax 2.4 4.1 (4.2)
Unrealized gains

{losses] at end of
__period $ 3.2 $ 3.9 $ [2.3)

Unrealized gains of $2.3 million recorded in “accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss),” net of tax, as of December
31, 2007 are expected to be reclassified into earnings over the
next twelve months as the hedged sales are recorded.

Utility Price Risks

We have exposure to utility price risks as a result of volatility
in the cost and supply of energy and in natural gas. To minimize
the risk, from time to time we enter into fixed price contracts at
certain of our manufacturing locations for a portion of our energy
usage for periods of up to one year. Although these contracts
would reduce the risk to us during the contract period, future
volatility in the supply and pricing of energy and natural gas could
have an impact on our future consolidated results of operations,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Yalue
Measurements ["SFAS 15771 which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods
within those years. This statement defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related
disclosure requirements. This statement applies under other
accounting prenouncements that reguire or permit fair value
measurements. The statement indicates, among other things,
that a fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to
sell an asset or transfer a liability occurs in the principal market
for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market,
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. SFAS 197
defines fair value based upon an exit price model. Relative to SFAS
157, the FASB proposed FASB Staff Positions {FSP) 157-a, 157-b,
and 157-¢. FSP 157-a amends SFAS 157 to exclude Financial
Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases,” and its
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address
leasing transactions, while FSP 157-b delays the effective date of
SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis. FSP 157-c clarifies
the principles in SFAS 157 on the fair value measurement of
liabilities. Public comments on FSP 157-a and 157-b were due

in January 2008, while public comments on FSP 157-c are due in
February 2008. Based upon pronouncements issued to date, we
have evaluated the new statement and have determined that it will
not have a significant impact on the determination or reparting of
our financial results.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities -
Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. This
staterment permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value. This statement
also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements
designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that cheose
different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and
liabilities. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair
value option is elected would be reported in earnings. We have
evaluated the new statement and have determined that it will not
have a significant impact on the determination or reporting of our
financial results.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 [revised
2007), Business Combinations {"SFAS 141{R]"]. which replaces
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS 141(R] retains
the underlying concepts of SFAS 141 in that all business
combinations are still required to be accounted for at fair value
under the acquisition method of accounting but SFAS 141[R]
changed the application of the acquisition method in a number of
significant aspects. Acquisition costs will generally be expensed
as incurred; noncontrolling interests will be valued at fair value
at the acquisition date; in-process research and development will
be recorded at fair value as an indefinite-lived intangible asset
at the acquisition date; restructuring costs associated with a
business combination will generally be expensed subsequent to
the acquisition date; and changes in deferred tax asset valuation
allowances and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition date
generally witl affect income tax expense. SFAS 141[R] is effective
on a prospective basis for all business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period subsequent to December 15, 2008, with the exception of
the accounting for valuation allowances on deferred taxes and
acquired tax contingencies. SFAS 141(Rj amends SFAS 109 such
that adjustments made to valuation allowances on deferred taxes
and ac¢quired tax contingencies associated with acquisitions that
closed prior to the effective date of SFAS 141(R] would also apply
the pravisions of SFAS 141(R]. Early adoption is not permitted. We
are currently evaluating this new statemnent and anticipate that
the statement will not have a significant impact on the reporting
of our resutts of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51. This
statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008,
with earlier adoption prohibited. This statement requires the
recognition of a noncontrolling interest (minority interest] as
equity in the consolidated financial statements and separate

2007 Annual Report 31




from the parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable
to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated
net income on the face of the income statement. It also amends
certain of ARB No. 51's consolidation procedures for consistency
with the requirements of SFAS 141[R]. This statement also
includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the
interests of the parent and its noncentrolling interest. We are
currently evaluating the impact this new statement.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Reportincludes forward-looking statements within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements relate to analyses and other information
that are based on forecasts of future results and estimates of
amounts not yet determinable. These statements also relate to
future prospects, developments and business strategies, are
inherently uncertain, and are subject to changing assumptions.

Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or
implied in our forward-looking statements. These differences
may result from actions taken by us as well as developments
beyond our control, Examples of action that may be taken by us
include capital expenditures and restructuring initiatives. Actions
beyond our control include changes in general economic and
business conditions; changes in the pricing and cost levels of
the raw materials we buy and the products we sell; changes in
political, social and economic conditions and local regulations,
particularly in Asia and Europe; foreign currency fluctuations;
changes in aerospace delivery rates; reductions in purchases by
our significant customers, particularly EADS [including Airbus],
Boeing, their related subcontractors and Vestas; changes in
government defense procurement budgets; changes in military
aergspace programs technology; and disruptions of established
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supply channels. Developments such as these may impact our
markets, demand for our products, and the performance of some
or all of our business units, either directly or through an impact
on those who sell us raw materials or buy our products.

Meither past financial performance nor our expectations
should be considered reliable indicators of future performance.
Investors should not use historical trends to anticipate results
or trends in future periods. Further, our stock price is subject te
volatility. If actual results differ materially from those expressed
or implied in our forward-looking statements, it could have an
adverse impact on our stock price.

Investors should read “ltem 1-A, Risk Factors”™ in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for
particular risks that should be considered before investing in any
of our securities. We do not undertake an obligation to update
our forward-laoking statements or risk factors to reflect future
events or circumstances.




. -

Hexcel Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31,

{In millions] 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 281 $ 257
Accounts receivable, net 192.8 169.8
Inventories, net 179.4 150.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 34.7 35.4
Assets of discontinued operations — 441
Total current assets 435.0 4258
Net property, plant and equipment 443.1 344.2
Goodwill and other intangible assets 56.8 58.8
Investments in affiliated companies 17.5 1.1
Deferred tax assets 88.7 103.0
Other assets 19.4 223
Assets of discontinued operations - 47.3
Total assets $1,060.5 $1,0145

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Notes payable and current maturities of capital lease obligations $ 04 $ 25
Accounts payable 144.2 94.0
Accrued compensation and benefits 221 213
Accrued interest 9.6 88
Business consalidation and restructuring liabilities 3.4 11.0
Other accrued liabilities 54.6 64.5
Liabilities of discontinued operations - 15.2
Total current liabilities 244.3 219.3
Long-term notes payable and capital lease obligations 3155 409.8
Lang-term retirement obligations 39.8 70.5
Other non-current liabilities 333 103
Liabilities of discontinued operations -— 3.0
Total liabilities 632.9 712.9

Commitments and contingencies [see Note 14]

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200.0 shares of stock authorized, 97.6 and 95.5 shares of stock

issued at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively 1.0 1.0
Additional paid-in capital 513.3 479.3
Accumulated deficit (97.4) (157.1]
Accumulated other comprehensive income [loss) 32.6 [1.8)

449.5 321.4

Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 1.8 and 1.7 shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (21.9) (19.8)
Total stockholders’ equity 427.6 301.6
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,060.5 $1,014.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Hexcel Corporation and Subsidiaries Consclidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31,

[In millions, except per share datal 2007 2004 2005
Net sales $1,171.1 $1,049.5 $ 957.6
Cost of sales 888.1 801.0 733.4

Gross margin 283.0 248.5 2242
Selling, general and administrative expenses 114.0 105.5 97.1
Research and technology expenses 4.2 29.7 248
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 7.3 9.9 2.9
Other expense, net 12,6 — 15.1

Operating income 114.9 103.4 843
Interest expense 2.4 23.6 29.6
Non-operating expense, net 1.1 0.1 40.9

Income from continuing operations before income taxes, equity in earnings

and discontinued cperations 92.4 79.7 13.8

Provision [benefit) for income taxes 33.4 34.7 (113.8)

Inceme from continuing operations before equity in earnings and

discontinued operations 59.0 450 127.6

Equity in earnings from and gain on sale of investments in affiliated companies 4.3 19.9 3.6

Net income from continuing operations 63.3 649 131.2
{Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (5.1) 1.0 10.1
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax 3.1 — —

Net income 61.3 65.9 141.3
Deemed preferred dividends and accretion — - (30.8)

Net income available to common sharehclders $ 613 $ 659 $ 1105
Basic net income [loss) per commaon share:

Continuing operations $ 067 $ 070 S 1.67

Discontinued operations 10.02) 0.1 0.17

Net income per common share $ 045 $ 0N $ 184
Diluted net income [loss] per common share:

Continuing operations $ 0.6 $ 068 $ 140

Discontinued operations (0.02) 0.01 0.1

Net income per common share $ 0.64 $  0.69 $ 1.5t
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 94.7 93.4 40.0

Diluted 94.5 95.5 93.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Hexcel Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

and Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Common $teck Accumulated Total
Additional Other Stockholders’

Paid-In  Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury Equity Comprehensive
{In millions) Par Capital Deficit Income {Loss) Shares |Deficit] Income
Balance, December 31, 2004 $05 $334.5 $(363.8} $ 18.4 $ (14.00 $ (24.4)
Net income 141.3 141.3 $141.3
Currency translation adjustments [26.1) {26.1) (26.1]
Net unreatized loss on financial

instruments, net of tax (3.5) t3.5) 13.5}
Minimum pension obligation,

net of tax 3.9 3.9 3.9

Comprehensive income $115.6
Conversion of mandatory

redeemable preferred stock 0.4 120.9 121.3
Deemed preferred dividends

and accretion 130.8) {30.8
Activity under stock plans 30.4 [1.4] 29.0
Balance, December 31, 2005 $£09 $455.0 $(222.51 $ (7.3) $ (15.4) $210.7
Net income 65.9 65.9 $ 65.9
Retained earnings adjustment -

SAB 108 [0.5] (0.5) (0.5)
Currency translation adjustments 19.3 19.3 19.3
Net unrealized gain on financial

instruments, net of tax 7.8 7.8 7.8
Accrued minimum pension

liability, net of tax (4.6 (4.6) (4.8

Comprehensive income $ 87.9
Pension obligation - FAS 158,

net of tax (17.0) (17.0)

Activity under stock plans 0.1 243 14.4) 20.0

Balance, December 31, 2006 $1.0 $479.3 $(157.1] $ (1.8 % [19.8] $301.4

Net income 61.3 61.3 $ 413
Retained earnings adjustment

-FIN 48 1.6 (1.81 (1.6)
Currency translation adjustments 13.9 13.9 13.9
Net unrealized loss on financial

instruments, net of tax (0.7 (0.7 (0.7
Change in post-retirement benefit

ptans, net of tax 21.2 21.2 21.2

Comprehensive income $ 94.1
Activity under stock plans 34.0 t2.1] 3.9
Balance, December 31, 2007 $1.0 $513.3 $197.4) $32.6 $(21.9] $427.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Hexcel Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31,

{tn millions) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations

Netincome $ 6.3 $ 659 $141.3

[Lossi income from discontinued operations, net of tax (2.0 1.0 10.1

Net income from centinuing operations 63.3 64.9 131.2

Reconciliation to net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations:

Depreciation and amortization 39.8 37.4 38.8
Amortization of debt discount and deferred financing costs 1.7 1.6 2.0

Deferred income taxes [benefit) 10.0 17.5 [106.8]
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 7.3 9.9 2.9

Business consolidation and restructuring payments [14.9) {3.7) [2.7)
Loss on early retirement of debt 1.1 - 40.9

Equity in earnings from and gain on sale of investments in affiliated companies (4.3 (19.9] (3.6)
Dividends from affiliated companies - 1.3 3.1

Share-based compensation 10.4 83 20

Excess tax benefits on share-based compensation (7.1) {5.4) (11.6}
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable (10.0) (11.8) (22.11
Increase in inventories 119.1) (14.4) 123.61
Decrease [increase] in prepaid expenses and other current assets 0.3 (0.3) 4b

Increase (decrease] in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21.0 8.4 (2.3)
Other, net 68 4.5 1.4

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 106.3 98.3 544

Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations

Capital expenditures and deposits for capital purchases (120.8) (117.9] (64.31
Insurance recoveries on property damage 1.2 0.5 -

Proceeds from sale of an investment in an affiliated company — 22.0 -

Net proceeds from sale of discentinued operations 84.0 - 1.4

Investment in affiliated companies i2.0] — {7.5]
Net cash used for investing activities of cantinuing operations (37.4) (95.4) (70.4)
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt - - 450.0

Repayments and redemption of long-term debt 196.2] (1.4 (469.5)
(Repayments of} proceeds from senior secured credit facility - revolver, net — (5.0 5.0

[Repayments of] proceeds from capital lease obligations and other debt, net 10.6) .7 0.7

Issuance costs related to debt and equity offerings — - t12.1)
Debt retirement costs — - (30.0]
Activity under stock plans and cther 21.3 10.4 15.2

Net cash [used for) provided by financing activities of continuing operations (75.5) 2.5 (40.7)
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 7.2 4.4 21.2

Net cash used for investing activities of discontinued operations (1.8 (2.5) (2.6]
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3.4 12.4) 1.9
Net increase [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2.4 4.7 {36.2]
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25.7 21.0 57.2

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 281 $ 25.7 $ 21.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Hexcel Corporation and its subsidiaries [herein referred to as
“Hexcel”, "we”, "us”, or “our”), is a leading advanced composites
company. We develop, manufacture, and market tightweight,
high-perfarmance  composites, inctuding carbon  fibers,
reinforcements, prepregs, honeycomb, matrix systems, adhesives
and composite structures, for use in the commercial aerospace,
space and defense and industrial applications. Our products are
used in a wide variety of end applications, such as commercial
and military aircraft, space launch vehictes and satellites, wind
turbine blades, automotive, bikes, skis and a wide variety of other
recreational equipment.

We serve international markets through manufacturing
facilities and sales offices located in the United States and
Europe, and through sales representation offices located in
Asia, Australia and South America. We are also an investar in
two joint ventures, which manufacture composite structures for
commercial aerospace.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consclidated financial statements inctude
the accounts of Hexcel Corporation and its subsidiaries after
elimination of all intercompany accounts, transactions and profits.
Investments in affiliated companies, in which our interests are
between 33% and 40% and where we do not have the ability to
exercise control over financial or operating decisions, nor are the
primary beneficiary, are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting.

During 2007, the Company comptleted the sale of its U.S.
electronics, ballistics and general industrial ("EBGI”) product
lines and its European Architectural business ("Architectural
business”) and are classified as discontinued operations in these
consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated
financial Statements [see Note 2). Unless otherwise indicated,
informationin these notes tothe consolidated financial statements
relates to continuing operations.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and related notes have been reclassified to
conform o the 2007 presentation.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
staternents and related disclosures in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inciudes cash on hand and all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less when purchased are considered te be cash or

cash equivalents. Our cash equivalents are primarily comprised
of money market funds, invested in AAA rated counterparties.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost
determined using the first-in, first-out and average cost methods.
Inventory is reported at its estimated net realizable value based
upon our historical experience with inventory becoming obsolete
due to age, changes in technalogy and other factors.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including capitalized interest
applicable to major project expenditures, is recorded at cost.
Asset and accumulated depreciation accounts are relieved for
dispositions, with resulting gains or losses reflected in earnings.
Depreciation of plant and equipment is provided using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the various assets.
The estimated useful lives range from 10 to 40 years for buildings
and improvements and from 3 to 20 years for machinery and
equipment. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred,
while major replacements and betterments are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets of an acquired business.
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No.142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
{"FAS 1427), goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting
unit level annuatly, or when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that goodwill might be impaired. A reporting unit is an
operating segment or one level below an operating segment, for
which discrete infarmation is available and regularly reviewed
by management. If the carrying value of the reporting unit's
goodwill exceeds its fair value, the goodwill is written down to
its fair value. Fair value is calculated using discounted cash
flows. The determination of fair value includes a high degree of
judgment and the use of significant estimates and assumptions
and requires the use of discount rates, market premiums, and
financial forecasts.

We amortize the cost of other intangibles over their estimated
useful lives unless such lives are deemed indefinite. Indefinite
lived intangibles are tested annually for impairment, or when
events or changes in circumstances indicate the potential
for impairment. If the carrying amount of the indefinite lived
intangible exceeds the fair value, the intangible asset is written
down to its fair value. Fair value is calculated using discounted
cash flows.

Software Development Costs

Costs incurred to develop software for internal-use are
accounted for under Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal
Use.” All costs relating to the preliminary project stage and the
post-implementation/operation stage are expensed as incurred.
Costs incurred during the application development stage are
capitalized and amortized over the useful life of the software. The
amortization of capitalized costs commences when functionality
of the computer software is achieved.
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Investments

We have investments in affiliated companies with equity
terests ranging from 33% to 40%. Upon assessment of
Financial Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities ["FIN 46R"], we believe that certain of these affiliated
companies would be considered variable interest entities
("VIEs"). However, we do not control the financial or operating
decisions of these companies, nor do we consider ourselves the
primary beneficiary of these entities. As such, we account for our
share of the operating performance of these affiliated companies
using the equity method of accounting. Future adverse changes
in market conditions or poor eperating results of the underlying
investments could result in losses and the inability to recover the
carrying value of the investments, thereby possibly requiring an
impairment charge. We review our investments for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the investments may not be recoverable. We
record an investment impairment charge when the decline in
value is considered to be other than temporary.

Debt Financing Costs

Debt financing costs are deferred and amortized to interest
expense over the life of the related debt, which ranges from 5 to
10 years. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, deferred debt financing
costs were $6.7 million and $9.5 million, net of accumulated
amortization of $%.2 million and $6.4 million, respectively, and are
included in “other assets” in the consolidated balance sheets.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted FAS No. 123(R], Share-
Based Payments, which requires companies to recognize in the
statement of operations the grant-date fair value of stock awards
issued to employees and directors. The Company adopted
FAS 123(R] using the modified prospective transition method. In
accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the
Company's consolidated financial statements for prior periods
have not been restated to reflect the impact of FAS 123(R]). Prior
to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company applied Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ["APB 25", Accounting for Stock
{ssued to Employees, and related interpretations to account for
awards of stock-based compensation granted to emptoyees.

Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of international subsidiaries are
transtated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates, and
revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
during the year. Cumulative currency translation adjustments are
included in "accumulated other comprehensive income (loss]”
in the stockholders’ equity section of the censolidated balance
sheets. Gains and losses from currency exchange transactions
are recorded in “selling, general and administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statements of operations and resulted in a loss of
$0.8 million and $0.7 million during 2007 and 2006, respectively,
and a gain of $0.3 million during 2005.

Revenue Recognition

Qur revenue is predominately derived from sales of inventory,
and is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, title and risk of loss passes to the customer, the sales
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price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably
assured. However, from time to time we enter into contractual
arrangements for which other specific revenue recognition
guidance is applied.

Recognition of revenue on bill and hold arrangements occurs
only when risk of ownership has passed to the buyer, a fixed
written commitment has been provided by the buyer, the goods
are complete and ready for shipment, the goods are segregated
from inventery, no perfemance obligations remain and a schedule
for delivery of goods has been established. Revenues derived
fram design and installation services are recognized when the
service is provided.

Revenues derived from long-term construction-type contracts
are accounted for under Statement of Position No. 81-1
[SOF 81-1), Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and
Certain Production Type Contracts. The Company accounts for
these contracts using the percentage-of-completion method,
and progress is measured on a cost-to-cost basis. If at any
time expected costs exceed the value of the contract, the loss is
recognized immediately.

Product Warranty

We provide for an estimated amount of product warranty at the
point a claim is evident. This estimated amount is provided by
product and based on current facts, circumstansces and historical
warranty experience. Warranty expense was $1.8 million, $3.3
millien and $0.8 million for the years end December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 respectively.

Research and Technology

Significant costs are incurred each year in cannection with
research and technology ["R&T"] pregrams that are expected
to contribute to future earnings. Such costs are related to the
development and in certain instances the qualification and
certification of new and improved products and their uses. R&T
costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes using the liability approach under
FAS MNo. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under the liability
approach, deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect tax
net operating loss and credit carryforwards and the tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets require a valuation allowance when it is more
likely than not, based on the evaluation of positive and negative
evidence, that some portion of the deferred tax assets may not
be realized. The realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the timing and magnitude of future taxable income prior to
the expiraticn of the deferred tax assets’ attributes. When events
and circumstances so dictate, we evaluate the realizability of
our deferred tax assets and the need for a valuation allowance
by forecasting future taxable income. 0On January 1, 2007, we
adopted FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
interpretation of FASB No. 109, which requires that uncertain tax
positions be sustainable under regulatory review hy tax authorities
assumed to have all relevant information at a more likely than not
level based upon its technical merits before any benefit can be
recognized.




Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentiatly subject us to significant
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts
receivable. Two customers and their related subcontractors
accounted for approximately half cur annual net sales for 2005
through 2007. Refer to Note 19 for further information on
significant customers. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of
our customers’ financial condition but generally do not require
collateral or other security to support customer receivables. We
establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based on factors
surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical
trends and other financial information. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $2.2
million and $1.6 million, respectively. Bad debt expense was $1.3
million, $0.4 million, and $0.3 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use various financial instruments, including foreign
currency forward exchange contracts and interest rate swap
agreements, t0 manage our exposure to market fluctuations by
generating cash flows that offset, in relation to their amount and
timing, the cash flows of certain foreign currency denominated
transactions or underlying debt instruments. We mark our
foreign exchange forward contracts to fair value. The change in
the fair value is recorded in current period earnings. When the
derivatives qualify, we designate our foreign currency forward
exchange contracts as cash flow hedges against forecasted
foreign currency denominated transactions and report the
effective portions of changes in fair value of the instruments in
“accumulated other comprehensive loss” until the underlying
hedged transactions affect income. We designate our interest
rate swap agreements as fair value or cash flow hedges against
specific debt instruments and recognize interest differentials as
adjustments to interest expense as the differentials may occur.
We do not use financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.

We follow the guidance in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities {"FAS 133"], and its corresponding amendments
under Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities ["FAS
1387). FAS 133 requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities on our balance sheet and measure
those instrurments at fair value.

Self-insurance

We are self-insured up to specific levels for certain liabilities.
Accruals are established based on actuarial assumptions and
historicat claim experience, and include estimated amounts for
incurred but not reported claims.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements {"SFAS 157"], which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods
within those years. This statement defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related
disclosure requirements. This statement applies under other

accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements. The statemnent indicates, among other things,
that a fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to
sell an asset or transfer a liability occurs in the principal market
for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market,
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. SFAS 157
defines fair value based upon an exit price model. Relative to SFAS
157, the FASB proposed FASB Staff Positions (FSP) 157-a, 157-b,
and 157-c. FSP 157-a amends SFAS 157 to exclude Financial
Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” and its
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address
teasing transactions, while FSP 157-b delays the effective date of
SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis. FSP 157-c clarifies
the principles in SFAS 157 on the fair value measurement of
liabilities. Based upon pronouncements issued to date, we have
evaluated the new statement and have determined that it will not
have a significant impact on the determination or reporting of our
financial results.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities -
including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Novernber 15, 2007. This
statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other itemns at fair value, This statement
also establishes presentaticn and disclosure requirements
designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose
different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and
liabilities. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair
value option is elected would be reported in earnings. We have
evaluated the new statement and have determined that it will not
have a significant impact on the determination or reporting of our
financial results.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 [revised
2007), Business Combinations ["SFAS 141{R}"], which replaces
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS 141(R] retains
the underlying concepts of SFAS 141 in that all business
combinations are still required to be accounted for at fair value
under the acquisition method of accounting but SFAS 141(R]
changed the application of the acquisition method in a number of
significant aspects. Acquisition costs will generally be expensed
as incurred; noncontrolling interests will be valued at fair value
at the acquisition date; in-process research and development will
be recorded at fair value as an indefinite-lived intangible asset
at the acquisition date; restructuring costs associated with a
business combination will generally be expensed subseguent to
the acquisition date; and changes in deferred tax asset valuation
allowances and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition date
generally will affect income tax expense. SFAS 141(R] is effective
on a prospective basis for all business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on ar after the beginning of the first annual
period subsequent to December 15, 2008, with the exception of
the accounting for valuation allowances on deferred taxes and
acquired tax contingencies. SFAS 141(R] amends SFAS 109 such
that adjustments made to valuation atlowances on deferred taxes
and acquired tax contingencies associated with acquisitions that
closed prior to the effective date of SFAS 141(R) would also apply
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the provisions of SFAS 141(R). Early adoption is not permitted. We
are currently evaluating this new statement and anticipate that
the statement will not have a significant impact on the reparting
of our results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards No. 1460, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51. This
statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008,
with earlier adoption prohibited. This statement requires the
recognition of a nencontrolling interest Iminority interest] as
equity in the consolidated financial statements and separate
from the parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable
to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consclidated
net income an the face of the income staternent. It also amends
certain of ARB No. 51's consolidation procedures for consistency
with the requirements of SFAS 141(R]. This statement also
includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the
interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interest. We are
currently evaluating this new statement and anticipate that the
staternent will not have a significant irmpact on the reporting of
our results of operations.

Note 2 — Discontinued Operations

In July of 2006, we announced our intention to explore
strategic alternatives for portions of our previously reported
Reinforcements segment. In order to take full advantage of the
many growing applications for advanced composite materials, we
decided to narrow our focus and consoclidate our activities around
our carben fiber, reinforcements for composites, honeycomb,
matrix and engineered products product lines. In doing so, we
decided to combine our Reinforcements activities retated to
advanced composites with our previously reported Composites and
Structures segments into a single organization, and explore the
sale of our European Architectural business, our U.S. electronics,
ballistics and general industrial {"EBGI"] product lines and our
interest in the TechFab joint venture, previously reported within
the Reinforcements segment.
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EBGI

On August é, 2007, we completed the sale of the EBGI portion
of our reinforcements business. Net cash proceeds from the
sale were $58.5 million (after related expenses), resulting in a
net after-tax loss of $3.4 million. Included within the loss on
sale is an after-tax curtailment gain of $1.1 million, representing
the unrecognized prior service cost on the EBGI Postretirement
Health Care Plan as of August é, 2007, The sale of EBGI included
the sale of the design, manufacturing, and selling activities and
the related property, plant and equipment and working capitat of
the business. The sale includes up to $12.5 million of additionat
payments contingent upon annual sales for three years from the
Ballistics product line. Any additional payments will be recorded
as income when earned. In accordance with the provisions of
FAS 144, the EBGI business, including the net after-tax loss
on sale, has been reported as a discontinued operation in our
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements.

Revenues associated with the EBGI business were $108.7
miklion, $143.6 million and $181.9 million for the years ended
Decernber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During the
secand quarter of 2007, Hexcel established a pre-tax reserve
of $15 million ($9.7 million after-tax] relating to the previously
disclosed investigation by the U.S. Department of Justice into the
use of allegedly defective Zylon fiber in ballistic vests purchased
under U.S. government funded programs. On October 29, 2007
we entered into a settlement agreement for the reserved amount
of $15 million, which we paid on November 5, 2007. Pre-tax loss
associated with the discontinued operation was $13.7 million
lincluding a pre-tax loss on the sale of the business of $3.6 million
and the $15 million Zylon charge] and $1.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and a pre-tax
gain of $13.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following is a summary of the EBGI net assets sold as
initially determined at December 31, 2006 and finally reported on
the closing date of August 6, 2007:

August 6, December 21,

[In millions) 2007 2004
Accounts receivable, net $138 $11.7
Inventories, net 19.9 20.6
Prepaid expenses and other

current assets - 1.3
Net property, plant and

equipment 22.9 239
Goodwill 17.3 17.5

Total assets $73.9 $ 75.0
Accounts payable $ 9.7 $ 8.0
Other accrued liabilities 1.9 1.0
Other non-current liabilities - 1.6

Total liabitities $11.6 $ 10.6
Net assets of discontinued

operations $62.3 $ 644




European Architectural Business

On February 28, 2007, we completed the sale of our European
Architectural business. The Architectural business sold included
the design, manufacturing and selling activities and the related
property, plant and equipment and working capital of the
business. Net cash proceeds from the sale were $25.0 million,
resulting in a net after-tax gain of $6.5 million. In accordance
with the provisions of FAS 144, the operations of the Architectural
business, including the net after-tax gain on the sale, has been
reported as a discontinued operation in our accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Revenues associated with the Architectural business were
$4.4 million, $23.8 million and $21.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Pre-tax income
associated with the discontinued operation was $10.6 million
{including a pre-tax gain on the sale of the business of $10.5

Note 3 — Inventories

December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2004
Raw materials $ 86.6 $ 77.9
Work in progress 45.4 391
Finished goods 66.9 48.7

Total inventories, gross 198.9 165.7
Inventory ailowances (19.5) {14.9]

Total inventories, net $179.4 $150.8

Note 4 — Net Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31,

L - {In millions) 2007 2006
million] for.the year ended December 31, 2007 and $2.8 million Land $ 322 $ 174
and $2.3 million for the years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005, o
respectively. Buildings 195.5 156.0

The following is a summary of the net assets sold relating to Equipment 506.6 438.8
the Architectural business as initially determined at December 31, Construction in progress 124.5 137.8
2006 and finally reported on the closing date of February 28, 2007: Property, plant and equipment 858.8 750.0

February 29, December 31, Less accumulated depreciation (415.7) (403.8)
{In millions]) 2007 2006 Net property, plant and equipment $ 4431 $ 346.2
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10 - Depreciation expense related to property, plant and equipment
; iati \

Accounts receivable, net 31 39 ortne years ended Ducernber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, o $39.6
Inventories, net 6.7 62 million, $37.3 million and $38.2 million, respectively. Capitatized
Prepaid expenses and other interest of $2.9 million and $3.4 mitlion for 2007 and 2006 was

current assets 0.1 0.4 included in construction in progress and is associated with our
Net property, plant and equipment 5.7 5.4  carbon fiber expansion programs. Capitalized costs associated
Goodwill 0.2 0.3 with software developed for internal use were $1.2 million for
Deferred tax assels — 0.2  both 2007 and 2006.
Total assets $18.8 $16.4
Accounts payable 4.3 43
Other accrued liabilities 1.4 1.9
Other non-current Liabilities 0.6 1.4
Total liabilities $ 63 $ 7.6
Net assets of discontinued

operations $125 $ 88
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Note 5 — Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and other purchased intangibles for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2004, by

segment, are as follows:

Composite Engineered
{In millions) Materials Products Total
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ 42.2 $ 161 % 58.3
Current year additions 0.3 — 0.3
Currency translation adjustments and other 0.2 - 0.2
Balance as of December 31, 20046 $ 427 $ 161 $ 588
Impairment charge (3.0 - (3.00
Currency transiation adjustments and other 1.0 - 1.0
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 40.7 $ 161 $ 56.8

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we performed valuations
for all reporting units with goodwill using discounted cash flow
analyses, based upon estimated forward-looking information
regarding market share, revenues and costs for each reporting
unit as wetl as appropriate discount rates. This review indicated
the fair value of certain purchased intangible assets was less
than the carrying amount of the assets, we therefore recorded
an impairment charge of $3.0 million during the fourth quarter
of 2007. The review also indicated that the fair market value of
reporting units exceeded the carrying value of the assets of those
reporting units. The goodwill and intangible asset balances as
of December 31, 2007 includes $0.3 million of indefinite-lived
intangible assets and $40.4 million of goodwill.

Note 6 — Investments in Affiliated
Companies

Asof December 31, 2007, we have equity ownershipinvestments
in two Asian joint ventures. In connection therewith, we have
considered the accounting and disclosure requirements of FIN 44R
and believe that these investrments would be considered “variable
interest entities.” However, we do not control the financial or
operating decisions of these companies, nor do we consider
ourselves the primary beneficiary of these entities. As such,
we account for our share of the operating performance of these
affiliated companies using the equity method of accounting.

42 Hexcel Corporation

Summarized condensed combined balance sheets of our joint
venture ownership interests as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and summarized condensed combined statements of operations
for periods of our ownership during the three years ended
December 31, 2007, are as follows:

[tn millions]
Summarized Condensed Combined
Balance Sheets 2007 2006
Current assets $ 263 $ 25.2
Non-current assets 55.6 52.9
Total assets $ 81.9 $ 78.1
Current liabilities $ 233 $ 265
Non-current liabilities 16.5 22.0
Total liabilities 398 485
Partners’ equity 42.1 29.6
Total liabilities and partners’
equity $ B1.9 % 781
{In millions)
Summarized Condensed
Combined Statements of
Operations 2007 2004 [a) 2005 [a)
Net sales $62.9 $95.1 $91.6
Cost of sales 47.3 75.6 72.4
Gross profit 15.6 19.5 19.2
Other costs and
expenses 5.4 8.2 16.5
Net income $10.2 $11.3 $ 2.7

(a) Includes financial data fer any periods where we held an equity interest in
TechFab and DIC.




BHA Aero Composite Parts Co., Ltd.

In 1999, Hexcel, Boeing International Holdings, Ltd. ["Boeing
International”) and China Aviation Industry Corporation | ["AVIC")
formed a joint venture, BHA Aero Composite Parts Co., Ltd.

("BHA Aero”]. This joint venture is located in Tianjin, China,
and manufactures composite parts for secondary structures
and interior applications for commercial aircraft. Summary
information related to ourinvestment in BHA Aero as of December
31, 2007 and 2004 is as follows:

[In millions) 2007 2006
Equity ownership 40.48% 40.48%
Revenues $ 32.7 $ 271
Net income $ 48 $ 22
Equity investment batance $ 79 $ 62
Accounts receivable balance $ 20 $ 28
Accounts payable balance $ 1.2 $ 1.6

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we had
sales to BHA Aero of $4.9 million, $5.9 million and $4.0 million,
respectively, and purchases of materials totaling $13.5 million,
$11.8 mitlion and $9.4 million, respectively.

On January 26, 2003, BHA Aero completed the refinancing of
its bank debt, which resulted in a new five year bank term loan
agreement supported by a pledge of BHA Aero’s fixed assets and
guarantees from Boeing and AVIC. As part of the refinancing,
we agreed to reimburse Boeing and AVIC for a proportionate
share of the losses they would incur if their guarantees of the
new bank loan were to be called, up to a limit of $6.1 million.
Our reimbursement agreement with Boeing and AVIC relating to
the BHA Aero joint venture meets the definition of a guarantee
in accordance with the provisions of FASB Interpretation No.
45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,
["FIN 457). Accordingly, we recorded a $0.5 millien Liability, and
a corresponding increase in our investment in BHA Aero, during
the first quarter of 2005 based upon the estimated fair value of
the guarantee. As of December 31, 2007, the recorded liability
of $0.5 million is the relative fair value of the guarantee. Apart
from outstanding accounts receivable balances, our investment
in this venture, and our agreement to reimburse Boeing and AVIC
for a proportionate share of the losses they would incur if their
guarantees of the new bank loan were to be called, we have no
other significant exposures to loss related to BHA Aero.

Asian Composites Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd.

In 1999, we formed another joint venture, Asian Composites
Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. ["Asian Composites”], with Boeing
Worldwide Operations Limited, Sime Link Sdn. Bhd., and
Malaysia Helicopter Services Bhd. [now known as Naluri Berhad],
to manufacture composite parts for secondary structures for
commercial aircraft. Qur initial equity ownership interest in this
joint venture, which is located in Ator Setar, Malaysia, was 25%.

In February 2007, Hexcel, Boeing Worldwide Operations
Limited and Sime Link Sdn. Bhd. completed the purchase of
Naluri Berhad's equity interest in Asian Composites, which
increased each respective equity ownership interest in this joint
venture to 33.33%. We paid $2.1 million in cash to purchase this
additional equity interest when the transaction was completed on
February 8, 2007,

Apart from any outstanding accounts receivable balance and
our investment in this joint venture, we have no other significant
expasure to loss related to Asian Composites.

Summary infoermation related to our investment in Asian
Composites as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

{In millions) 2007 2004
Equity ownership 33.33% 25.00%
Revenues $ 302 $ 259
Net income $ 5.4 $ 5.6
Equity investment balance $ 921 $ 4.9
Accounts receivable balance $ 11 $ 14
Accounts payable balance $ 1.8 $ 05

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we
had sales to Asian Composites of $5.6 million, $5.2 million and
$5.2 million, respectively, and purchases of materials totaling
$18.3 million, $15.7 million and $13.2 million, respectively.

TechFab LLC

As part of an acquisition in 1998, we obtained a 50% share in
Clark-Schwebel Tech-Fab Company [now TechFabl. TechFab is
headquartered in Anderson, South Carolina and manufactures
non-woven reinforcement materiats for roofing, construction, sail
ctoth and other specialty applications. In December of 2006, we
completed the sale of our interest in TechFab to our joint venture
partner for $22.0 million in cash. The unit purchase agreement
contained limited indemnification provided by us related to certain
liabilities incurred prior to the date of sale. As a result of the
sale, we recognized a pre-tax gain of $15.7 million in the fourth
quarter of 2006, which is included in the "Equity in earnings fram
and gain on sale of investments in affiliated companies” line of
consolidated statement of operations. The TechFab joint venture
was part of our previously reported Reinforcements segment.

DIC-Hexcet Limited

1n 1990, we obtained a 45% equity interest in BIC-Hexcel Limited
["DHL’}, a joint venture with Dainippon Ink and Chemicals, Inc.
["DIC”). This joint venture was located in Komatsu, Japan, and
produced and sold prepregs, honeycomb and decorative laminates
using technology licensed from Hexcel and DIC. In December of
2005, the joint venture partners decided to dissolve the DHL joint
venture. The dissolution was completed in the fourth quarter of
2006 resulting in our receipt of a $0.1 million cash distribution.
The DHL joint venture was part of our previously reported
Composites segment.
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Note 7 — Notes Payable

Decernber 31, December 31,
{In millions) 2007 2006
Senior secured credit facility -
revolver due 2010 $ - $ -
Senior secured credit facility -
term B loan due 2012 87.5 183.6
Eurcpean credit and overdraft
facilities - 0.3
4.75% senior subordinated notes
due 2015 225.0 225.0
Total notes payable 3125 408.9
Capital lease obtigations 3.4 3.4
Total notes payable and capital
lease obligations $315.9 $412.3
Notes payable and current
maturities of long-term liabilities $ 0.4 $ 25
Long-term notes payable and
capital lease obligations, less
current maturities 315.5 409.8
Total notes payable and capital
lease obligations $315.9 $412.3

Senior Secured Credit Facility

During the first quarter of 2003, we refinanced substantially
atl of our long-term debt. In connection with the refinancing,
we entered into a $350.0 million senior secured credit facility
[the "Senior Secured Credit Facility™), consisting of a $225.0
million term loan due 2012 and a $125.0 millien revolving loan
due 2010. In addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facility permits
us to issue letters of credit up to an aggregate amount of $40.0
million. Any outstanding letters of credit reduce the amount
available for borrowing under the revolving loan. As of December
31, 2007, the term loan had a remaining outstanding balance of
$87.5 million, we had no amounts outstanding on the revolving
loan. Outstanding letters of credit reduce the amount available
for borrowing under the revolving loan. We had issued letters
of credit totaling $10.7 million and $4.3 million under the Senior
Secured Credit Facitity as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. There were no letters of credit outstanding outside
the Senior Secured Credit Facility as of December 31, 2007 and
2006. Total undrawn availability under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility was $114.3 million and $120.7 million as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively .

Term loan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility
bear interest at a floating rate based on the agent's defined “prime
rate” plus a margin that can vary from 0.50% to 0.75% or LIBOR
plus a margin that can vary from 1.50% to 1.75%, while revolving
loan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility bear
interest at a floating rate based on either the agent’s defined
“prime rate” plus a margin that can vary from 0.25% to 1.00%,
or LIBOR plus a margin that can vary from 1.25% to 2.00%. The
margin in effect for a borrowing at any given time depends on our
consolidated leverage ratio. The weighted average interest rate
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for the actual borrowings on the Senior Secured Credit Facility
was 7.0% and 6.9% for the years ended Decermber 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Borrowings made under the LIBOR option
during 2007 and 2006 were made at interest rates ranging from
9.9% to 7.3% and 6.25% to 7.25%, respectively.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility was entered into by and
among Hexcel Corporation and certain lenders. In connection with
the Senior Secured Credit Facility, two of our U.5. subsidiaries,
Clark-Schwebel Holding Corp. and Hexcel Reinforcements Corp.
[the "Guarantors”), entered into a Subsidiary Guarantyunder which
they guaranteed the obligations of Hexcel Corporation under the
Senior Secured Credit Facility. In addition, Hexcel Corporation
and the Guarantors entered into a Security Agreement in which
Hexcel Corparation and the Guarantors pledged certain assets
as security for the Senior Secured Credit Facility. The assets
pledged include, among other things, the receivables, inventory,
property, plant and equipment and intellectual property of Hexcel
Corporation and the Guarantors, and 65% of the share capital of
Hexcel's Danish subsidiary and first-tier U.K. subsidiary.

In accordance with the terms of the Senior Secured Credit
Facility, we are required to maintain a minimum interest coverage
ratio of 4.00 [based on the ratio of EBITDA, as defined in the credit
agreement, to interest expensel and may not exceed a maximum
leverage ratio of 3.00 [based on the ratio of total debt to EBITDA)
throughout the term of the Senior Secured Credit Facility. The
Senior Secured Credit Facility also contains limitations on, among
other things, incurring debt, granting liens, making investments,
making restricted payments lincluding dividends], making capitat
expenditures, entering into transactions with affiliates and
prepaying subordinated debt. In addition, the Senior Secured
Credit Facility contains other terms and conditions such as
customary representations and warranties, additionat covenants
and customary events of default.

6.75% Senior Subordinated Notes, due 2015

On February 1, 2005, we issued 4.75% senior subordinated
notes due 2015 through a private placement under Rule 144A.
At the time of the issuance, pursuant to a registration rights
agreement, we agreed to offer to all noteholders the cpportunity
to exchange their senior subordinated notes for new notes that
are substantially identical to the senior subordinated notes
except that the new notes would be registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC”) and would not have any
restrictions on transfer. The exchange offer was completed on
June 15, 2005, with all noteholders electing te exchange their
notes for new notes registered with the SEC. On June 14, 2005,
we issued the new notes in exchange for the original notes.

The senior subordinated notes are unsecured senior
subordinated obligations of Hexcel Corporation. Interest accrues
at the rate of 6.75% per annum and is payable semi-annually
in arrears on February 1 and August 1, beginning on August 1,
2005. The senicr subordinated notes mature an February 1,
2015. We will have the option to redeem all or a porticn of the
senior subordinated notes at any time during the one-year period
beginning February 1, 2010 at 103.375% of principal plus accrued
and unpaid interest. This percentage decreases to 102.25% for
the one-year period beginning February 1, 2011, to 101.125% for
the one-year period beginning February 1, 2012 and to 100.0%




any time on or after February 1, 2013. In the event of a "change of
control” [as defined in the indenture], we are generally required
to make an offer to all noteholders to purchase all outstanding
senior subordinated notes at 101% of the principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

The indenture cantains various custamary covenants including,
but not limited to, restrictions onincurring debt, making restricted
payments [including dividends], the use of proceeds from certain
asset dispositions, entering into transactions with affiliates,
and merging or selling all or substantially all of our assets.
The indenture also contains many other customary terms and
conditions, including customary events of default, some of which
are subject to grace and notice periods.

European Credit and Overdraft Facilities

In addition to the Senior Secured Credit Facility, certain of
our European subsidiaries have access to limited credit and
overdraft facilities provided by various local banks. These credit
and overdraft facilities are primarily uncommitted facilities
that are terminable at the discretion of the lenders, There was
no outstanding balance under these overdraft facilities as of
December 31, 2007,

Aggregate Maturities of Notes Payable

The table below reflects aggregate scheduled maturities of
notes payable, excluding capital lease obligations, as of December
31, 2007. See Note 8 for capital lease obligation maturities.

Payable during the years ending December 31: {In millions)
2008 $ -
2009 0.9
2010 0.9
201 64.3
2012 21.4
Thereafter 225.0
Total notes payable $312.5

Estimated Fair Values of Notes Payable

Amounts outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facility
and the various European credit facilities outstanding as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are variable-rate debt obligations.
Accordingly, the estimated fair values of each of these debt
obligations approximate their respective book values. The
approximate, aggregate fair value of our notes payable as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Note 8 — Leasing Arrangements

We account for our leases following the guidance in Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases.”
We have entered into several capital leases for buildings and
warehouses with expirations through 2012, with an obligation
of $3.4 million as of December 31, 2007. The related assets,
accumulated depreciation, and related liability balances under
capital leasing arrangements, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
were:

(In millions) 2007 2008
Property, plant and equipment $ 6.0 $ 5.6
Less accumulated depreciation (3.0 2.7)
Net property, plant and eguipment $ 3.0 $29
Capital lease obligations $ 3.4 $ 3.4
Less current maturities 0.4) (0.3
Long-term capital lease

obligations, net $ 3.0 $ 3.1

In addition to the capital leases above, certain sales
and administrative offices, data processing equipment and
manufacturing facilities are leased under operating leases. We
recognize rental expense on operating leases straight-line over
the term of a lease. Rental expense under operating leases was
%8.1 million in 2007 and $6.5 million in both 2004 and 2005.

Scheduled future minimum lease payments as of December
31, 2007 were:

{In millions)
Payable during the years ending Type of Lease
December 31: Capital Dperating
2008 $ 06 $ 5.6
2009 0.6 4.2
2010 0.5 3.0
2011 0.3 2.4
2012 0.3 1.4
Thereafter 2.5 4.5
Tatal minimum lease payments $ 48 $21.1
Less amounts representing

interest 1.4
Present value of future minimum

capital lease payments 3.4

Less current obligations under

(in miltions) 2007 2004 capital leases (0.4)
4.75% senior subordinated notes, Long-term obligations under
due 2015 $221.1 $221.6 capital leases $ 3.0

The aggregate fair values of the above notes payable were
estimated on the basis of quoted market prices; however, trading
in these securities is limited and may not reflect actual fair
value.
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Note 9 — Retirement and Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans

We maintain qualified and nonqualified defined benefit
retirement plans covering certain current and former U.S.
and European employees, as well as retirement savings plans
covering eligible U.5. employees, and participate in a union
sponsored multi-employer pension plan covering certain U.S.
employees with union affiliations. In addition, we provide
certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits to
eligible U.S. retirees. In December 2004, our Board of Directors
voted to terminate the U.S. qualified defined benefit plan as of
April 1, 2007,

We account for our defined benefit retirement plans and our
postretirernent benefit plans using actuarial models required by
Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’
Accounting for Pensions {"FAS 877}, No. 88, Employers” Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and for Termination Benefits [("FAS 887, No. 106, Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions {"FAS
106") and No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

As of Decemnber 31, 2006, we adopted FAS 158 which requires
us to recognize the funded status of our benefit plans [measured
as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the
projected benefit obligation] in our consolidated balance sheet.
Upon adoption of FAS 158, we increased our pension liabilities
and "accumulated other comprehensive lass” by $17.0 million. In
addition, we recognized as a component of “other comprehensive
loss”, the gains or losses and prior service costs and credits that
had not been recognized as companents of net periodic costs
pursuant to FAS 87. Amortization of loss and other prior service
costs is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected
future years of service of the plans’ active participants.

These accounting standards require the use of certain
assumptions, such as the expected long-term rate of return,
discount rate, rate of compensation increase, healthcare cost
trend rates, and retirement and mortality rates, to determine the
net periodic costs of such plans. These assumptions are reviewed
and set annually at the beginning of each year. In addition, these
models use an “attribution approach” that generally spreads
individual events, such as plan amendments and changes in
actuarial assumptions, over the service lives of the employees in
the plan. That is, employees render service over their service lives
on a relatively smooth basis and therefore, the income statement
effects of retirement and postretirement benefit plans are earned
in, and should follow, the same pattern.

We use our actual return experience, future expectations of
long-term investment returns, and our actual and targeted asset
allocations to develop our expected rate of return assumption
used in the net periodic cost calculations of our funded U.5. and
European defined benefit retirement plans. Due to the difficulty
involved in predicting the market performance of certain assets,
there will almost always be a difference in any given year between
our expected return on plan assets and the actual return.
Foltowing the attribution approach, each year's difference is
amortized over a number of future years. Overtime, the expected
long-term returns are designed to approximate the actual long-
term returns and therefore result in a pattern of income and
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expense recognition that more closely matches the pattern of the
services provided by the employees.

We annually set our discount rate assumption for retirement-
related benefits accounting to reflect the rates available on high-
guality, fixed-income debt instruments. The discount rate for
our U.S. nonqualified defined benefit and postretirement plans
is based on the Mercer Yield Curve which is constructed from
a portfolio of high quality corporate bonds rated AA or better
for which the timing and amount of cash flows approximate
the estimated payouts of the plans. The discount rate for the
U.5. qualified pension plan was based on the plan’s current
lump sum interest rates for those expected to receive a lump
sum, and for current retirees the expected interest rate that an
insurance company will use for a plan termination. The rate of
compensation increase for nonqualified pension plans, which is
another significant assumption used in the actuarial maodel for
pension accounting, is determined by us based upon our long-
term plans for such increases and assumed inflation. These
rates used have remained relatively constant over the past three
years and are expected to remain constant for 2008. For the
postretirement health care and life insurance benefits plan, we
review external data and its historical trends for health care costs
to determine the health care cost trend rates. Retirement and
termination rates are based primarily on actual plan experience.
The mortality table used for the U.S. plans is based on the RP2000
Mortality Table and for the U.K. Plans the PMA/PFA 92 C2010
mortality table is used.

In connection with our decision to terminate the U.S. Qualified
Plan, we made the decision to liquidate all our equity investments
inthe plan. As such, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, our cash
balances in this plan exceed the plan’s targeted range. Such cash
balances were invested in high quality government securities
with maturities of ane year or less as the termination process
continues. In addition, the U.5. Qualified Plan's managed fixed
income portfolio was liquidated during 2007. The expected return
on plan assets assumption for 2007 reflected this change in
investment allocation.

Actual results that differ from our assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore,
generally affect the net periodic costs and recorded obligations
in such future periods. While we believe that the assumptions
used are appropriate, significant changes in economic ar other
conditions, employee demographics, retirement and mortality
rates, and investment performance may materially impact such
costs and obligations.

U.S. Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

During 2007, we obtained approval fram the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation to proceed with the termination of the
U.S. Qualified Defined Benefit Pian. In December 2007 we
began the process of distributing lump-sum benefit payments
and purchasing annuity contracts for all the U.S. qualified plan
participants. During December, we distributed $19.7 million
out of the pension fund in the form of lump-sum payments
and recognized pension expense of $%.4 million relating to the
settlement of benefit obligations, which is included in "Other
expense, net” on the accompanying Consolidated Statement of
Operations. We estimate distributions totaling approximately $7.5
million will be made during the first quarter of 2008 to complete
the settlement of our pension benefit abligation, for which we will
incur approximately $3 million of pension expense. The estimated
$7.5 million of cash payments will be funded by Hexcel.




The following summarizes the U.S. Qualified Plan’s actual
and targeted asset allocations as of December 31, 2007, 2004

and 2005:

Actual
2007 2006 2005 Policy Range
Asset Class:
Equities 0% 0% 61%  45% - 65%
Fixed Income 0% 9% 39%  30% - 50%
Cash 100% 51% 0% 2% - 10%

Changes made to the actual asset allocations outside of
targeted policy ranges as a result of the decision to terminate
the U.S. Qualified Plan were approved by our Board of Directors.
We made an additional cash contribution of $5.9 million and $1.9
million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, to the plan to fund lump-
sum payments.

Prior to 2007, we utilized long-term historical actual return
experience, future expectations of long-term investment returns
for each asset class, and asset allocations to develop the expected
long-term rate of return assumptions used in the net periodic
cost calculations of our U.S. Qualified Plan. However, as a result
of the plan termination, which is expected to be completed during
the first quarter of 2008, we expect to have insignificant returns
for the 2008 plan year. Fair value of plan assets as of December
31, 2007 were $0.4 million.

Our funding policy for the nongualified defined benefit
retirement plans covering certain current and former U.S.
employees is generally to pay benefits as they are incurred.
Under the provisions of these plans, we expect to contribute
approximately $1.0 million in 2008 to cover unfunded benefits.

U.S. Postretirement Plans

Under the retirement savings plans, eligible U.5. employees
can contribute up to 20% of their annual cempensation te an
individual 401(k] retirement savings account. The Company makes
matching contributions equal to 50% of employee contributions,
not to exceed 3% of employee compensation each year. We also
contribute an additional 2% to 3% of each eligible employee’'s
salary to an individual 401(k] retirement savings account,
depending on the employee’s age. This increases the maximum
contribution te individual employee savings accounts to between
5% and 6% per year, before any profit sharing contributions that
are made when we meet or exceed certain performance targets
that are set annually.

In addition to defined benefit and retirement savings plan
benefits, we also provide certain postretirement health care and
life insurance benefits to eligible U.5. retirees. Depending upen
the plan, benefits are available to eligible employees who retire
an or after age 58 or 62 after rendering a minimum of 15 or 25
years, respectively, of service to Hexcel. Qur funding policy for
the postretirement heatth care and life insurance benefit plans is
generally to pay covered expenses as they are incurred. Under the
provisions of these plans, we expect to contribute approximately
$1.3 million in 2008 to cover unfunded benefits.

European Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

We maintain defined benefit retirement plans in the United
Kingdom, Belgium, and Austria covering certain employees of our
subsidiaries in those countries. The defined benefit plan in the
United Kingdom [the "U.K. Plan”] is the largest of the European
plans, which represented approximately 91% of the total 2007 net
periodic benefit cost for European plans.

in April 2007 some changes were made to the U.K. scheme,
including that the scheme was closed to new members as of
March 31, 2007. Company contributions were increased by 1%
of member's pensionable salary to 14%. Member’s contributions
remained unchanged at 7.5% although this is now paid via a
salary exchange arrangement, which is beneficial to the scheme.
From April 2007 new employees in the UK could enter a defined
contribution benefit plan where fixed employee contributions are
matched by the company.

As of December 31, 2007, 85% of the total assets in the UK.
Plan were invested in equities. Equity investments are made
with the objective of achieving a return on plan assets consistent
with the funding requirements of the plan, maximizing portfolio
return and minimizing the impact of market fluctuations on the
fair value of the plan assets. We use long-term historical actual
return experience to develop the expected long-term rate of
return assumptions used in the net periodic cost calculations of
our U.K. Plan. As aresult of an annual review of histarical returns
and market trends, the expected long-term weighted average
rate of return for the U.K. Plan for the 2008 plan year will be 7.1%.
We plan to contribute approximately $2.8 million to the U.K. Plan
during the 2008 plan year.

Retirement and Other Postretirement Plans - France

The employees of our French subsidiaries are entitled to receive
a lump-sum payment upon retirement subject to certain service
conditions under the provisions of the national chemicals and
textile warkers collective bargaining agreements. In addition, our
French subsidiaries have recorded a long-term pension obligation
to provide stated benefits to three participating employees upon
retirement. The calculations for these obligations are performed
annually by an independent actuary. The amounts attributable to
the French plans have been included within the total expense and
obligation amounts noted for the European plans.

Net Periodic Pension Expense

Net periodic expense for our U.5. and European qualified
and nonqualified defined benefit pension plans and our U.S.
retirement savings plans for the three years ended December 31,
2007 is detailed in the table below. The total pension expense, for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, has been adjusted
from the previously disclosed expense amounts of $23.7 million
and $23.9 million, respectively. The adjustments had no impact
on the consolidated statement of operations.

[In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Defined benefit

retirement plans (a) $ 23.2 $12.4 $11.3
Union sponsored multi-
employer pension plan 0.6 0.4 0.4

Retirement savings

plans-matching

contributions 2.4 1.9 1.8
Retirement savings

plans-profit sharing

contributions 6.6 4.2 4.3

$ 328 $19.1 $17.8

Net periodic expense

la] Defined benefit retirement plan expense for 2007, includes $9.4 miltion of
expense related to the settlement of the U.S. qualified pension plan.
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Defined Benefit Retirement and Postretirement Plans

Net periodic cost of our defined benefit retirement and postretirement plans for the three years ended December 31, 2007, were:

(In millions) U.5. Plans European Plans
Defined Benefit Retirement Plans 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 11 $ 1.4 $ 1.1 $ 4.6 $ 39 % 28
Interest cost 2.0 2.0 1.9 7.0 5.0 5.3
Expected return on plan assets (0.8) £1.1) (1.1) (8.1) (6.2) {5.4]
Net amortization and deferral 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.4 1.0 1.1
Sub-total 39 3.6 3.1 4.9 4.7 3.8
Curtailment and settlerment
loss 10.2 0.8 0.7 — — -
Net periodic pension cost $14.1 $ 4.4 $ 3.8 $ 4.9 $ 4.7 $ 3.8
Postretirement Plans 2007 2004 2005
Service cost $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 02
Interest cost 0.7 0.7 0.9
Net amartization and deferrat (0.1 (0.3] (0.2
Curtailment and settlement
gain [loss] 0.2 (0.6) -
Net periodic postretirement
benefit cost $ 0.9 % (0.1) $09
{In mitlions) For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations Recognized in Other Postretirement
Comprehensive Income U.5. Plans European Plans Plans
Changes in unrecognized prior service costs:
Plan amendments $ 05 $ (8.8 $ (0.5
Curtailment (0.8) - 1.8
Amortization of prior service (cost] credit {0.2) 0.4 0.3
Total change in unrecognized prior service cost (0.5) (8.4] 1.6
Changes in unrecognized actuarial gain (loss):
Recognized actuarial gain [loss) (1.4] (1) 0.2)
Curtailment and Settlement [loss] gain [9.4) - [1.2]
Actuarial [gain] loss on benefit obligation 22 (10.0} {0.4]
investment (gainl loss 0.1 (3.5) -
Total change in unrecognized actuarial {gain] less: (8.5) [14.4] (1.8)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ (9.0) $123.00 $ (0.2)

The Company expects to recognize $3.3 million of net actuarial loss and $0.2 miltion of net prior service cradit as a component of net
periodic pension cost in 2008 for its defined benefit plans. The Company expects to recognize $0.2 million of net prior service credit as
a compoenent of net periodic postretirement benefit cast in 2008. The recognition of net actuarial loss as a component of net periodic

postretirement benefit cost in 2008 is expected to be immateriat.
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The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, funded status, and amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements for
our defined benefit retirement plans and postretirement plans, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, were:

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

U.5. Plans European Plans Postretirement Plans

{In millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation - beginning of year $ 39.4 $ 343 $138.1 $110.6 $ 13.7 $ 162

Service cost 1.1 1.4 4.6 3.9 0.1 0.1

Interest cost 2.0 2.0 7.0 6.0 0.7 0.8

Plan participants’ contributions — - 0.8 1.4 0.5 0.6

Amendments 0.5 - (8.4) - (0.5) —

Actuarial loss [gain) 2.2 23 (8.8) 3.1 (0.3) (2.3]

Benefits and expenses paid (0.5) (0.7] 4.9 [2.2) (1.3) {1.6]

Curtailment and settlement loss [(al (22.6) [1.9] {0.9) - (1.5) (0.1]

Currency translation adjustments — — 3.8 15.3 - —
Benefit obtigation - end of year $ 221 $ 394 $131.3 $ 1381 $ 1.4 $ 137
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year $ 165 $ 151 $105.1 $ 81.6 $ - $ -

Actual return on plan assets 0.7 1.4 11.4 10.0 - -

Employer contributions 6.3 2.6 4.5 2.6 0.8 1.0

Plan participants” contributions - — 0.8 1.4 0.5 0.5

Benefits and expenses paid (0.5) (0.9 (4.8) (2.1] (1.3) (1.6]

Currency translation adjustments - - 2.4 11.6 - -

Settlernents {22.56) (1.9) - — — -
Fair value of plan assets - end of year $ 04 $ 145 $119.4 $ 1051 $ - $ -
Reconciliation of funded status to net amount

recognized:

Unfunded status $ (21.71 $ (22.9) $ (11.7) $ 133.0 $ 11.4) $ (13.7)

Unrecognized actuarial loss [gain) b4 12.9 16.1 29.0 (0.8) [2.5)

Unamortized prior service cost {benefit] 0.7 1.2 (8.4 — (0.3) 1.5
Net amount recognized $ [16.8) $ (8.8 $ 14.2) $ (4.0 $ (12.5) $ 147
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance

Sheets:

Accrued benefit costs $ - $ - $ - $ - $ — $ -

Current accrued benefit liability 17.8) — - - (1.3) (0.8)

Non current accrued benefit Liability (13.9] (22.91 (11.7) (33.0] (10.1) (13.1]

. Accumulated other comprehensive loss
lincomel (hefore tax for European Plans) 5.1 14.1 7.5 29.0 (1.1] (1.0]

Met amount recognized $ (16.6) $ (8.8 $ 15.2) $ (4.0 $ (12.5) $ (14.7)

(a] The 2007 post retirement plan amount includes a FAS 88 curtailment gain of $1.7 million related to discontinued operations.,
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The measurement date used to determine the benefit
obligations and plan assets of the defined benefit retirement and
postretirement plans was December 31, 2007, with the exception
of the U.K. Plan which had a measurement date of September 30,
2007. On January 1, 2008, we remeasured the projected benefit
obligation for the U.K. Plan, which resulted in an increase to the
projected benefit obligation of $0.2 million.

The total accumulated benefit obligation {"ABG"] for the U.S.
defined benefit retirement plans was $21.5 million and $38.3
million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The U.5.
Qualified Plan’s ABO exceeded plan assets by $6.9 million and
$11.2 million as of December 31, 2007 and 20064, respectively.
The U.K. Plan's ABO exceeded plan assets as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, by $1.7 million and $1.9 million, respectively. This
plan’s ABO was $114.9 million and $102.0 million as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As of Decernber 31, 2007 and 2006, the accrued benefit costs for
the defined benefit retirement plans and postretirement benefit
plans included within “accrued compensation and benefits™ was
$9.1 million and $0.6 million, respectively, and within "other
non-current liabilities” was $35.7 million and $49.0 million,
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The assumed discount rate for pension plans reflects the
market rates for high-quality fixed income debt instruments
currently available. In 2004, we utilized the U.K. iBoxx AA Rated
Corporate Bong Yield Index for the U.K. Pension Plan. In 2007 and

2006, as a result of our decision to terminate the U.S. Qualified
plan, we used the settlement rate specified to pay lump-sums in
the plan to set our discount rate for the U.5. Qualified Plan, while
in 2005 we utilized the Mercer Yield Curve as a benchmark to set
our discount rate for this plan. For 2007, 2006 and 2005, we also
used the Mercer Yield Curve to set our discount rate for the U5,
non-qualified plans. Prior to 2005, we set our discount rate for
all U.S. plans based on a Moody Aa benchmark. We believe that
the timing and amount of cash flows related to these instruments
is expected to match the estimated defined benefit payment
streams of our plans.

Salary increase assumptions are based on historical
experience and anticipated future management actions. For the
postretirement health care and life insurance benefit plans, we
review external data and our historical trends for health care
costs to determine the health care cost trend rates. Retirement
rates are based primarily on actual plan experience and mortality
rates are based on the RP2000 mortality table. Actual results
that differ from our assumptions are accumulated and amortized
over future periods and, therefore, generally affect the net
periodic costs and recorded obligations in such future periods.
While we believe that the assumptions used are appropriate,
significant changes in economic or other conditions, employee
demographics, retirement and mortality rates, and investment
performance may materially impact such costs and obligations.

Assumptions used to estimate the actuarial present value of benefit obligations at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are shown in
the following table. These year-end values are the basis for determining net periodic costs for the following year.

2007 2008 2005
U.S. defined benefit retirement plans:
Discount rates 5.15%- 6.50% 4.75% - 5.75% 5.5%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets N/A 5.0% 7.5%
European defined benefit retirement plans:
Discount rates 5.0% - 5.7% 4.5% - 5.75% 5.3% - 5.75%

Rates of increase in compensation 0.0% - 4.1% 0.0% - 4.0% 0.0% - 4.0%
Expected long-term rates of return
on plan assets 5.0% - 6.0% 4.5% - 7.5% 5.0% - 8.0%
Postretirement benefit plans:
Discount rates 6.0% 5.75% 5.5%
Rates of increase in compensation N/A 4.5% 4.0% -~ 4.5%
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The foltowing table presents the impact that a one-percentage-point increase and a one-percentage-point decrease in the expected
long-term rate of return and discount rate would have on the 2008 pension expense (including the FAS 88 settlement charge for
terminating the U.S. qualified pension plan], and the impact on our retirement obligation as of December 31, 2007 for a one-percentage-

peint change in the discount rate:

Non Qualified Retiree Medical U.K. Retirement

{In millions) Pension Plans Plans Plan
Periodic pension expense
One-percentage-point increase:

Expected long-term rate of return % N/A $ N/A $ 1.0]

Discount rate $ (0. $ 0.1 $ 8]
One-percentage-point decrease:

Expected long-term rate of return $ N/A $ N/A $1

Discount rate $ 01 $ (0.1) $ 2
Retirement obligation

One-percentage-point increase in discount rate $ (0.8] % 10.7) $031.0]

One-percentage-point decrease in discount rate $ 08 $ 08 $1%.0

The annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered
health care benefits is assumed to be 9.0% for medical and 5.0%
for dental and vision for 2008. The medical rates are assumed to
gradually decline to 5.0% by 2013, whereas dental and vision rates
are assumed to remain constant at 5.0%. A one-percentage-point
increase and a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed
health care cost trend would have an insignificant impact on the
total of service and interest cost components, and would have an
unfaverable and favorable impact of approximately $0.4 million,
respectively, on the postretirement benefit obligation for both
2007 and 2004.

2007 Annual Report 51



Note 10 — Income Taxes

Income before income taxes and the provision for income taxes,
for the three years ended December 31, 2007, were as follows:

{In millions] 2007 2006 2005
Income before income

taxes:

u.s. $ 475 $ 558 $ [(2.8)

International 24.9 23.9 16.4
Total income before

income taxes $ 92.4 $ 797 $ 138

Provision for income

taxes:
Current:

U.s. $ 103 $ 27 $ 14.3)

International 13.0 15.5 2.1
Current provision for

income taxes 23.3 18.2 4.8
Deferred:

u.s. 10.7 213 (118.8)

International (0.4) (4.8] 0.2
Deferred provision

(benefit] for income

taxes 10.1 16.5 (118.4)
Total provision [benefit)

for income taxes $ 334 $ 347 $(113.8)

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the U.5.
federal statutory income tax rate of 35% to the effective income
tax rate, for the three years ended December 31, 2007, is as
follows:

{In mitlions) 2007 2006 2005

Provision for taxes
at U.S. federal

statutory rate $ 324 $ 334 $ 48
State and local

taxes, net of

federal benefit 0.6 0.3 0.2
Foreign effective

rate differential 1.8 2.6 4.0
Other (2.0 0.7 (3.8)
Adjustment to state

deferred tax

assets [al 1.9 - -
Valuation

allowance ‘ 2.5 12.3] (119.2]
Total provision

(benefit] for

income taxes $ 334 $ 347 $(113.8)

(a] Included in the provision recarded in the fourth quarter of 2007 was a net
benefit of $1.9 mitlion, which includes an adjustment of $2.3 million to certain
prior period balances to primarity record additional deferred tax assets arising
from state net operating loss carryforwards, ofiset by other discrete items of
$0.4 million.
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As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we have made no U.S5.
income tax provision for undistributed earnings of international
subsidiaries. Such earnings are considered to be permanently
reinvested. Estimating the tax liability that would result if these
earnings were repatriated is not practicable at this time.

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes result from net operating loss
carryforwards and temporary differences between the recognition
of items forincome tax purposes and financial reporting purposes.
Principal components of deferred income taxes as of December
31, 2007 and 2006 were:

[In millions] 2007 2004
Assets
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 57.4 $ 49.8
Unfunded pension liabitity 10.7 8.6
Accelerated amortization 43.0 53.7
Capital loss carryforwards 8.5 8.7
Reserves and other NS 415
Subtotal 151.2 162.3
Valuation allowance (28.9]) [26.4)
Total assets $122.3 $135.9
Liabilities
Accelerated depreciation (14.7] {11.8]
Other 11.8) 1.3]
Totat liabilities $(14.5) $013.1)
Net deferred tax asset $105.8 $122.8

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as presented
in the consolidated batance sheets as of December 31, 2007 and
2004 are as follows and are recorded in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, deferred tax assets, and other non-current
Liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets:

{In millions) 2007 2006
Current deferred tax assets, net $21.0 $22.2
Long-term deferred tax assets,

net 88.7 103.1
Long-term deferred tax liability,

net (3.9 (2.5)

Net deferred tax assets $105.8 $122.8

Included in the 2006 provision for income taxes was the reversal
of $4.5 million of the valuation allowance against our U.S. deferred
tax assets related to capital losses. This reversal was made in
connection with the sale of our investment in TechFab, which
resulted in a gain that was offset by a capital loss carryforward.

On December 31, 2005, we recognized through our tax
provision, a $119.2 million reversal representing the majority
of the previously recorded U.S. deferred tax asset valuation
allowance. In assessing the ability to realize our deferred tax
assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized based
on available positive and negative evidence. We considered
histerical book income, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, and projected future book and taxable income in making
this assessment. Based upon a detailed analysis of historical




and expected book and taxable income, we determined that the
realization of certain U.S. deferred tax assets for which a valuation
allowance had been previously recorded is considered to be more
tikely than not for purposes of reversing the valuation allowance.
in addition, as part of the reversal we increased the additional
paid-in capital by $10.8 million for the tax benefit related to the
conversion of restricted stock units and the exercise of stock
options embedded in the net operating losses and tax affected
the balances held in "accumulated other comprehensive loss™.

The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2007 and 2004
related to net operating loss carryforwards of our Belgian
subsidiary, and certain UK subsidiaries, certain state temporary
differences, state net operating loss carryforwards and capital
loss carryforwards for which we have determined, based
upen historical results and projected future book and taxable
income levels, that a valuation allowance should continue to be
maintained.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we identified errors in our
accounting for certain deferred tax assets as of December 31,
2005. These errors have been corrected under the provisions
of SAB 108. Specifically, the accounting for the deferred tax
asset arising from the minimum pension obligation reflected in
AQCI as of December 31, 2005 was overstated and resulted in an
overstatement of the release of the valuation allowance against
our U.S. net deferred tax assets as of that date. Additionally.
we identified unrecorded deferred tax assets as of December
31, 2005 primarily related to general business and foreign tax
credits, and capital loss carryforwards. The impact of these
and other adjustments is a net increase in deferred tax assets
of $10.3 million and an increase in the valuation allowance of
$13.8 million.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2007, we had net operating loss
carryforwards for U.S. and foreign income tax purposes of
approximately $125 million and $35.7 million, respectively. The
Company generated net operating loss carryforwards of $17.4
million during 2007, attributable to excess tax deductions on
stock option activity, which will be realized as a benefit to APIC
when they reduce income taxes payable. On March 19, 2003, we
completed a refinancing of our capital structure, and as a result,
we had an “ownership change” pursuant to IRC Section 382,
which wilt imit our ability to utilize net operating losses against
future U.S. taxable income to $5.3 million per annum. Cur U.S.
net operating losses begin to expire in 2019 and continue to expire
through 2022. Qur foreign net operating losses can be carried
forward without limitation.

Uncertain Tax Positions

On January 1, 2007 we adopted the provisions of FASB
Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
["FIN 487]. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the
Company recognized a $0.9 million increase in the liabitity for
unrecognized tax benefits. This increase in liability resulted in
an increase to the January 1, 2007 accumulated deficit balance in
the amount of $1.6 million, a decrease in deferred tax liabilities
of $1.0 million, and an increase in accrued interest of $1.7
million. Qur unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007,
retates to various Foreign and U.S. jurisdictions.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our
unrecognized tax benefits:

Unrecognized

[In millions) Tax Benefits
Balance as of January 1, 2007 $ 15.3
Additions based on tax positions related to the

current year 3.5
Additions for tax positions of prior years 0.7
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 0.7

Decreases relating to settlements with tax

authorities 1.1)
Expiration of the statute of limitations for the

assessment of taxes (0.9
Other, including currency translation 1.7
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 185

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $18.5 million
at December 31, 2007 was $15.3 million of tax benefits that, if
recognized, would impact our annual effective tax rate. In addition,
we recognize interest accrued retated to unrecognized tax benefits
as a compenent of interest expense and penalties as a component
of income tax expense in the condensed consolidated statements
of operations, During 2007, we accrued potential interest of $0.2
million, net of reversals, related to the unrecognized tax benefits.
As of December 31, 2007, we have recorded a liability of $3.3
million for the payment of interest.

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and various states and
foreign jurisdictions. The W.S. federal statute of limitations
remains open for prior years; however the U.5, tax returns have
been audited through 2003. Foreign and U.S. state jurisdictions
have statutes of limitations generally ranging from 3 to 5 years.
Years still open to examination by foreign tax authorities in
major jurisdictions include Austria [2002 onward], Belgium (2004
onwardl, France {2005 onward], Spain {2003 onward] and UK
2005 onward]. We are currently under examination in various
U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions.

As of December 31, 2007, we had uncertain tax positions for
which it is reasonably pessible that amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits could significantly change over the next year. These
uncertain tax positions relate to our tax returns from 2003
onward, some of which are currently under examination by
certain European taxing authorities. We are unable to provide
an estimate of possible change to the unrecognized tax benefits
related to these tax positions.

We expect that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will
continue te change in the next twelve maonths as a result of
ongeing tax deductions, the resolutions of audits and the passing
of the statute of limitations. During the third quarter of 2007,
the Company favorably settled an income tax audit in one of
its international tocations. As a result of this settlement, the
company reversed certain tax reserves related to the audit, which
had been previously established under FIN 48,
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Note 11 — Capital Stock

Common Stock Outstanding
Common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 was as follows:

(Number of shares in milticns) 2007 2006 2005
Common stock:

Balance, beginning of year 95.5 941 55.0

Conversion of mandatorily
redeemable convertible

preferred stock - - 36.8
Activity under stock plans 2.1 1.4 2.3
Balance, end of year 97.6 95.5 941
Treasury stock:
Balance, beginning of year 1.7 15 1.4
Repurchased 0.1 0.2 0.1
Balance, end of year 1.8 1.7 1.5
Comman stock outstanding 95.8 93.8 92.6

Secondary Offerings of Common Stock and Conversions of
Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

On August 9, 2005, certain of our stockholders completed a
secondary offering of 14,500,000 shares of our common stock.
Of the total common shares offered, 11,075,160 common shares
were obtained upon the conversion of 24,007 shares of Series A
and 47,125 shares of series B mandatarily redeemable convertible
preferred stock. Common shares offered included 8,098,002
shares offered by affiliates of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.,
and 6,401,998 shares offered equally by affiliates of Berkshire
Partners LLC and Greenbriar Equity Group LLC. An additional
2,115,998 common shares were sold when the underwriters
exercised their over-allotment option on August 17, 2005. The
additional shares were offered equally by affiliates of Berkshire
Partners LLC and Greenbriar Equity Group LLC and were obtained
upon the conversion of 6,348 shares of series A mandatorily
redeemable convertible preferred stock. We received no net
proceeds from this offering. In connection with the offering, we
recorded transaction costs of $1.0 million related to the secondary
offering. The $1.0 miltion of transaction costs were included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the consclidated
statement of cperations.

On December 29, 2005, we announced the conversion of the
remaining 70,729 shares of our outstanding Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock into 23,576,330 shares of our commaon stock. As
a result of the conversion, there are no longer any shares of any
class of capital stock outstanding other than common stock.
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In connection with the offering of common shares and the
conversions of mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred
stock in 2005, we recorded non-cash charges of $23.2 million.
These charges represent the write-off of a pro-rata portion of the
unamortized beneficial conversion feature, issuance discount and
deferred financing costs remaining from the original issuance
of the securities. These charges were included in "Deemed
preferred dividends and accretion” in the consolidated statement
of operations.

On March 15, 2006, certain of our stockholders campleted a
secondary offering of 21,433,306 shares of our common stock.
Affiliates of the Goldman Sachs Group, tnc. sold 12,825,521 shares
and affiliates of Berkshire Partners LLC and Greenbriar Equity
Group LLC sold 8,607,785 shares. An additional 1,750,000 common
shares were sold on March 21, 2006 as a result of the exercise
by the underwriters of an over-allotment cption, composed of
1,047,186 shares sold by affiliates the Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc. and 702,814 shares sold by affiliates of Berkshire Partners
LLC and Greenbriar Equity Group LLC. We did not receive any
proceeds from this offering. We recorded transaction costs of
$1.2 million related to this secondary offering.

Note 12 — Related Parties

On December 1%, 2000, investment funds controlled by The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. [the "Goldman Sachs Investors”)
completed a purchase of approximately 14.5 million of the
approximately 18 million shares of Hexcel common stock owned by
Ciba Specialty Chemicals Holding, Inc. and certain of its affiliates.
At such time, the shares acquired by the Goldman Sachs lnvestors
represented approximately 39% of our outstanding common stock.
In addition, Hexcel and the Goldman Sachs Investors entered into
a governance agreement that became effective on December 19,
2060. Under this governance agreement, the Goldman Sachs
Investors had the right to, among other things, designate up to
three directors to sit on our board of directors. The governance
agreement expired upon the comptetion of the sale of common
stock by the Goldman Sachs iInvestors pursuant to a series of
secondary offerings.

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
Company paid $8.7 million and $7.4 million, respectively, to an
affiliate of the Goldman Sachs Investors for underwriting services.
The Company incurred these expenses in conjunction with private
offerings of our 6.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and the public
sales during 2006 and 2005.




Note 13 — Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R], which
requires the measurement and recognition of compensation
expense for all stock-based payment awards made to employees
and directors, including employee stock options and restricted
stock, based on estimated fair values. The Company adopted
SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transitien method,
which requires application of the accounting standard as of the
date of adoption. In accordance with the modified prospective
transition method, the consolidated financial statements for
prior periods have not been restated to reflect the impact of
SFAS 123IR). Therefore, the results for fiscal 2007 and 2006 are
not directly comparable to fiscal 2005.

Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R/

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123[R], as permitted by
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
[SFAS 123} and SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, the Company applied
the accounting rules under APB 25, which provided that no
compensation expense was charged for options granted at
an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on our net income
and net income per share for the year ended December 31, 2005
assuming we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
FAS 123IR] to awards granted under the Company's stock-based
compensatien plans prior to the adoption of this standard:

{In millions, except per share data) 2005

Net income available to common shareholders,

as reported $1105
Add: Stock-based compensation expense

included in reported net income, net of tax 1.6
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense

determined under the fair value based method

for all awards (3.7)
Pro forma net income $108.4
Basic net income per commaon share:

As reported $ 1.84

Pra forma $ 1
Diluted net income per common share:

As reported $ 1.3

Pro forma $ 1.49

Adoption of SFAS 123(R]

The following table details the stock-based compensation
expense by type of award and the effect of FAS 123(R] adoption
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,

[!n millions, except per share data) 2007 2008
Non-qualified stock aptions $ 4.2 $ 4.4
Restricted stock, service based

("RSUs"] 3.9 33
Restricted stock, performance

based ["PRSUs”] 2.3 0.6
Stock-based compensation expense

before tax effect 10.4 8.3
Tax effect on stock-hased

compensation expense (4.1] 13.2)
Total stock-based compensation

expense, net of tax $ 6.3 $ 5.1

Effect on net income from

continuing operations per basic

share $0.07 $0.05
Effect on net income from

continuing operations per

diluted share $0.07 $0.05

Non-Qualified Stock Options

Non-qualified stock options have been granted to our
employees and directors under our stock compensation plan.
Options granted generally vest over three years and expire ten
years from the date of grant.
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A summary of option activity under the plan for the three years ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Number of Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual
[tn miltions) Options Exercise Price Life lin years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 1.5 $ 831
Options granted 0.4 $ 14.51
Options exercised [2.1) $ 7.6
Options expired or forfeited — % —
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 4.0 $ 8.95 5.41
Options granted 0.3 $ 21.95
Options exercised (1.0) $ 934
Options expired or forfeited (0.1] $ 19.84
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 5.2 $ 9.40 5.15
Options granted 0.5 $ 18.37
Options exercised (1.9 $ B8.66
Options expired or forfeited {0.1) $ 18.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 3.7 $ 1042 5.07
Year Ended December 31,
{In millions, except weighted average exercise pricel 2007 2008
Aggregate intrinsic value for outstanding options $ 49.9 $ 413
Aggregate intrinsic vatue for exercisable options L R AN A $ 388
Total intrinsic value of options exercised $ 27.0 $ 121
Total number of options exercisable 2.8 4.2
Weighted average exercise price of aptions exercisable $ 8.64 $ B.09
Total unrecognized compensation cost on nonvested options (a) $ 23 $ 3.2

[a) Unrecognized compensation cost relates to nonvested stock options and is expected to be recognized over the remaining vesting pericd ranging from one year to

three years.

The following table summarizes information about non-qualified stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding

Dptions Exercisable

Number of Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average

Range of Exercise Prices Options Qutstanding Remaining Life lin Years) Exercise Price Options Exercisable Exercise Price
$ 1.37-3.15 0.8 4.86 $ 3.03 0.8 $ 3.03

$ 4.50-6.68 0.1 2.44 $ 5.75 0.1 $ 575

$ 7.38-11.00 15 3.88 % 9.51 14 $ 9.45

$ 12.00-20.82 1.0 6.54 $15.84 0.4 $13.80

$ 22.00-26.94 0.3 7.57 $22.09 0.1 $22.1

$ 1.37-26.94 3.7 5.07 $10.462 2.8 $ 8.64
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Valuation Assumptions in Estimating Fair Value

We estimated the fair value of stock optiens at the grant date
using the Black Scholes option pricing madel with the foltowing
assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

Risk-free interest rate 4.84% 4.50% 3.74%
Expected option life [in

years} Executive 5.97 5.90 5.66
Expected option life [in

years] Nan-Executive 5.24 5.43 5.10
Dividend yield —% —% =%
Volatility 4£0.94% 46.44% 56.33%
Weighted-average

fair value per option

granted $8.41 $10.87 $7.88

We determine the expected option life for each grant based on
ten years of historical option activity for two separate groups of
employees [executive and non-executive]. The weighted-average
expected life ["WAEL'] is derived from the average midpoint
between the vesting and the contractual term and considers
the effect of both the inclusion and exclusion of post-vesting
cancellations during the ten-year period. Expected volatility
is calculated based on a blend of both historic volatility of our
common stock and implied valatility of our traded options. We
weigh both volatility inputs equally and utilize the average as the
volatility input for the Black-Scholes calculation. Consistent with
2005, the risk-free interest rate for the expected term is based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. No
dividends were paid in either period; furthermore, we do not plan
to pay any dividends in the future,

Restricted Stock Units - Service Based

As of December 31, 2007, a total of 408,393 shares of service
based restricted stock ["RSUs"| were outstanding, which vest
based on years of service under the 2003 incentive stock plan,
RSUs are granted to key employees, executives and directors of
the Company. The fair value of the RSU is based on the closing
market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant
and is amortized on a straight line basis over the requisite service
period. The stock-based compensation expense recagnized is
based on an estimate of shares ultimately expected to vest, and
therefore it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.

The table presented below provides a summary of the
Company’s RSU activity for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006:

Weighted-Average

Number of Grant Date
(In millions| RSUs Fair Value
QOutstanding at
December 31, 2005 0.4 $ 9.38
RSUs granted 0.2 $ 2195
RSUs issued (0.3} $ 778
RSUs forfeited — $ -
Qutstanding at
December 31, 2004 0.3 $ 16.73
RSUs granted 0.3 $18.90
RSUs issued {0.2) $18.38
RSUs forfeited — $ —
Outstanding at
December 31, 2007 0.4 % 18.39

As of December 31, 2007, there was total unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested RSUs of $2.3 million,
which is to be recognized over the remaining vesting period
ranging from one year to three years.

Restricted Stock Units - Performance Based

As of December 31, 2007, a total of 301,512 shares of
performance based restricted stock ["PRSUs"] were outstanding
under the 2003 incentive stock plan. The total amount of PRSUs
that will ultimately vest is based on the achievement of various
earnings largets set forth by the Company’s Compensation
Committee on the date of grant. PRSUs also contain a one year
service period restriction that commences immaediately after the
conclusion of the two year performance period. The fair value of
the PRSU is based on the closing market price of the Company’s
camman stock on the date of grant and is amortized straight-line
over the total three year period. A change in the performance
measure expected to be achieved is recorded as an adjustmentin
the periad in which the change occurs.
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The table presented below provides a summary of the
Company's PRSU activity for the years ended Decermnber 31, 2007
and 2004:

Weighted-

Average

Number of Grant Date

[in millions) RSUs Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 - $ -
PRSUs granted 0.1 $21.97
PRSUs issued - $ -
PRSUs forfeited - $ -
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 0.1 $ 21.97
PRSUs granted 0.2 $18.26
PRSUs issued - $ -
PRSUs forfeited — $ -
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 0.3 $19.19

As of December 31, 2007, there was total unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested PRSUs of $2.8 mitlion,
which is to be recegnized over the remaining vesting period
ranging from one year to three years.

Stock-Based Compensation Cash Activity

During 2007, cash received from stock option exercises and
from employee stock purchases was $16.1 million. We used $1.9
million in cash related to the shares withheld to satisfy employee
tax obligations for RSUs converted during the year ended
December 31, 2007. We realized a tax benefit of $7.1 million
in connection with stock options exercised and RSUs converted
during 2007.
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Priortothe adoption of FAS 123(R), we presented all tax benefits
of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options and the
conversions of restricted stock units as operating cash flows in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. FAS 123{R) requires
that we classify the cash flows resulting from these tax benefits
as financing cash flows. It has been our practice to issue new
shares of our common stock upon the exercise of stock options
or the conversion of stock units. in the future, we may consider
utilizing treasury shares for stock option exercises or stock unit
conversions.

Shares Authorized for Grant

As of December 31, 2007, an aggregate of 3.6 million shares
were authorized for future grant under our stack plan, which
covers stock options, RSUs, PRSUs and at the discretion of
Hexcel, could result in the issuance of other types of stock-based
awards.

Employee Steck Purchase Plan {"ESPP"}

We maintain an ESPP, under which eligible employees may
contribute up to 10% of their base earnings toward the quarterly
purchase of our common stock at a purchase price equal to 85%
of the fair market value of the common stock on the purchase
date. As of December 31, 2007, the number of shares of common
stock reserved for future issuances under the ESPP was 0.2
million. Shares of common stock issued under the ESPP during
2007 and 2006 were 12,053 and 14,237, respectively.




Note 14 — Net Income Per Common Share

Computations of basic and diluted net income per comman share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

are as foltows:

[in millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Net income from continuing operations $ 63.3 $ 64.9 $13.2
{Loss) income from discontinued operations (5.1 1.0 101
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 3.1 - —
Net income 61.3 65.9 1413
Deemed preferred dividends and accretion - — (30.8)

Net income available to common shareholders $ 61.3 $ 659 $110.5
Basic net income per common share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 94.7 93.4 60.0
Net income from continuing operations per common share $ 0.87 $ 070 $ 1.67
{Loss) income from discontinued operations per commeon share (0.02) 0.01 0.17
Basic net income per common share $ 0.65 $ 0.7 $ 184
Diluted net income per common share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic 94.7 93.4 40.0
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions:

Restricted stock units 0.5 0.4 0.4

Stock options 1.3 1.7 18

Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock -_ - 31.5

Weighted average common shares eutstanding - Diluted 96.5 95.5 93.7
Net income from continuing operations per share $ 0.86 $ 048 $ 1.40
(Loss) income from discontinued operations per share (0.02) 0.01 0.11
Diluted net income per common share $ 0.64 $ 0.69 $ 1.51
Anti-dilutive shares outstanding, excluded from computation 0.7 0.4 0.2

Note 15 — Derivative Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In May 2005, we entered into an agreememt to swap $50.0
million of a floating rate obligation for a fixed rate obligation at an
average of 3.99% against LIBOR in U.S. doliars. The term of the
swap is 3 years, and is scheduled to mature on Juty 1, 2008. The
swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge of our ficating rate
bank loan. To ensure the swap is highly effective, all the principal
terms of the swap match the terms of the bank loan. At June
29, 2007 we terminated the swap and received a cash payment
of $0.6 million. The amounts deferred will be released from OCI
in July 2008. The fair value of this swap at December 31, 2006
was an asset of $1.0 mitlion. A net gain of $0.7 million and $0.6
million were recognized as a component of “interest expense” for
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Cross-Currency Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In September 2006, we entered into a cross-currency interest
rate swap agreement to hedge a partion of our net Euroinvestment
in Hexcel France SA. To the extent it is effective, gains and losses
are recorded as an offset in the curnulative translation account,
the same account in which translation gains and losses on the
investment in Hexcel France SA are recorded. All other changes,
including any difference in current interest, are excluded from
the assessment of effectiveness and are included in operating
income as a component of interest expense. The agreement
has a notional value of $43.4 million, a term of five years, and
is scheduled to mature on September 20, 2011. We wilt receive
interest in U.S. dollars quarterly and will pay interest in Eurgs on
the same day. U.S. interest is based on the three month LIBOR
rate. Eurointerest is based on the three month EURIBOR. The fair
value of the swap at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006
was a liability of $10.6 million and $2.7 million, respectively. A net
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charge to interest expense of $0.1 million related to the excluded
portion of the derivative was recorded in 2007. A net credit to
interest expense of $0.4 million related to the interest coupons
was recorded during 2007. The impact to interest expense for the
fourth quarter of 2006 was immaterial.

In 2003, we entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap
agreement, which effectively exchanges a loan of 12.5 million
Euros at a fixed rate of 7% for a loan with a notional amount of $13.5
million at a fixed rate of 6.02% over the term of the agreement
expiring December 1, 2007. We entered into this agreement to
effectively hedge interest and principal payments relating to
an intercompany loan denominated in Euras. The balance at
December 31, 2006 of both the loan and the swap agreement,
after scheduled amortization, was 4.5 million Euros against $5.9
million. The swap agreement expired on December 31, 2007.
The fair value and carrying amount of this swap agreement was
a liability of $1.2 miltion at December 31, 20046. During 2007 and
2006, hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. A net loss of $0.1
million and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, was recognized as interest expense.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts

A number of our European subsidiaries are exposed to the
impact of exchange rate volatility between the U.S. dollar and the
subsidiarfes’ functional currencies, being either the Euro or the
British Pound Sterling. We entered into contracts to exchange
U.S. dollars for Euros and British Pound Sterling through June
2010. The aggregate notional amount of these contracts was
$124.0 million and $72.6 million at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The purpose of these contracts is to hedge a
portion of the forecasted transactions of European subsidiaries
under long-term sales contracts with certain customers. These
contracts are expected to provide us with a more balanced
matching of future cash receipts and expenditures by currency,
thereby reducing our exposure to fluctuations in currency
exchange rates. For the three years ended December 31, 2007,
hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. Cash flows associated
with these contracts are classified within net cash provided by
operating activities of continuing operations.

The activity in “accumulated other comprehensive income
[loss]” related to foreign currency forward exchange centracts
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as
follows:

{tn millions) 2007 2006 2005
Unrealized gains [losses)

at beginning of period $3.9 $(2.3] $1.3
(Gains) losses

reclassified to net sales 13.1) 0.1 0.6

Increase [decrease) in
fair value, net of tax 2.4 6.1 (4.2

Unrealized gains (losses)

at end of period $3.2 $3.9 $2.3)

Unrealized gains of $2.3 millicn recorded in “accumulated
other comprehensive income [loss),” net of tax, as of December
31, 2007 are expected to be reclassified into earnings over the
next twelve months as the hedged sales are recorded.
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Foreign Currency Options

Consistent with our strategy to create cash flow hedges for
foreign currency exposures, we purchased foreign currency
options te exchange U.S. dollars for British Pound Sterling
beginning in the fourth quarter of 2004. During the third quarter of
2006, we sold the remaining outstanding options, with a notional
value of $3.8 million, for proceeds of $0.1 mitlion. The nominal
amount of such options was $7.5 million at December 31, 2005.
The options were designated as cash flow hedges. There was no
ineffectiveness for either 2006 or 2005. For the twelve months
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the change in fair value
recognized in “accumulated other comprehensive loss” was a
credit of $0.5 mitlion and a charge of $0.5 mitlion, respectively. The
balance sheet value was an asset of $0.1 million at December 31,
2005. During 2006, losses of $0.4 million were reclassified
to net sales and we had an increase in fair market value of
$0.1 million.

Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in litigation, investigations and claims arising
out of the normal conduct of our business, including thase relating
to commercial transactions, environmental, employment, and
health and safety matters., We estimate and accrue our liabilities
resulting from such matters based on a variety of factors,
including the stage of the proceeding; potential settlement value;
assessments by internal and external counsel; and assessments
by environmental engineers and consultants of potential
environmental liabilities and remediation costs. Such estimates
are not discounted to reflect the time value of maney due to the
uncertainty in estimating the timing of the expenditures, which
may extend over several years.

While it is impossible to ascertain the ultimate legal and
financial liability with respect to certain contingent liahilities
and claims, we believe, based upaon our examination of currently
avatlable information, cur experience to date, and advice from
tegal counsel, that the individual and aggregate liabilities resulting
from the ultimate resolution of these contingent matters, after
taking inte consideration our existing insurance coverage and
amounts already provided for, will not have a material adverse
impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various U.S. and international federat,
state and local environmental, and health and safety laws and
regulations. We are also subject to liabilities arising under the
Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act ("CERCLA" or "Superfund”), the Clean Air Act,
the Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act, and similar state and international laws and regulations that
impose responsibility for the control, remediation and abatement
of air, water and soil pellutants and the manufacturing, storage,
handling and disposal of hazardous substances and waste.

We have been named as a potentially responsible party ["PRP")
with respect to several hazardous waste disposal sites that we
do not own or possess, which are included on, or proposed to




be included on, the Superfund National Priority List of the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency ["EPA") or on equivalent lists of
various state governments. Because CERCLA allows for joint and
several liability in certain circumstances, we could be responsible
for all remediation costs at such sites, even if we are one of many
PRPs. We believe, based on the amaount and the nature of our
waste, and the number of other financially viable PRPs, that our
liability in connection with such matters will not be material.

Lodi, New Jersey Site

Pursuant to the New Jersey Industrial Site Recovery Act,
we entered into a Remediation Agreement to pay for the
environmental remediation of a manufacturing facility we own
and formerty operated in Lodi, New Jersey. We have commenced
remediation of this sile in accordance with an approved plan;
however, the ultimate cost of remediating the Lodi site will depend
on developing circumstances. The total accrued liability related
to this matter was $1.7 million as of December 31, 2007.

Lower Passaic River Study Area

In October 2003, we received, along with 64 cther entities, a
directive from the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection ["NJDEP™] that requires the entities to assess whether
operations at various New lersey sites, including our former
manufacturing site in Lodi, New Jersey, caused damage to natural
resources in the Lower Passaic River watershed. In May, 2005,
the NJDEP dismissed us from the Directive. In February 2004, 42
entities, including Hexcel, received a general notice letter from the
EPA which requested that the entities consider helping to finance
an estimated $10 million towards an EPA study of environmental
conditions in the Lower Passaic River watershed. tn May 2005,
we signed onto an agreement with EPA to participate [bringing
the total number of participating entities to 43] in financing such
a study up to $10 million, in the aggregate. Since May, 2005,
a number of additienal PRPs have joined into the agreement
with EPA. In October 2005, we along with the other EPA notice
recipients were advised by the EPA that the notice recipients’ share
of the costs of the EPA study was expected to significantly exceed
the earlier EPA estimate. While we and the other recipients were
not obligated by our agreement to share in such excess, a Group
of notice recipients [73 companies including Hexcell negotiated
an agreement with EPA to assume responsibility for the study
pursuant to an Administrative Order on Consent. We believe we
have viable defenses to the EPA claims and expect that other as yet
unnamed parties also will receive notices from the EPA. In June
2007, EPA issued a draft Focused Feasibility Study {"FFS”] that
considers six interim remedial options for the lower eight miles of
the river, in addition to a "no action” option. The estimated costs
for the six options range from $%00 million to $2.3 billion. The
PRP Group provided comments to EPA on the FFS; EPA has not
yet taken further action. The Administrative Order on Consent
regarding the study does not cover work contemplated by the
FFS. Finally, the Federal Trustees for natural resources have
indicated their intent to perform a natural resources damage
assessment on the river and invited the PRPs to participate in
the development and performance of this assessment. The
PRP Group, inctuding Hexcel, has not agreed to participate. Our
ultimate liability for investigatory costs, remedial costs and/or
natural resource damages in connection with the Lower Passaic
River cannot be determined at this time.

Kent, Washington Site

We were party to a cost-sharing agreement regarding
the operation of certain environmental remediation systems
necessary to satisfy a post-closure care permit issued to a
previous owner of our Kent, Washington, site by the EPA. Under
the terms of the cost-sharing agreement, we were obligated to
reimburse the previous owner for a portion of the cost of the
required remediation activities. Management has determined
that the cost-sharing agreement terminated in December 1998;
however, the other party disputes this determination. The
Washington Department of Ecology has issued a unilateral
Enforcement Qrder to us requiring us to (al maintain the interim
remedial system and to perform system separation, (b to conduct
a focused remedial investigation and [¢) to conduct a focused
feasibitity study to develop recomnmended long term remedial
measures. We asserted defenses against performance of the
order, particularly objecting to the remediation plan proposed
by the previous owner, who still owns the adjacent contaminated
site. However, we are currently complying with the order, without
withdrawing our defenses.

Omega Chemical Corporation Superfund Site, Whittier, CA

We are a PRP at a farmer chemical waste site in Whittier, CA.
The PRPs at Omega have established a PRP Group, the "Omega
PRP Group”, and are currently investigating and remediating
soil and groundwater at the site pursuant to a Consent Decree
with the EPA, entered into in March 2000. Hexcel contributed
approximately 0.01% of the waste tonnage sent to the site during
its operations. In addition te the Omega site specifically, there is
regional groundwater contamination in the area as well. EPA has
not determined who it will identify as PRPs to investigate and, as
necessary, remediate the regional groundwater centamination,
Although it is likely that Hexcel will incur costs associated with
the regional investigation and remediation as a member of the
Omega Group, our ultimate Liability, if any, in connection with this
matter cannot be determined at this time.

Environmental remediation reserve activity for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2004, 2005 was as follows:

[In millions) 29007 2006 2005
Beginning

remediation

accrual balance $ 53 $ 42 $ 48
Current period

expenses 0.6 3.9 0.8
Cash expenditures 2.7 [2.8) {1.4)
Ending remediation

accrual balance $ 3.2 $ 53 $ 4.2

Capital expenditures
for environmental
matters $ 23 $ 08 $ 1.1
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Our estimate of liability as a PRP and our remaining costs
associated with our responsibility to remediate the Lodi, New
Jersey; Kent, Washington; and other sites are accrued in the
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
our aggregate environmental related accruals were $3.2 million
and $5.3 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, $2.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, was included in
current other accrued liabilities, with the remainder included in
other non-current liabilities. As related to certain environmental
matters, the accrual was estimated at the low end of a range of
possible outcomes since no amount within the range is a better
estimate than any other amount. If we had accrued for these
matters at the high end of the range of possible cutcomes, our
accrual would have been $4.6 million and $2.7 million higher at
December 31, 2007 and 20046, respectively.

These accruals can change significantly from period to period
due to such factors as additional information on the nature or
extent of cantamination, the methods of remediation required,
changes in the apportionment of costs among responsible parties
and other actions by governmental agencies or private parties, or
the impact, if any, of being named in a new matter.

Litigation

Austrian Exotherm Claim

On August 4, 2006, at our Neumarkt, Austria, manufacturing
facility, resin being mixed exothermed, releasing gases and
smoke inside and outside of the facility. Ourinternal investigation
revealed that the cause of the exotherm was a failure of the
mixing mechanism. Three employees of our Austrian subsidiary,
Hexcel Composites GmbH, have been charged under Section 180
of the Austrian Criminal Code; the charge is that they deliberately
caused a violation of an environmental law or regulation when the
gases and smoke were released. Hexcel Composites GmhH has
not been charged, although it could be charged under the same
Section. We have offered independent counsel to the employees
at our expense. We are not in a position to predict the outcome of
the case against the employees or whether a charge will be filed
against Hexcel Composites GmbH, but we will defend any charges
vigorously.

Hercules Claim

Hercules Incorporated ["Hercules”) was one of our co-
defendants in certain previously disclosed antitrust lawsuits
relating to carbon fiber products. As previously disclosed,
Hercules filed an action against us in New York seeking a
declaratery judgment that, pursuant tc a 1996 Sate and Purchase
Agreement (whereby we acquired the carbon fiber and prepreg
assets of Hercules], we were required to indemnify Hercules for
its settlements in the antitrust lawsuits and for any liability
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claims that may be asserted by any of the opt-outs from those
suits [Hercules Incorporated v, Hexcel, filed in the Supreme Court
of State of New York, County of New York, December, 6, 2004,
On Aprit 30, 2007, the New York court, on summary judgment,
dismissed the indemnity counts in Hercules’ complaint. Hercules
appealed the dismissal. On February 7, 2008 the Appellate
Division court unanimously affirmed the dismissal. Hercules
also claims that Hexcel failed to cooperate with Hercules’ defense
in the antitrust cases; this claim was not part of the motion for
summary judgment and has yet to go to trial, but we intend to
defend it vigorously. We have not recorded a reserve related to
this matter as we do not consider the likelihood of an unfavorable
judgment probable.

Product Warranty

Warranty expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2004
and 2005, and accrued warranty cost, included in “other accrued
liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31,
2007 and 2006, was as follows:

Product
[In millions} Warranties
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $ 50
Warranty expense 0.8
Deductions and other (27
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ 39
Warranty expense 3.3
Deductions and other _ .8l
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $4.5
Warranty expense 1.8
Deductions and other (3.5)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $29

Note 17 — Supplemental Cash Flow

Supptemnental cash flow information, including non-cash
financing and investing activities, for the years ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, consisted of the following:

[In millions} 2007 2006 2005
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 245 $ 260 $ 40,0
Taxes $ 18.0 $ 98 $ 128

Non-cash items:
Conversion of
mandatorily
redeemable
convertible

preferred stock $121.3




Note 18 — Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income represents net income and other gains
and losses affecting stockholders’ equity that are not reflected in
the consolidated statements of operations. The components of
accumulated ather comprehensive income [loss} as of December
31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

{In millions) 2007 2004
Currency translation

adjustments [a} $ 40.3 $ 264
Accrued minimum pension

liability, net of tax {b) - [15.8]
Net unrealized gains on financial

instruments, net of tax [c| 3.7 4b
Pension obligation - FAS 158 [d) (11.4) 117.0)
Accumulated other

comprehensive income (loss) $ 32,6 $ .8

(a) The currency translation adjustments are not currently adjusted for income
taxes as they relate to indefinite investments in non-1.5. subsidiaries.

{b) Reduced by the tax impact of $1.9 million at December 31, 2004.

[c) Reduced by the tax impact of $1.4 million and $1.7 mitlion at December 31,

2007 and 2004, respectively.

Reduced by the tax impact of $1.0 million and $7.1 million at December 31,

2007 and 2006, respectively.

(d

Note 19 — Segment Information

The financial results for our segments are prepared using a
management approach, which is consistent with the basis and
manner in which we internally segregate financial information for
the purpose of assisting in making internal operating decisions.
We evaluate the performance of our segments based on operating
income, and generally account for intersegment sales based
on arm’s length prices. Corporate and certain other expenses
are not allocated to the segments, except to the extent that the
expense can be directly attributable to the segment.

Effective January 1, 2007, we revised our segments to reflect
our strategic and operational realignment and to focus on
advanced composites. We have eliminated our three former
globai business units and consolidated all our composites related
activities into a single organization. Based upon our review of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. we have
concluded that we will now report two segments, Composite
Materials and Engineered Products.

In addition to the product line-based segmentation of our
business, we alse monitor sales into our principal end markets as
a means to understanding demand for our products. Therefore,
for each segment, we have also reported disaggregated sales by
end market.
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The following tables present financial information on our segments as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and for
the years then ended.

Composite Engineered Corporate

{in millions) Materials Products & Other Total
Third-Party Sales

2007 $ 9419 $ 2292 $ - $1,17111

2006 858.2 191.3 — 1,049.5

2005 791.5 166.1 - 957.6
Intersegment sales

2007 $ 340 $ 25 $ 1365 $ —

2006 28.3 0.5 128.8) —

2005 218 2.4 {24.2) -
Operating income (loss)

2007 $ 1428 $ 213 $ (49.2) $ 149

2006 119.1 21.8 [37.5) 103.4

2005 118.3 13.5 (47.5) 84.3
Depreciation and amortization

2007 $ 359 $ 38 $ 01 $ 398

2005 33.7 3.6 0.1 37.4

2005 35.2 35 0.1 38.8
Equity in earnings from and gain on sale of affiliated companies

2007 $ - $ 4.3 $ - $ 4.3

2008 17.6 2.3 — 19.9

2005 29 0.7 - 3.6
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses

2007 $ 6.4 $ 0.9 $ — $ 7.3

200é 9.9 0.1 (0.1) 7.9

2005 2.4 0.5 - 2.9
Business consolidation and restructuring payments

2007 $ 129 $ 2.0 $ - $ 149

2006 3.6 0.1 - 3.7

2005 1.8 0.7 0.2 2.7
Other expense, net

2007 $ 3.2 $ - $ 9.4 $ 124

2006 — — - —

2005 — - 151 15.1
Segment assets

2007 $ 7935 $ 1762 $ 908 $1,060.5

2006 469.5 153.8 191.2 1,014.5

2005 662.3 75.0 143.3 B80.6
Investments in affiliated companies

2007 $ - $ 170 % - $ 17.0

2008 - 11 - i

2005 58 8.5 - 14.3
Capital expenditures and deposits for capital purchases

2007 $ 114 $ 7.2 $ 2.0 $ 1206

2006 109.9 4.8 3.2 17.9

2005 58.8 2.6 2.9 64.3
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Geographic Data

Net sales and long-lived assets, by geographic area, consisted
of the following for the three years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005:

[tn millions) 2007 20046 2005
Net sales by Geography [a):
United States $ 5522 § 4708 $ 4366
International
France 238.3 233.3 208.6
Austria 160.2 136.0 113.4
United Kingdom 100.8 96.4 96.3
Other 119.4 113.0 102.7
Total international 418.9 578.7 521.0
Total consolidated net sales  $1.171.1 $1,0495 $ 9576
Net Sales to External
Customers [b):
United States $ 467.2 § 3794 § 3535
International
France 128.8 127.8 117.6
Spain 75.9 87.9 88.3
Germany 87.2 78.6 711
United Kingdom 65.5 67.6 56.1
Other 346.5 310.2 271.0
Total international 703.9 670.1 604.1
Total $1,171.1 $1.0495 % 957.6
Long-lived assets [c):
United States $ 2M4 % 2261 % 1506
International
France 44.5 37.2 32.2
United Kingdom 40.2 44.6 38.1
Other 98.8 51.8 37.0
Total international 183.5 133.5 107.3

Total consolidated long-lived

assets $ 4549 % 3597 § 2579

la) Net sales by geography based on the location in which the sale was
manufactured.

[b]l Net sales o external customers based on the location to which the sale was
delivered.

l¢] Long-lived assets primarily consist of property, plant and equipment.

Note: Certain prior years' revenues have been reclassified to
conform to the 2007 presentation.

Significant Customers

The Boeing Company and its subcontractors accounted for
approximately 25%, 24% and 23% of 2007, 20046 and 2005 net
sales, respectively. Similarly, EADS, including Airbus and its
subcontractors accounted for approximately 22%, 26% and 27%
of 2007, 2006 and 2005 net sales, respectively.

Note 20 — Business Consolidation and
Restructuring Programs
The aggregate business consolidation and restructuring

activities for the three years ended December 31, 2007, consisted
of the following:

Employee
Severance

Facility &

(In millions) Equipment Total

Balance as of
December 31, 2004
Business
consolidation
and restructuring
expenses 1.1 1.8 29
Cash expenditures (0.6 2.1 i2.71

Currency translation
adjustments

$ 33 $ 10 $ 43

(0.3) - (0.3)

Balance as of
December 31, 2005
Business

consolidation

and restructuring

expenses 8.0 1.9 9.9
Cash expenditures [1.4) (2.3 (3.7]
Currency translation

adjustments and

other adjustments 0.6 — 0.6
Balance as of
December 31, 2006
Business

consolidation

and restructuring

expenses 2.0 5.3 7.3
Cash expenditures (9.6) (5.3) (14.9)
Currency translation

adjustments and

other adjustments —_ —_ —_
Balance as of
December 31, 2007

$ 35 $ 07 $ 4.2

$10.7 $ 03 $11.0

$ 31 $ 03 $ 3.4

December 2005 Program

In December 2006, we announced that we had begun the
process of realigning our organization into a single business
and addressing stranded costs that will result from divestitures
associated with our portfolio realignment. During 2007 and 2006,
we recorded business consolidation and restructuring expenses
of $3.0 and $7.6 mitlion in connection with this action. We expect
this program will be substantially completed by March 31, 2008.
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Business consclidation and restructuring activities for this
program consisted of the following:

Employee
Severance

Facility &

(tn miltions) Equipment Totat

Balance as of
December 31, 2005 $ - $ - 5 -
Business

consolidation

and restructuring

expenses 7.4 0.2 7.6
Cash expenditures (0.4) {0.2) {0.6]

Balance as of
December 31, 2006
Business
consolidation
and restructuring
expenses 2.8 0.2 3.0
Cash expenditures (7.8) - (7.8)

$ 70 $ 70

Non-cash usage,

including asset

write-downs - (0.2) (0.2)
Currency translation

adjustments 0.3 — 0.3

Balance as of

December 31, 2007 $ 2.3 $23

Livermore 2004 Program

In the first quarter of 2004, we announced our intent to
consolidate the activities of our Livermore, California facility into
other facilities, principally the Salt Lake City, Utah plant. We
recognized $4.7 million for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2007
and $1.8 million of expense for both of the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, associated with the facility ctosure and
consolidation activities. We made cash payments of $6.4 and $1.4
million during 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to employee
severance and facility closure and consolidation activities. The
plant ceased operations on March 31, 2007. The Livermore facility
has now been dismantled and the site is being remediated as part
of the preparation for the sale of the property, with the related
costs being expensed as incurred. This program had an accrued
balance of $0.1 million as of December 31, 2007 for severance
abligations and is adequate for the estimated future reguirernents
related to the program. Clean-up expenses will continue to be
incurred into 2008 until the land sale is completed.

November 2001 Program

in November 2001, we announced a program to restructure
business operations as a result of reductions in commercial
aircraft production rates. There was minimal activity in
the program during 2005, 2006 and 2007 as this program is
substantially complete. During 2007 we reduced our accrued
balance related to this program by $0.% million as the statute of
limitations expired related to certain recorded liabilities. As of
December 31, 2007, the accrued balances related to this pregram
are for future severance obligations of $0.6 million and lease
payments of $0.2 million that will continue inte 2009 and are
adequate for the estimated future requirements related to the
program.
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Note 21 — Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net, for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, consisted of the following:

{In millions) 2007 2004 2005
Pension settlement expense $9.4 $ — $ -
Impairment expense 3.2 —
Gains on sale of assets - (1.4)
Accruat for certain legal matters — 16.5
Other expense, net $12.6 $ — $15.1

In connection with the termination of our U.S. Qualified Pension
Plan, as described in Note 9, we recorded $9.4 million of pension
expense during 2007. We also recorded an impairment charge
of $3.2 million during 2007 related to purchased technology and
certain related fixed assets. During 2005, we recorded an accrual
of $16.5 million for the settlement of litigation matters and sold
surplus land at one of our U.5. manufacturing facilities for net
cash proceeds of $1.4 million and recognized a gain of $1.4 million.

Note 22 — Non-Operating Expense, Net

Non-operating expense, net, was $1.1 million, $0.1 million
and %$40.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. During the year ended December 31,
2007, we made mandatory principal prepayments on the term
loan portion of our Senior Secured Credit Facility of $86.8 million
with the net proceeds from asset sales. The asset sales related
to the December 2006 sale of our 50% interest in TechFab [a
joint venture of our former Reinforcements business unit), the
February 2007 sale of our European Architectural business and
the August 2007 sale of our EBGI business. As a result of the
prepayment and early retirement of debt, we have recorded a loss
resulting from the accelerated write-off of deferred financing
costs of $1.1 millign.

During the first quarter of 2005, we took a series of actions to
refinance substantially all of our long-term debt. As a result of
the refinancing, we recorded a loss on early retirement of debt
of $40.3 million, consisting of tender offer and call premiums of
$25.2 million, the write-off of unamortized deferred financing
costs and original issuance discounts of $10.3 million, transaction
costs of $1.2 million in connection with the repurchasing of debt,
and a loss of $3.6 million related to the cancellation of interest
rate swap agreements.

During the second quarter of 2005, we prepaid $39.4 million
of the term B loan under the Senior Secured Credit Facility. As a
result of the prepayment, we recorded an additional $0.6 million
loss on early retirement of debt resulting from the accelerated
write-off of related deferred financing costs.




Note 23 — Quarterly Financial and Market Data (Unaudited]

Quarterly financial and market data for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20056 were:

First Second Third Fourth

{In millions) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2007
Net sales $282.6 $289.8 $281.1 $317.6
Gross margin AR 70.4 66.9 74.2
Business consolidation and restructuring expenses 1.1 0.5 2.6 3.2
Other expense, net - - - 12.4
Operating income 29.9 34.0 30.2 20.8
Non-operating expense, net 0.4 - 0.5 0.1
Net income from continuing operations 14.8 17.5 18.1 13.0
Income (loss] from discontinued operations, net of tax 8.7 (8.7] (0.8 1.2)
Net income available to common shareholders 23.5 8.8 17.3 11.8
Income from continuing operations

Basic $ 016 $ 018 $ 0.9 $ 0.14

Diluted $ 0.5 $ 0.18 $ 0.9 $ 0.13
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 025 $ 0.09 $ 0.8 $ 012

Diluted $ 0.24 $ 0.09 $ 0.18 $ 0.2
Market price:

High $20.30 $23.85 $27.91 $27.19

Low $16.20 $19.26 $ 20.03 $19.95
2006
Net sales $ 2603 $ 2740 $ 252.3 $ 2629
Gross margin b4.6 67.5 57.3 59.1
Business cansolidation and restructuring expenses 0.8 0.3 05 82
Cperating income 28.1 339 239 17.5
Non-operating expense, net - - - 0.1
Net income from continuing operations 14.0 18.0 15.2 17.7
{income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.5 (0.4) 0.5 0.4
Net income [loss| available to common shareholders 14.5 17.6 15.7 18.1
Income from continuing operations

Basic $ 015 $ 019 $ 0.1 $ 019

Diluted $ 0.5 $ 019 $ 014 $ 019
Net income (loss] per common share:

Basic $ 0154 $ 019 $ 017 $ 019

Diluted $ 0.15 $ 019 $ 014 $ 019
Market price:

High $23.2 $ 24.91 $ 1602 $19.01

Low $17.60 $13.80 $13.28 $ 13.61
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Management's Responsibility for Consolidated Financial
Statements

Hexcel management has prepared and is responsible for
the consolidated financial statements and the related financial
data contained in this report. These financial statements,
which include estimates, were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Management uses its best judgment to ensure that
such statements reflect fairly the consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews and
monitors the financial reports and accounting practices of
Hexcel. These reports and practices are reviewed regularly
by management and by our independent registered public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in connection
with the audit of our consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee, composed solely of outside directors, meets
periodically, separately and jointly, with management and the
independent registered public accounting firm.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

Hexcel management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15lf) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal
financial officers and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management and other personnel to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
includes those policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company;

* provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

+ provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Hexcel management has assessed the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007. tn making this assessment, management used the criteria
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (CQSO] in internal Control-integrated
Framework, Based on our assessment, management concluded
that, as of December 31, 2007, our internal control over financial
reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of Hexcel's internal control over financial
reporting, as of December 31, 2007, has heen audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report that appears on page 69.



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Hexcel Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockhalders’
equity and comprehensive income and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hexcel Corporation
and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
inthe period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Controt - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission [COS0). The Company's management is respansible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits, We conducted
our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board [United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal controt over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amcunts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Qur audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our epinions.

As discussed in Notes 1, 9 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
share-based campensation and defined benefit and other postretirement plans in 2006.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reperting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that [i] pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispesitions of the assets of the
cormpany; liil provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accardance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and [iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Pricupadirtona Lopurs LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 22, 2008
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Hexcel Corporation

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total
Shareholder Return—December 2001
through December 2007

$1,000
$800
4600

- /
$200

,
1 1 1 1 1 i
12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07

® Hexcel Corporaton
a Custom Peer Group
m Aerospace/Defense Products and Services

S&P 500
Aerospace/
Defense
Products Custom
Hexcel and Peer
Date Corporation S&P 500 Services Group

December 2002 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00  $100.00
December 2003 $247.00 $128.63 $146.89 $141.58
December 2004 $483.44 $142.59 $184.66 $174.62
December 2005 $601.47 $149.58 $205.91  $213.96
December 2004 $580.33 $173.15 $263.12 $270.34
December 2007 $809.33 $182 .44 $333.85 $375.87

{1] Total shareholder return assuming $100 invested on December 31, 2002
and reinvestment of dividends on quarterly basis.
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Anqut sanss,

Hexcel is a leading international producer of advanced composite materials, serving comme
cial aerospace, space and defense and various industrial markets. The Company is a leader
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